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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present the audited annual results and business
review for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Reporting Period”)
and future prospects for 2021 of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”).

The outbreak of COVID-19 in earlier 2020 severely impacted the
development of China’s economy. Against a backdrop of downward
pressure on economy, China intensified its counter-cyclic adjustment
and pursued a proactive fiscal policy and a prudent and flexible
currency policy. With the effective implementation of a number of
initiatives, China’s economy has recovered rapidly and achieved
growth amid the pandemic.

As a cornerstone and stabilizer of economic development, the real
estate’s performance in 2020 beat expectations. In the context of
the central government’s consistent efforts in real estate controls,
reaffirmation of “houses are for living in and not for speculative
investment”, full implementation of “varied policies for different cities”
and the long-term mechanism for real estate regulation to stabilize
land price, housing price and expectations, and release of “Three Red
Lines” to tighten the regulatory controls of real estate financing, the
real estate market has demonstrated very strong resilience, as shown
by stable increase in selling price and sales amount, indicating the
market has basically overcome the impact of the pandemic and is
going back on track.

During the Reporting Period, faced with industrial tightening regulatory
controls, changing market environment and intensifying industrial
competitions, the Group continued to focus on a robust and balanced
development approach and optimize business strategies while
enhancing the fundamental management to reduce cost, improve
quality and increase efficiency, optimize resources allocation and
improve corporate strength continuously. With the support from
shareholders and the unremitting efforts of employees, during the
Reporting Period, the Group had remarkable achievements in business
expansion, with significant growth in operating performance, and also
received widespread recognition from the capital market, clients and
partners.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

In the aspect of business expansion strategies, the Group sticks to
the deployment strategy of “being rooted in Zhejiang, focusing on the
Yangtze River Delta, and extending to key hub cities of China”. While
maintaining a robust financial strategy, the Group continues to expand
quality land resources in cities with high development potential. In
2020, the Group entered 1 new city, adding about 5,395,033 square
meters in aggregate to its land reserve. In 2020, 40 parcels of land
were acquired by means of bid, auction and listing and purchase,
merger and acquisition. The Group also collaborated with its business
partners to jointly acquire several project lands. Based on the principle
of “setting production capacity by sales and directing investment by
production capacity”, the Group well controlled the land acquisition
cost through diversified land acquisition methods. As of 31 December
2020, the Group had a business network covering 26 cities with 166
operating projects, among which the Group operated 153 projects,
and held a reserve of nearly 16,256,313 million square meters of high-
quality land (including reserves of joint ventures and associates), thus
laying a foundation for sustainable development of the Company.

In 2020, the Group continued to focus on regional development to
consolidate its leading position in the Yangtze River Delta region
while promoting its national deployment in a stable manner, which
was proved to be effective. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
kept a strong momentum of business expansion and covered the
four core city clusters, namely, the Yangtze River Delta, Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area, Chengdu-Chongging and the
economic belt of middle reach area of Yangtze River. The Group also
expanded into the northwest region for the first time by acquiring a
parcel of quality residential land of Da Huyi, Xi’an to expand its national
network in a stable manner. As of 31 December 2020, about 73.4%
of the Group’s land reserves are located in the first- and second-
tier cities, and about 24.8% are located in the strong third-tier cities,
showing the proportion of land reserves in high value-add cities was
further improved. By precisely capturing the housing demand in the
core metropolitan areas during the process of urbanization, the Group
is injecting continuous momentum into its high-quality development in

the future.
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In terms of operating result, against the backdrop of industrial
tightened regulatory policies and intensified competition, the Group
continued to optimize its business development strategy to expand the
market with high-quality and diversified products, which contributed
industry-leading sales growth and remarkable

effectiveness of business optimization. As of 31 December 2020, the

to increasing profits,

Group realized total revenue of RMB15.7 billion and gross profit of
RMB3.9 billion,
27.6% respectively.

representing a year-on-year increase of 64.7% and
It recorded core profit of RMB2,809.3 million,
Net profit attributable
to the Company’s shareholders was about RMB1.2 billion. During

representing a year-on-year increase of 7.0%.

the Reporting Period, the Group recognized contracted sales of
RMB63.53 billion,
of nearly 40.9%, and total contracted sales area was approximately

representing a significant year-on-year increase

3.114 million square meters, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 26.5% with industry-leading growth, demonstrating the
products and services of the Group have been highly recognized by
the market.

In 2020,
financing makes financing capacity an important measurement of

the government’s tightening control over real estate

the competitiveness of a real estate enterprise. The Group has
shown impressive results in continuously optimizing and expanding
its domestic and overseas financing channels to improve financing
In 2020, the
Group obtained facilities from various domestic and overseas banking

structure while maintaining a robust financial strategy.

institutions of approximately RMB13.71 billion, including the first batch
of supply chain financing in China. On the other hand, the Group
also obtained credit facilities from overseas commercial banks. Many
institutions also responded well to the USD notes issued in overseas
market with coupon rate falling to single digit, which showed the
Group’s financing capability has been improved notably and was
recognized in the capital market.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

With respect to brand building and product operation, based on the
brand positioning of “Your Life Companion”, the Group adheres to
the bottom line of craftsmanship and quality and practices the brand
image of “Hangzhou workmanship”. During the Reporting Period, the
Group further standardized product quality and refined the full-cycle
quality control process to create different types of products. A product
portfolio comprised of “three product lines and six product series”
has been gradually formed, catering to different needs of first-time
homebuyers and non-first-time homebuyers. The Group continued
to improve supporting services, and, relying on our “bosom friend
life” and G+ residential system, create a better life for customers and
provide quality products to the satisfaction of customers. Besides,
during the pandemic, the Group also kept up with the times to seize
the opportunity of online marketing. The innovative marketing efforts
of the Group achieved good results. Through the innovative marketing
model of “online platform + offline channel”, the Group grasped the
sales rhythm precisely and launched “Zhijiyun” (512 2), a one-stop
online property purchasing platform, attracting more than million
visits. In particular, the Group organized two live streaming marketing
campaigns , namely the “6.18 Bosom Friend’s Festival (6.18 %124
J&ED)” and the “11.11 Home Buyers’ Festival” (11.11 A2 B E ),
both catching unprecedented attentions. Through the coordination of
planning, sales and channels, the Group has established an innovative
internet marketing model with full online and offline coverage.

During the Reporting Period, the Group won many honors and
rewards, including No. 2 of “Top 10 Listed Real Estate Enterprises in
Wealth Creation” (P ETE B EAI3ERE 771058), “China’s Top 10
Listed Real Estate Enterprises in Solvency 2020 (2020 & +HEME
fERETOP10), No. 22 of “Comprehensive Strength Ranking of Listed
Real Estate Companies” (HiE T AF4RE E HBE{TE) and “The 5th
Golden Hong Kong Stocks Awards — Best Real Estate Company” (£
RESBRK-&EMERT]). The Group has won the title of “China’s
Top 100 Real Estate Enterprises” for eight consecutive years, ranking
the 55th in 2020. These honors and awards highlight the Group’s
market position and indicate that the Group’s business development
and performance have been widely recognized by the capital market

and customers.
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Talent is the core competitiveness for the sustainable development
of the Group. With respect to talent and cooperation mechanism,
the Group attaches great importance to talent introduction, echelon
training and platform mechanism construction. We optimize the
organizational structure from the following four aspects: flat structure,
refined management, professionalization of talents and strengthening
the construction of corporate culture, thus establishing an experienced
management and operation team. In addition, the Group focuses on
the establishment of an incentive system aligned to the corporate
development objective to improve employee engagement. In the
meantime, with an aim to establish an open-ended organization, the
Group keeps optimizing the organizational structure, empowers the
base-level employees and improves efficiency, thus forming a “jointly
built and owned and shared” platform mechanism and an open and
inclusive win-win cooperation concept, so as to continuously stimulate
the enthusiasm and creativity of every employee and partner.

In the first half of 2020, the Group assumed its social responsibility
during the early days of the outbreak by allocating funds to procure
necessary anti-pandemic materials in Hubei and Zhejiang for the
medical care personnel working on the frontline of the anti-pandemic
battle. Immediately, the Group’s projects, together with property
management companies, provided a series of pandemic prevention
and control services as the first anti-pandemic defense for the
community residents. Further, the Group mobilized its overseas
resources and distributed facial masks and other badly-needed
materials to employees and property owners, demonstrating our
commitment as a responsible real estate enterprise of China.

The year 2020 is the second year of the Group’s listing. With an
industry-leading performance in all operating, results and financial
indicators over the past two years, the Group was included in the
MSCI China Small-cap Index, the Hang Seng Index Series and the
Hong Kong Stock Connect for its good investment value, and received
wide attention and recognition from many institutions.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Looking into 2021, the Group will continue to review the situation,
bolster forward-looking research and judgment as well as responses
to newly-launched policies, stick to the strategic layout of “being
rooted in Zhejiang, focusing on the Yangtze River Delta, and extending
to key hub cities of China”, focus on principal business, and keep
improving product quality and brand influence in a customer-oriented
manner. Besides, the Group will adhere to the concept of rational
investment and stable deployment, fully grasp the development
opportunity of urban rotation and further implement its deployment
strategy, i.e. expanding national network while taking the development
opportunities in core areas, in order to achieve balanced development.

In view of the changing market environment and tightening regulatory
control, the Group will continue to strengthen refined management
and internal control, further connect its operating and financial
management system to improve operating efficiency, and continue to
adopt a moderate financial control policy to further optimize capital
and debt structure via diversified financing channels.

Many a little makes a mickle. Riding the tide of the times, the Group
will start from every minor thing, seize every minute and race against
time. Adhering to the development philosophy of “managing real estate
enterprise with the standards of the manufacturing industry and the
mindset of long-distance runners”, the Group will continue to optimize
and upgrade brand strategy to grasp the development opportunities
arising from industrial transformation with better management
efficiency and brand image.

Meanwhile, the Group will leverage the existing advantages to provide
more value for all shareholders, create a better life for customers,
establish a development platform for all employees to display their
expertise, provide a stage for win-win development for all partners,
and develop Dexin China into a respectable and sustainable
enterprise.

Finally, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, | would like to express my sincere thanks
to all the shareholders for their support to the Company and all the
employees for their hard work and efforts over the past year.

Chairman

Hu Yiping
25 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GENERAL OVERVIEW

In 2020, the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic around the world and
the intensifying international trade frictions brought about risks and
challenges to the economic development of China. In general, China
started the year with an economic decline, followed by a rebound
with steady recovery. According to the statistics from the National
Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, for the year ended 31 December
2020, China’s Gross Domestic Product (‘GDP”) grew by 2.3% to
RMB101,598.6 billion compared to the previous year, showing the
economy of China has gradually recovered amid a global slowdown. It
made China as one of the few economies whose GDP growth did not
shrink in the year 2020 mired in COVID-19.

At the beginning of 2020, the overall sales in the real estate market
declined as affected by the pandemic. With the pandemic gradually
under control, the market demand incrementally released and
recovered more than expected. Demonstrating very strong resilience,
the real estate industry has seen a rapid recovery of overall sales since
the second quarter of the year, which has driven the annual sales
growth. For the year ended 31 December 2020, as shown by statistics
from the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, total floor area of
commercial housing sold increased by 2.6% year-on-year to 1,760.86
million sg.m.; average selling price of commercial housing increased
by 5.9% year-on-year to approximately RMB9,860 per sg.m.; and total
sales amounted to approximately RMB17.36 trillion, hitting another
record high. Generally speaking, the real estate industry of China has
overcome the impact of the pandemic and is going back on track.

In respect of real estate policies, in 2020, the central government
continued to adhere to the keynotes of policy that “houses are for
living in and not for speculative investment” and “varied policies
for different cities”. In the first half of the year, for the purpose of
mitigating the the effects of the pandemic, supporting policies for
both the supply and demand sides were issued at various places. In
the second half of the year, however, with the accelerated recovery
of the real estate market in many cities, in particular, given the
surging housing price and land price in some “hot” cities, the central
government reaffirmed that “houses are for living in and not for
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB W& T

followed by the issuance of the “Three Red
in the third quarter of 2020 in a bid to tighten the real estate

speculative investment”,
Lines”
financing.
China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission released the
new requirements of real estate loans, requiring the outstanding real

In the fourth quarter of 2020, the central bank and the

estate loans and personal housing loans of banking institutions not to
exceed the prescribed caps. The housing market control policies were
tightened in many cities from various aspects, including restrictions on
purchase, loans and sales, and strengthened supervision of pre-sale
funds. As a result, the real estate control policy showed a tightening
tendency while maintaining stable, enabling the real estate enterprises
to deleverage, reduce debts and develop from an expansion-based
manner to a quality-oriented one.

From a macro perspective, real estate is still an important cornerstone
of domestic economic growth, and the overall industry volume will
remain stable. In terms of housing demand, with the development of
urbanization and the implementation of policies for attracting talents in
various cities, the current housing demand still has great potential and
is expected to have great potential for development in the future.

The year 2020 is the second year since the Group’s listing.
Notwithstanding the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic and
the tightened regulatory policies in the real estate industry, the
Group focused on high-efficiency operation and the establishment
and improvement of business strategies. Positioned as “Your Life
Companion”, and with its high-quality and diversified “three product
lines and six product series”, the Group occupied the market share
and maintained the continuous high growth of sales, revenue and
profitability since listing. As of 31 December 2020, the Group
achieved total revenue of approximately RMB15.67 billion and gross
profit of approximately RMB3.90 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 64.7% and 27.6% respectively. It recorded core profit of
RMB2,809.3 million,
Along with profit growth, the Group also recorded strong sales
performance. As the pandemic becomes recurrent, the Group focuses

on the coordination of planning, sales and channels to explore an

representing a year-on-year increase of 7.0%.

innovative “online + offline” marketing model, which has been proved
to be effective. Throughout 2020, the Group realized total contracted
sales of RMB63.53 billion,
increase of approximately 40.9%, which exceeded its annual sales

representing a significant year-on-year
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BENTHERNBESIER - B E2020F12 A 31
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target and made its ranking in the TOP 200 Sales of Chinese Real
Estate Enterprises from January to December 2020 (20204 1-12 A
PR EHE D FEHEETOP200HE1TE)) prepared by the China Index
Academy move up 7 places from 2019 and 11 places from 2018
respectively to No. 60. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
business optimization strategy had significant achievements, realizing
high-quality improvement in business size, profit and brand, and
reflecting the products and services of the Group have been highly

recognized in the market.

In terms of land reserves, the Group adheres to the strategic guidance
of “being rooted in Zhejiang, focusing on the Yangtze River Delta, and
extending to key hub cities of China” and continues to expand into
cities and quality land resources with the potential for development
across four core metropolitan areas, namely, the Yangtze River Delta,
Pearl River Delta, Chengdu-Chongqging and Central China. In 2020, the
Group acquired 40 parcels of quality land with an increased total GFA
of approximately 5,395,033 sqg.m., 75.6% of which was located in
the first- and second-tier cities and 84.4% in the Yangtze River Delta,
demonstrating the Group’s continuous efforts in deepened regional
development to consolidate its leading position therein. In addition,
the Group’s national layout has progressed in a stable manner, for
example, it expanded into the northwest region for the first time by
acquiring a parcel of quality residential land in Da Huyi, Xi'an. As of 31
December 2020, the Group operated 166 projects in 26 core cities,
with land reserves amounting to approximately 16,256,313 sqg.m.
as at the end of the Reporting Period. The moderate land reserves,
rationalised urban layout and optimizing structure provides a solid
foundation to the Group for further growth.

While expanding its business scale, the Group also insists on a robust
financial strategy and continues to optimize the financing and debt
structure. In 2020, the Group continued to optimize and expand
both domestic and overseas financing channels, and obtained the
first batch of supply chain financing in China and also the credit
facilities from overseas commercial banks, making its total facilities
from various financial institutions up by approximately RMB13.71
billion for the whole year. The USD notes offered overseas have been
widely recognized and recommended by financial institutions for the
lowering costs. In respect of debt structure, as of 31 December 2020,
each continuously improved credit indicator and higher solvency has
demonstrated the Group’s strong ability of sustainable development.
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BB W& T

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of properties and,
to a lesser extent, property construction and project management
services, lease of commercial properties and hotel operations. For the
year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a total revenue
of approximately RMB15,668.8 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 64.7%.

Contracted sales

For the year ended 31 December 2020,
ventures and associates, the Group recorded contracted sales
of approximately RMB63,530 million,
increase of approximately 40.9%, and contracted gross floor area

including those of joint
representing a year-on-year
(“GFA") sales of approximately 3,114,000 sg.m., representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 26.5%. The average selling price
(“ASP”) of our contracted sales for the year ended 31 December 2020

was approximately RMB20,401.4 per sg.m.,
year increase of approximately 11.4%.

representing a year-on-

Sales of properties

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue from sales
of properties increased by approximately 64.5% year-on-year to
approximately RMB15,513 million, accounting for approximately 99.0%
of the total revenue of the Group. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group recognised total GFA of approximately 1,056,576
sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 49.3% as compared
to the year ended 31 December 2019. The ASP of the properties
recognised as property sales was approximately RMB14,683 per
sg.m., representing an increase of approximately 10.2% year-on-year.
The increase of ASP was mainly due to the significant increase in the
recognised GFA of areas with higher ASP.

Based in Zhejiang Province, the Group focused on the Yangtze River
Delta and extended to key hub cities of China.

e e
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The following table sets out the recognised sales and GFA sold of RER&FIHZE2020F 12 A31HILFESHT

each city for the year ended 31 December 2020: EHRAHEERDEEEEE
Recognised Recognised Recognised
GFA ASP revenue
EER [=F 42
EEEE FHEE EEABA
sg.-m. RMB/sq.m. RMB’ 000
AR¥T
53k 353K ARBF T
Wenzhou S 285,937 16,244 4,644,842
Huzhou M 231,560 18,327 4,243,904
Hangzhou AN 99,367 20,499 2,036,917
Zhoushan AL 95,075 15,630 1,485,986
Xuzhou RN 206,963 6,235 1,290,374
Ningbo =R 98,774 12,571 1,241,710
Taizhou a M 38,900 14,646 569,724
Total st 1,056,576 14,683 15,513,457
Note: B sE -

Recognised revenue in the above table includes the revenue from residences, FXREBERBABFEERET EEZEM - FEH R
commercial spaces, car parks and storage spaces, and recognised GFA does  BIZEFTIFHIA - T EERELEIEANEEEFEES R
not include the GFA of car parks and storage spaces. REENEEmE -
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EIERE

Property construction and project management
services

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue from property
construction and project management services increased by
approximately 181.7% year-on-year to approximately RMB36.9 million,
accounting for approximately 0.2% of the total revenue of the Group.
The increase was primarily attributable to an increase in the volume of
our construction and project management services.

Lease of commercial properties

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue from rental
income increased by approximately 83.5% year-on-year to
approximately RMB100.4 million, accounting for approximately
0.6% of the total revenue of the Group. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increased numbers of investment properties
(including Hangzhou Wings (#1/N,2%) and Binhai Commercial Plaza
(BB ES), etc.) and an increase in occupancy rate of our
investment properties such as Artificial Intelligence Industrial Park (Al
E % E) in Hangzhou during the year.

Hotel operations

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue from hotel
operations increased by approximately 48.7% vyear-on-year to
approximately RMB18.0 million, accounting for approximately 0.1% of
the total revenue of the Group. The increase was primarily attributable
to an increased number of hotel projects.

MEREREEEERK
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Investment properties REWEE

The following table sets out a summary of the Group’s investment FERFIRMN2020F12 531 B AREEREWE
properties as at 31 December 2020: ZHE

Total Rental Income
for the year ended
December 31,
BZ12A31BLEEN

Total GFA

Held for el AR
Investment 2020 2019
BEREN
B EER 2020 F 20194
City Project (sq.m.) (RMB’000) | (RMB’000)
Wm HH (F73K) (AR¥T ) [(AR¥T )
Hangzhou
AN
1 Artificial Intelligence Industrial Park 75,634 55,658 64,375 44 117
AlEXE
2 Elegant Mansion (Note 33,210 - - -
FEE G D
3 Sky City Phase | 41,422 14,263 - -
REZE—H
4 Hangzhou ONE 17,536 - - -
M ONE
5 Dexin Digital Industrial Building 19,030 17,930 13,676 -
EEHRTEERE
6 Hangzhou Wings 19,125 19,125 6,242 -
TN 2 2
7 Xianlinbu 33,773 3,596 653 -
ke
Huzhou
b
8 Delan Square 13,082 8,999 3,871 3,816
EEES
Xuzhou
HM
9 Sky Scraper A 21,417 16,972 379 947
JLEEW A 1]
10 Sky Scraper B 51,274 7,866 2,789 2,137
JLEE W Bt R
Taizhou
aMm
11 Shenxian Garden Note 2) 51,663 3,313 264 -
AL E b B g ()
Shanghai
Lt
12 Dexin e Zhizao 368 Project 58,176 5,744 2,982 653

{545 1E3868IH B
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paii

Total GFA

Total Rental Income
for the year ended
December 31,
BZ12A31HILEEN

: HE
Held for Leased HEBARE
Investment GFA 2020 2019
BEREN EHEE
BEEENE HE 2020 20194
Project (sq.m.) (sq.-m.) | (RMB’000) | (RMB’000)
HH (F73K) (FHR) (ARETR) (AR¥TR)
Nanjing
[
13 Nanjing Xianlinzhigu Industrial Park 60,510 S - =
BRI E REXE
Jiaxing
=5
14 Binhai Commercial Plaza 13,928 12,487 1,793 -
B AL
509,780 165,953 97,024 51,670
Other rental income 3,393 3,039
HEa AW A
Total @t 100,417 54,709
Note 1: As at 31 December 2020, the property was under development. MEE1:  HR2020%F 128318 @ ZWEEES -

Note 2: As at 31 December 2020, part of the property was under
development.

The Group will further improve the efficiency in development and
operation of our investment properties to ensure stable rental income
growth, and to strengthen earnings sustainability.

Land reserves

Leveraging on the Group’s deep understanding of the property
markets in our key development areas and intensive studies on its
target cities, the Group continued to strategically select and acquire
parcels of land at strategic and advantageous locations in those
regions and cities in order to further develop the Group’s presence
in those markets. As of 31 December 2020, the Group (together with
its joint ventures and associates) had 166 projects with land reserves
amounting to approximately 16,256,313 sg.m., of which 150 projects
were located in the Yangtze River Delta Region, and the remaining 16
projects were located in 26 cities in the Pearl River Delta, Chengdu-
Chongging economic areas, the economic belt of middle reaches of
Yangtze River and other regions.

MisE2: M2020%E128310 @ o WEERED -

AEBBE - FPREREVENRE ELL
BUE - BRESBAREEER - MM
R o

+ i

BESESHMBREEMENISNRZERI K
HEZRTRREANE  NEEBEESE T
BEVWEZSHWE R TAESBERAE
Bt ME—THEAEERZETS
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The following table sets out the GFA of the Group’s land reserves F&RHIIAEE CERIAALDERBENT)
(together with its joint ventures and associates) by geographical #Z 2020512 A31 BIRMIEALE 20 A L i

locations as of 31 December 2020: fEEEEEE
Total land Percentage of
reserves GFA total land bank
+ i 1 L 4 1E
BEREER HE L fl
(sq.m.) (%)
City B (FFHK) (%)
Hangzhou A 4,715,984 29.0%
Wenzhou BN 2,421,849 14.9%
Ningbo il 1,184,037 7.3%
Nanjing P 1,117,896 6.9%
Xuzhou I 1,037,045 6.4%
Chengdu B ED 1,009,514 6.2%
Jiujiang T 946,275 5.8%
Huzhou AN 718,659 4.4%
Taizhou &M 593,807 3.6%
Wuhan % 453,477 2.8%
Zhoushan il 368,095 2.3%
Guangzhou = 337,606 2.1%
Shangrao g 283,103 1.7%
Shanghai e 210,063 1.3%
Foshan A 166,600 1.0%
Jingjiang WEL 156,441 1.0%
Kunshan E I 155,393 1.0%
Xian [lit:a 124,221 0.7%
Suzhou N 100,012 0.6%
Wuxi 15 87,390 0.5%
Jinhua T 27,685 0.2%
New Jersey, U.S. EEIETE TN 18,329 0.1%
Changzhou B 10,790 0.1%
Quzhou gl 10,629 0.1%
Lishui BBk 1,413 0.0%
Total st 16,256,313 100.0%
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group (together with & ZE2020F 12 A31HILFE » AEE (ER
its joint ventures and associates) acquired 40 parcels of quality land HAZLLGERBERA) UEFHRKHARE
primarily in Hangzhou, Wenzhou, Huzhou, Ningbo, Xuzhou, Nanjing, 6,936.7 JLH) 15+ Ak AR EER T & E 47 470
Wuhan, Shanghai, Chengdu, Guangzhou, Taizhou, Zhoushan, Xian M ~ B ~ M ~ 2 « BN~ @R - 3HE -
and New Jersey, U.S., providing a total saleable GFA of new land _E/& ~ K& ~ EM ~ &N« AL - AL KREE
reserves of 5,395,033 sg.m., at an average land cost of approximately — HEF N H40BEL IR - B THAIESRE

RMB6,936.7 per sq.m.. [ 185,395,033 F J7 K H) ¥ L & % -
Particulars of the land parcels are set out in the following table: IR BB BEHIIN TR
The Group’s Total Attributable
Name of Project Equity Interest GFA | Consideration | Consideration Land Cost
R REENER BEER BRE EERE AR
(sq.m.) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB/sq.m.)
(AR¥7R,/
(EEK) | (AR®TR) (AR®T ) F5K)
1 Heping Dexin Center Hangzhou 70.0% 75,045 581,650 407,185 7,750.7
MFEERL it
2 East Fame Wenzhou 54.6% 85,129 363,400 198,525 4,268.8
REE B
3 River Sparkle Wenzhou 49.0% 601,684 2,527,000 1,237,219 4,199.9
TRER M
4 Eastern Mansion Wenzhou 64.0% 323,424 1,064,000 681,386 3,289.8
FRE M
5 Mountain Mansion Ningbo 80.4% 54,312 431,165 346,743 7,938.7
L EEE E3i
6 Zheda Insigma (Yinhu) Innovation Hangzhou 28.0% 136,348 671,391 187,990 4,9241

R8D Park (Phase
WARH (R eFHEEER (Z8) M

7 Starry Park Wuhan 48.9% 145,961 947,360 463,259 6,490.5
ER0E HE

8 Lake View Mansion Hangzhou 38.4% 126,649 1,769,590 679,169 13,972.4
Bl F ikl

9 Hangzhou Digital Trade City Unit 05 Hangzhou 55.0% 85,084 1,185,870 652,229 13,937.6

Land Parcel

MNAFEERNET051IR M

10 Oriental Lake Mansion Hangzhou 24.0% 76,987 262,090 62,902 3,404.3
i M

11 Center Mansion Ningbo 17.3% 140,957 2,252,690 390,391 15,981.4

RG2 R
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The Group’s Total Attributable
Name of Project Equity Interest GFA | Consideration | Consideration Land Cost

R FEENER REER anE EiERE TAA

(sq.m.) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) |  (RMB/sq.m.)
(ARM¥T/
(Frk) [ (ARETR) | (AR%TR) ¥5k)

12 Yangxi New Town Expressway Exit Hangzhou 50.0% 93,763 393,750 196,875 4,199.4
Block S-4-3 Land Parcel (No.26)
FEMH R RN OERS-4-31058 (26%%) oA

13 River Mansion Hangzhou 50.0% 79,915 376,750 188,375 4,714.4
TLERR il

14 Kings Lake Chengdu 38.9% 102,460 1,228,000 477,815 11,985.2
HHER g

15 Corniche Hangzhou 36.7% 182,682 1,418,250 519,930 7,763.5
HRILRE ik

16 Chinoiserie Mansion Xuzhou 27.0% 131,386 725,000 195,750 5,518.1
NER Gl

17 Cloud Villa Chengdu 58.7% 111,767 1,055,080 619,648 9,440.0
e Fk#

18 Central One Mansion Wenzhou 40.0% 210,254 3,600,000 1,440,000 17,1221
TIER il

19 Jingfang Triangle Land Parcel Hangzhou 19.6% 70,652 502,360 98,463 7,110.3
ERZANR M

20 One Park us. 49.0% 38,867 125,288 61,391 3,225.5
One Park EJE

21 Xingchen Jingyuan Nanjing 42.8% 307,688 2,700,000 1,155,060 8,775.1
ERHE MR

22 City Garden Phase | Huzhou 37.6% 126,163 558,630 209,728 4,427.1
RE—H Rilll

23 City Garden Phase Il Huzhou 37.6% 125,077 556,230 208,864 4,447 1
REZH il

24 Xichen Mansion Xi'an 57.3% 124,221 366,170 209,706 2,947.7
ARAT BZ

25 Yinxiu Yunlu Shanghai 51.7% 77,702 1,364,820 705,885 17,564.9
RAZE g

26 Online City Xuzhou 42.6% 113,358 421,200 179,473 3,715.7
ARZR Gl

27 Jiang Yu Tian Jing Phase | Jingjiang 41.0% 103,584 265,182 108,725 2,560.1
TEXGE—H B

28 Jiang Yu Tian Jing Phase Il Jingjiang 41.0% 52,857 135,318 55,480 2,560.1
TEAE_H B
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The Group’s Total Attributable

Name of Project Equity Interest GFA | Consideration | Consideration Land Cost

BEEER AEEMER BEER aRE EERE THERA

(sq.m.) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB/sq.m.)

(AR ,/

(E5%) | (AR%FR) | (AR%Fn) ¥hK)

29 Oriental Mansion Ningbo 44.0% 165,047 1,416,476 623,249 8,582.3
R B

30 New Lanyue Hangzhou 49.0% 41,727 150,000 73,500 3,594.8
R M

31 Qingmanli Hangzhou 10.2% 97,878 1,133,610 115,628 11,581.9
FEE ik

32 Nansha Wanqingsha Town Land Parcel Guangzhou 24.5% 150,832 1,100,200 269,549 7,294.2
HYEED IR BM

33 2020NO.G49 Land Parcel Nanjing 70.0% 54,492 350,000 245,000 6,423.0
2020NO.G49315% AR

34 Center Mansion Hangzhou 40.8% 105,558 1,096,400 447,331 10,386.7
BEIR i

35 Peace Mansion Xuzhou 37.6% 214,903 708,400 266,429 3,296.4
MERE M

36 Yunxi Elegant Courtyard Xuzhou 40.2% 141,877 273,618 109,994 1,928.6
EE T #wM

37 Digital Trade City Unit JG1804-01 Hangzhou 40.2% 79,647 1,073,770 431,441 13,498.6

Land Parcel

THEHETIG1804-01505% M

38 Putuo Donggang Project Zhoushan 51.0% 92,633 572,124 291,783 6,176.2
EHifT Al

39 Feilonghu Project Taizhou 85.0% 177,588 1,592,000 1,353,200 8,964.6
REHER aM

40 Meishan Dongpo Project Chengdu 100.0% 168,975 109,000 109,000 645.1
EM AR g

5,395,033 37,423,732 16,274,240 6,936.7
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HONORS

In 2020, thanks to its robust operation, the Group won many honors
and rewards, including “China’s Top 10 Listed Real Estate Enterprises
in Solvency 2020 (2020F B =B EEEE I TOP10), “Top 50 Real
Estate Enterprises in Yangtze River Delta 2020 (2020 =A&iE~E
5038 2), No. 2 of “Wenzhou Resident Satisfaction Index” (&
MERMEEIEE), No. 4 of “Hangzhou Resident Loyalty Index” (41t
INTHE RAEFEEE), “Top 10 Financial Role Models of Listed Real
Estate Enterprises 2020" (2020 EWHEE+AMISEEERE), “The
5th Golden Hong Kong Stocks Awards — Best Real Estate Company”
(BRESBR-&EMWERR]), No. 22 of “Comprehensive Strength
Ranking of Listed Real Estate Companies’({iE A B4RA B HHET
%), “Most Valuable Real Estate Company for Investment of the Year”
(FEHAREBEMERT), and No. 2 of “Top 10 Listed Real Estate
Enterprises in Wealth Creation” (F B _ETRERE = A& 11058). The
Group has won the title of “China’s Top 100 Real Estate Enterprises”
(PEREEBMR{ZE) for eight consecutive years, ranking the 55th in
2020. These honors and awards highlight the Group’s market position
and indicate that the Group’s business development and performance
have been widely recognized by the market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall performance

During the year ended 31 December 2020, total revenue of the Group
was approximately RMB15,668.8 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 64.7%. Gross profit was approximately
RMB3,902.3 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 27.6%. Gross profit margin was approximately 24.9%,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 7.3 percentage
points. Net profit of the Group increased by approximately 0.17%
year-on-year to approximately RMB2,260.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately 23.4% vyear-on-year to approximately
RMB1,192.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded a total
revenue of approximately RMB15,668.8 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 64.7%. The increase was primarily
attributable to the growth in recognised sales of properties, driven by
an increase of the total GFA delivered to the buyers during the year.
Specifically, revenue from the sales of properties was approximately
RMB15,513.5 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 64.5%, accounting for approximately 99.0% of the total
revenue of the Group; revenue from property construction and project
management services was approximately RMB36.9 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 181.7%, accounting for
approximately 0.2% of the total revenue of the Group; rental income
from the lease of commercial properties was approximately RMB100.4
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 83.5%,
accounting for approximately 0.6% of the total revenue of the Group;
and revenue from hotel operations was approximately RMB18.0
million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 48.7%,
accounting for approximately 0.1% of the total revenue of the Group.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group primarily consists of the costs incurred
directly in relation to the property development and sales activities,
property construction and project management services, lease of
commercial properties and hotel operations.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the cost of sales of the Group
was approximately RMB11,766.5 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of approximately 82.3%.

Gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the gross profit of the
Group was approximately RMB3,902.3 million, representing a
year-on-year increase of approximately 27.6%. The increase was
primarily attributable to the significant increase in revenue from
sales of properties while overall gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 32.2% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 24.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease in overall gross

profit margin by approximately 7.3 percentage points was mainly due
to the lower land and construction cost incurred for projects delivered
in 2019.
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Other income

The Group had other income of approximately RMB331.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, as compared to approximately
RMB81.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The other
income mainly derived from the management and consulting services
provided to the Group’s joint ventures and associates in relation to the
property development projects was approximately RMB205.3 million
(for the year ended 31 December 2019: approximately RMB67.2
million). The increase was primarily attributable to i) an increased
number of joint ventures and associates to which the services were
provided in 2020 as compared to 2019; and ii) the larger scale of
certain projects of joint ventures and associates served in 2020 as
compared to 2019.

Other (losses)/gains - net

The Group recorded net other losses of approximately RMB8.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 (for the year ended 31
December 2019: net other gains of approximately RMB89.0 million).
The Group’s net other losses for the year ended 31 December 2020
mainly included gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss of approximately RMB17.9 million, disposal gains of subsidiaries
approximately RMB24.5 million and exchange losses of approximately
RMB56.4 million. The Group’s net other gains for the year ended 31
December 2019 mainly represented gains on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately RMB34.3 million and
exchange gains of approximately RMB25.5 million.

Fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties

The Group develops and holds certain of its commercial properties
such as commercial centres, office buildings, shopping malls, serviced
apartments and car parks for rental income or capital appreciation,
or both. Any increase or decrease in the Group’s investment property
value is recognised as fair value gains or losses in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recorded fair
value losses on investment properties of approximately RMB26.7
million (for the year ended 31 December 2019: fair value gains on
investment properties of approximately RMB186.2 million), which was
primarily attributable to the fair value losses of Sky GCity Phase | (K%
2 EZ—HA) and Shenxian Garden (##lll/F) of approximately RMB46.0
million and RMB26.8 million respectively while offset by the fair value
gains of Nanjing Xianlinzhigu Industrial Park (BR{IAEAREEE) of
approximately RMB60.1 million.
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Selling and marketing expenses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses slightly increased by
approximately 0.1% vyear-on-year from approximately RMB457.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB457.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Taking
the selling and marketing expenses that was capitalized in contract
acquisition costs into account, total selling and marketing expenses for
the year ended 31 December 2020 increased, compared to the year
ended 31 December 2019. The increase was primarily attributable to
rapid growth in the Group’s contracted sales during the year.

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately 3.6%
year-on-year from approximately RMB720.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB746.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The aforesaid expenses remained stable
during the year and was primarily attributable to (i) strict cost control
on administrative expenses and (ii) no expenses and professional fees
incurred in connection with the global offering during the year (for the
year ended 31 December 2019: approximately RMB16.9 million).

Finance costs - net

Finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 11.4% year-
on-year from approximately RMB431.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB481.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The increase was primarily attributable to
the increase in interest-bearing borrowings for the purposes of land
acquisition and properties development business, and issuance of
senior notes with a principal amount of US$300 million and US$400
million during the second half of 2019 and in 2020 respectively.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The Group accounts for the results of joint ventures and associates
using the equity method, which mainly represent the share of profits
related to the projects delivered during the relevant period that have
been offset by losses incurred by other joint ventures and associates.

HEREHMAX

AEBMHEEREHEASTAEZ2019F12 A
S1ELEFENHARKEAS7 68 ETHE L EMN
EINA01% EFHE2020FE12 A31 HILEEH
PARBE457 9B BT o LT KRG HEX
RER b ZHEREHERAZE - BE2020F
12A31ALLFEZHEREHEATBERES
2019412 A1 AIEFEBATIEM » 323G I E
EEHRFRAAEESNHEERRIER -

THRAX

AEEMTHRAXHBZE2019F12 831 1E
FENHOARE720.7ABTRLIEING3.6%
ZEHZE2020F12A31BLEEFENHARE
T46.7TEBT FNLARAIEREE 2
A2 FR A (i) 39 17 B A S B B R A B AN ) 2 (i) 7
NI EEFER2RBENRIREEER
(B Z=2019F12A31HILFE : HARH16.9

e —

BET) °
AL R A FEE

AEBMBEKABBE2019F12 431 H
HFEENHARELI31 0B ETE LB NLE
11.4% EFHE2020F 12 A31 B IEFEEHHA
R¥481.3E 8L - BEAEMEZRHRAR
TR R R E R ET EE SIS - &
DRIR2019F THF R2020F - BHITAE
A300BBETTNA0EEETMELEE -

DTIEEEEERBENRXE

AEERBEDEBALLERBERANE
BAK AREFETIZREMEBHRARND
HEABNEERNE  ARMNBEHEMAE
CERBENTELENEREH -



2020F E$kE ANNUAL REPORT 2020

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Share of profits of joint ventures and associates decreased by
approximately 49.6% vyear-on-year from approximately RMB1,175.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB592.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
decrease was primarily attributable to (i) the decrease of average
gross profit margin of the properties delivered by the joint ventures
and associates during the year ended 31 December 2020 compared
to the corresponding year in 2019 and hence the decrease of total
net profits recognised by the joint ventures and associates and (ii) the
decrease in average percentage of the Group’s interests held in the
joint ventures and associates which delivered properties during the
year ended 31 December 2020 compared to the corresponding year
in 2019.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses of the Group increased by approximately 16.6%
year-on-year from approximately RMB724.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB845.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was primarily attributable to the
increase in the profit before tax (after excluding share of results of joint
ventures and associates) during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

As a result of the foregoing reasons, the Group’s profit and total
comprehensive income slightly increased by approximately 0.17% from
approximately RMB2,256.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 to approximately RMB2,260.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by approximately 23.4% from approximately RMB1,556.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB1,192.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The basic and diluted earnings per share of the Company is RMBO0.44
per share for the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a
decrease of approximately 26.7% from RMBO0.60 per share for the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management policy
and actively manages its liquidity position with sufficient standby
banking facilities to cope with daily operation and any demands for
capital for future development.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group funded its
operations, working capital, capital expenditure and other capital
requirements primarily from cash generated from its operations, mainly
including proceeds from the pre-sales and sales of properties, receipt
of rental income, income generated from investment properties, as
well as bank loans and borrowings from other financial institutions.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total cash and cash
equivalents (including restricted cash) of approximately RMB15,648.2
million as compared to approximately RMB9,570.1 million as of 31
December 2019. The increase was primarily due to the increase in
proceeds from sales of properties. Substantially all of the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents are denominated in RMB, USD and HKD.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, addition of borrowings
from bank and other financial institutions obtained by the Group
amounted to approximately RMB29,329.4 million and reduction
of borrowings from bank and other financial institutions was
approximately RMB18,489.4 million. As of 31 December 2020,
the Group’s total borrowings from bank and other financial
institutions amounted to approximately RMB25,688.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 73.0% compared to
approximately RMB14,848.1 million as of 31 December 2019.
Amongst the borrowings from bank and other financial institutions,
approximately RMB8,738.5 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB5,540.2 million) will be repayable within one year
and approximately RMB16,949.6 million (as at 31 December 2019:
approximately RMB9,307.9 million) will be repayable after one year.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had total facilities from bank
and other financial institutions of approximately RMB28,719 million
and unused facilities from bank and other financial institutions of

approximately RMB3,030.9 million.
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Credit rating

Our international credit rating agencies endorsed the efforts of the
Company in sales execution, satisfactory cash collection record and
disciplined land acquisition. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Lianhe Ratings Global assigned the
Company’s issuer credit rating at “B” (with “Stable” outlook), “B2”
(with “Stable” outlook) and “BB-" (with “Stable” outlook) respectively.

Senior notes

In January 2020, the Company issued senior notes with a principal
amount of US$200 million due in April 2022 (the “2022 Senior Notes”)
which were listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 40136) on 24
January 2020. The 2022 Senior Notes, bearing interest at a fixed rate
of 11.875% per annum with interest payable semi-annually in arrears,
will mature in April 2022.

In December 2020, the Company issued senior notes with a principal
amount of US$200 million due in December 2022 (the “2022 Senior
Notes II") which were listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
40497) on 4 December 2020. The 2022 Senior Notes Il, bearing
interest at a fixed rate of 9.95% per annum with interest payable semi-
annually in arrears, will mature in December 2022.

The issuance of the abovementioned senior notes was for the purpose
of supplementing existing onshore indebtedness, refinancing working
capital purposes and repayment of existing offshore indebtedness.

Key financial ratios

As of 31 December 2020, the Group’s net gearing ratio (calculated
as the total interest-bearing debts net of restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents divided by total equity) was approximately 75.0%,
an increase of 6.3 percentage points as compared with approximately
68.7% as of 31 December 2019. The increase was primarily
attributable to the increase in borrowings for land acquisition and
property development. The financial leverage of the Group is currently
at a stable and healthy level.
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The Group’s current ratio was calculated based on its total current
assets divided by its total current liabilities as of the respective dates.
The Group’s current ratio had increased from approximately 1.29
times as of 31 December 2019 to approximately 1.38 times as of
31 December 2020. The improvement of current ratio was mainly
due to the significant increase of cash and bank balance and current
receivables balances while the current liabilities increased by a lower
percentage compared to the increase of current assets as of the end
of the Reporting Period.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates its business in China. Other than the
foreign currency denominated bank deposits and senior notes, the
Group did not have any other material direct exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Although RMB depreciated against U.S. dollar and Hong Kong dollar
in 2020, the Directors expect that such fluctuation of RMB’s exchange
rate would not have material adverse effect on the operation of the
Group.

The Group will closely monitor the exchange rate risk regularly and
make foreign exchange hedging arrangement when necessary. The
Group considers that no foreign exchange hedging arrangement is
needed currently.

Pledge of assets

As of 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s borrowings from

bank and other financial institutions were secured by its properties
held for sale, properties under development, land use rights
and investment properties, with carrying value of approximately
RMB30,662.4 million as of 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB21,237.1 million). The Group’s equity interests in
certain subsidiaries were pledged as security for borrowing as at 31
December 2020.
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Commitments AIE

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had commitments that are #ZE2020F12 831 H = KEBE 51418 K &

contracted but not provided as follows: BEFEET -

December 31,

December 31,

2020 2019

2020F 20194

12A31H 12HA31H

(RMB’000) (RMB’ 000)

(AR¥TF ) (AR®F )

Property development activities Y B EED 12,320,814 10,690,499

Property, plant and equipment LE R Y 11,029 12,630

Investments in joint ventures and associates A& &M MEEE QA FIRE 1,313,398 370,239

Investment properties wEME 198,992 345,320

Total &% 13,844,233 11,418,688
Financial guarantees and contingent liabilities HMBERRIAEE

As of 31 December 2020, the Group’s total financial guarantees are & E2020F12 431 H » NEEM M EERE

as follows: IR

December 31,
2020
20204

12A31H
(RMB’000)
(AR T )

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities ~ Bt& T B RVIRIBRLE IR

December 31,
2019

20194
12H31H
(RMB’ 000)
(AR¥T )

for certain purchasers KPR 14,605,341 12,603,058
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of LA &1 ¥ KB E A B8 IR H

joint ventures and associates RER 3,181,893 2,469,100
Guarantee provided for the borrowings BB =F BRI

of third parties R - 193,300
Total &5t 17,787,234 15,265,458
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The Group has arranged bank mortgage financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s property units and provided guarantees
to the relevant banks to secure repayment obligations of such
purchasers. As of 31 December 2020, the maximum amount of
guarantees provided by the Group to the relevant banks for the
mortgage arrangements of the Group’s purchasers amounted
to approximately RMB14,605.3 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB12,603.1 million). These include guarantees which
will be terminated upon the earlier of the following two dates: (i)
the date when the property ownership rights are transferred to the
purchasers, and the related building ownership certificates to which
banks are beneficiaries are registered, or (i) the date when mortgage
loans are settled between the mortgagee banks and the purchasers,
under the circumstance that the purchasers pay off the purchase price
in advance.

Pursuant to the terms of these guarantees, if any of the Group’s
property purchasers default in their repayment obligations to the
banks, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principal together with accrued interest and penalty owed
by the defaulting purchasers to the banks and thereupon the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the relevant
property units. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the mortgage facilities to its purchasers by the relevant banks.

The Group provided guarantees for borrowings of its joint ventures
and associates, which amounted to approximately RMB3,181.9
million as of 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB2,469.1 million). The relevant borrowings were primarily from
banks to finance property development projects of these joint ventures
and associates, whereby the land use rights of the joint ventures and
associates were pledged to the banks and the Group’s guarantee was
provided in addition to the pledges. As the fair value of the relevant
land use rights pledged by the relevant joint ventures and associates
are generally higher than the borrowing amounts, the Group’s credit
risk exposure associated with such guarantee is contained.

The Group did not provide guarantee for borrowings of third parties as
of 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: approximately RMB193.3
million). The amount represented the maximum exposure of the
guarantees provided for the borrowings of the independent third
parties as of the respective balance sheet dates.
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As of 31 December 2020, the Group had no other material contingent
liabilities.

Significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had entered into
the following material acquisitions and disposals:

On 24 June 2020, Createrich Investments LLC (a company established
under the laws of the state of Delaware, U.S. with limited liability and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the purchase
agreement with DMG Investments LLC (a company established
under the laws of the state of Delaware, U.S. with limited liability)
in relation to the acquisition of 49% of the limited liability company
interests of DMG Park Mezz LLC (a company established under the
laws of the state of Delaware, U.S. with limited liability and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of DMG Investments LLC) at a consideration of
US$26,120,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$204,453,600). The
primary asset of DMG Park Mezz LLC is a property, comprising 152
condominium units located at 320 Adolphus Avenue, Cliffside Park,
Bergen County, New Jersey, U.S. Save as aforesaid, the Group did
not make other material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures by the Group during the Reporting Period.

The Group did not make any significant investments during the
Reporting Period.

Future plans for material investments

The Group will continue to invest in its property development projects
and acquire suitable land parcels, if it thinks fit. These investments
will be funded by internal resources and external borrowings. Save as
disclosed above, the Group did not have any future plans for material
investments as of the date of this annual report.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group firmly believes that talent is the most important corporate
resource and always adheres to a people-oriented human resources
development strategy, creating a sound working environment featuring
harmonious development and positive interaction between the Group
and its staff. As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of
2,147 (31 December 2019: 1,617) employees, 60% of which have a
bachelor’s degree or above, forming a team of young, highly educated
and high-quality personnel. Total expenditure on salary and welfare
of the Group’s employees for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately RMB636.2 million (for the year ended 31
December 2019: approximately RMB521.7 million).

Besides, the Group endeavors to establish an incentive system
aligned to the corporate development objective to improve employee
engagement. Meanwhile, with an aim to establish an open-ended
organization, the Group keeps optimizing the organizational structure,
empowers the base-level employees and improves efficiency.

The Group has adopted a system of determining the remuneration of
employees based on the performance of employees. In general, the
Group provides competitive remuneration packages to employees,
which include basic salaries, performance-based rewards and
year-end bonus. The Group also pays social security insurance for the
Group’s employees, including medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, endowment insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment
insurance and housing funds. In addition, the Group has formulated
a project co-investment scheme and has adopted a share option
scheme on 11 January 2019 to fully enhance the enthusiasm of the
Group’s employees.

In respect of employee trainings, the Group provides consistent
and systematic trainings to employees according to their positions
and expertise in order to improve their expertise in the real estate

industry and related sectors. As of 31 December 2020, the Group
provided 204 in-class trainings or professional lectures, to a total of
approximately 1,956 employees.
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Future Prospects

The year 2021 marks the start of China’s “14th Five-Year Plan”.
By then, the effect of the pandemic on domestic economy may
be mitigated and the economic and social activities may return
to normal. As the investment rebounds are led by the fast growth
of infrastructures and real estate investment, the contribution of
consumption will be improved significantly and the supply side will
further speed up growth. It is expected the growth of China’s economy
will pick up significantly by 2021.

Real estate is the cornerstone and stabilizer of the development of
China’s economy. In 2021, as the economy indicators turn positive,
the confidence and market demand in the real estate industry will
also recover soon. However, “houses are for living in and not for
speculative investment” remains the keynote of the development of
the industry. Given the government’s implementation of a system
encouraging both housing purchases and rentals, varied policies for
different cities and the “Three Red Lines”, the land market may be
subject to a tightened financing environment and intensified policies.
By 2021, it is expected that the real estate enterprises will continue
to accelerate the launch of properties for the return of funds and the
real estate industry will start a rational and high-quality development
stage. Against this backdrop, the Group will also keep strictly
controlling financial risk, improving its structure of capital and debts
and diversifying financing channels while expanding scales, in order to
realize sustainable high-quality development.

As the largest economic circle in China, the Yangtze River Delta
region has 8 cities with GDP exceeding RMB1 trillion each, including
Shanghai, Suzhou and Hangzhou, etc., accounting for approximately
one-third of all RMB1 trillion GDP cities in China. Currently, the
implementation of the national strategy to facilitate the integrated
development of the Yangtze River Delta region is accelerating in full,
as reflected by the rapid development of traffic, economy and industry.
The introduction of a large number of high-quality talents is expected
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to provide more solid support on the demand side to the real estate
market in the region, hence a positive market prospect. Engaged in
the real estate industry in the Yangtze River Delta region for years,
the Group has distinctive leading position in the region for its localized
brand, which provides strong support to operation and marketing.
The Group also continues to be engaged in its long-term development
and identifies potential land acquisition opportunities in the Yangtze
River Delta region, as a core metropolitan area with frequent inter-city
population flows and extensive housing demands. Against the new
background, the Group is expected to seize the opportunity from the
high-speed development of this region, continuously explore premium
land resources and further enhance its position in the real estate
industry.

Looking forward, although the prosperity of the real estate industry has
gone, in view of the current downward pressure on the macroeconomy
and people’s changing attitude toward residence, consumption
and culture, the role of the real estate industry in supporting the
development of the economy as a whole in a steady manner cannot
be ignored.

In the post-pandemic era, the real estate industry comes to another
stage of development characterized by bigger disparities and rising
competition in a more refined manner. In the future, the Group will
continue to uphold the management concept of “doing a good
job internally, developing steadily, focusing on customer needs
and creating value for customers”, adhere to the quality image of
“Hangzhou workmanship” to enhance fundamental management,
reduce cost, improve quality, increase efficiency and optimize
resources allocation. Sticking to the strategic layout of “being rooted
in Zhejiang, focusing on the Yangtze River Delta, and extending
to key hub cities of China” and leveraging its extensive experience
of real estate development in the Yangtze River Delta region, the
Group will forge ahead to improve its brand competitive edge and
market position in the four core metropolitan areas and further rely
on its advantage of being an integrated investment and development
operator in order to create better living spaces in cities and support
the sustainable high-quality development of cities. Meanwhile, the
Group will review the situation and grasp investment opportunities to
maximize profitability, realize “high-quality development” and provide
satisfiable investment returns to investors in a sustainable manner.
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The following table sets out the GFA breakdown of the Group’s
land reserves (together with its joint ventures and associates) by

geographical location as of 31 December 2020:

Under |Held for future

TREIWAEE (EREGLECERBENFR)
HZE2020F12 A31 BRI B8 o/ i
fREEEEEERE -

Total land

Completed development | development reserves
BRI EER | BERAREE | ttRELE
Rentable

Saleable | GFA held for GFA under
GFA unsold investment | development | Planned GFA Total GFA

AETHE | HERENHA EEH
BEEE | HEEEEER BERE | RUREEDE HREER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHX) (FHX) (FHX) (FHX) (FHX)

Real estate projects developed WEARBRNNEER
by our subsidiaries

Hangzhou M 88,510 134,748 1,942,781 93,763 2,259,802
Wenzhou B 42187 17,071 1,606,756 1,666,014
Nanjing BR 27,738 60,509 495,359 226,602 810,208
Ningbo B 6,595 697,599 704,194
Xuzhou M 34,791 72,691 338,052 189,123 634,657
Taizhou an 39,109 15,755 170,558 177,588 403,010
Chengdu XD 219,157 168,975 388,132
Huzhou M 98,744 13,082 200,222 312,048
Shangrao i 283,108 283,103
Wuhan RE 221,146 221,146
Jingjiang BT 103,584 52,857 156,441
Kunshan B 155,393 155,393
Shanghai s 58,175 77,701 135,876
Xi'an [ 124,221 124,221
Suzhou #M 100,012 100,012
Zhoushan ponil 1,081 92,633 93,714
Foshan il 88,903 88,903
Wuxi 337 87,390 87,390
Lishui Bk 1,413 1,413
Sub-total PNt 340,168 372,031 6,911,937 1,001,541 8,625,677
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Under |Held for future Total land
Completed development | development reserves

BRI ERT | BERRER | ItRRE2E

Rentable
Saleable | GFA held for GFA under
GFA unsold investment | development | Planned GFA Total GFA
REMHE | HERENT EEH
BEEE | HEREAER BEEE | RAREER AEEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHX) (FHK) (EHXK) (E7K) (FHK)

Projects held by our joint ventures RELERBER

Hangzhou M 177,414 70,312 441,799 79,547 769,072
Nanjing BR = = 307,688 : 307,688
Wenzhou M - - 210,254 - 210,254
Taizhou aM 190,797 - 190,797
Ningbo =) - - 165,047 : 165,047
Guangzhou EM - - 150,832 - 150,832
Zhoushan A 47,673 - 57,409 - 105,082
Jinhua SE 17,282 - - - 17,282
Huzhou M 9,423 - - - 9,423

Sub-total Nt 442,589 70,312 1,333,029 79,547 1,925,477
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Under |Held for future Total land
Completed development | development reserves

BRI HER | BEARER | tHERERE

Rentable
Saleable | GFA held for GFA under

GFA unsold investment | development | Planned GFA Total GFA

REWHE | BERENT EES

BEEE | HAEEEEER BEEE | RAEEER HREHER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(EHXK) (EHX) (FHK) (FHK) (FHK)

Projects held by our associated Bed¥

companies HHEE
Hangzhou M 153,286 36,876 1,496,948 : 1,687,110
Jivjiang T - = 946,275 : 946,275
Chengdu K # - - 621,382 : 621,382
Wenzhou M 164,280 = 381,301 : 545,581
Xuzhou M - - 187,486 214,903 402,388
Huzhou M 11,973 - 260,138 125,077 397,188
Ningbo E) = = 314,796 : 314,796
Wuhan B = = 232,332 : 232,332
Guangzhou EM 880 = 185,894 : 186,774
Zhoushan Fl - - 169,299 : 169,299
Foshan il - - 77,697 - 77,697
Shanghai i 32,963 3,376 37,846 - 74,185
Us. e 17,909 420 : : 18,329
Changzhou B2 10,790 - - - 10,790
Quzhou BN 10,629 - - - 10,629
Jinhua tE 10,403 - - - 10,403
Sub-total Nt 413,113 40,672 4,911,394 339,980 5,705,158
Total &% 1,195,870 483,015 13,156,360 1,421,068 16,256,313
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The following table sets out a summary of the Group’s property F&RFIRR2020F12 31 HAEE Y ¥IEH

projects as at 31 December 2020: ZHE
Existing Use
City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location of the Project | Lease Expiry
FiEsm 2R /KR HRAMRR R EANAERE | RONREH
Investment  Hangzhou Sky City Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2017) No.19 Residential and 2058
Properties commercial
RENZ M =B #I BREL 0171985 Al
Hangzhou Elegant Mansion Under Development  Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2017) No. 41 Residential 2087
ikl NEER idd MBEL01741 5t fiz
Hangzhou Hangzhou Wings Gompleted Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2013) No.48 Commercial 2053
il filzE %I TG (201348588 [
Hangzhou Douhuigiantang Completed Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2017) No.17 Residential and 2057
commercial
i #esn 31 MBEL 0171755 [553
Hangzhou Zheda Insigma (Yinhu) Innovation R&D  Completed Fu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2011] No.30 Commercial 2053
Park Project (Phase Il
i AR (50) B RER (28) #T EHEL 2011305 [
Hangzhou Hangzhou ONE Completed Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2013) No.71# Commercial 2057
fiM FMONE %I RBEL017TI#85 [
Hangzhou Artificial Intelligence Industrial Park Gompleted Land Parcel 330108003029GB00031 Industrial 2052
fiM NEZE %I 330108003029GB0031 1%
Wenzhou Dexin SSAW Boutique Hotel Completed Zongdi No. 3303040180040015 Commercial 2056
M BERERRE %I TR 3303040180040015 Bx
Huzhou Delan Square Completed Land Parcel 001-106-000-00038-000 Residential and 2046
commercial
bl BERS #I 001-106-000-00038-000 [5]3
Taizhou Shenxian Garden Phase | Under Development  Baitazhen Land Parcel 2015119 Commercal 2057
aM BUEXLEBEE-B ki B#2015119 858 [
Xuzhou Sky Scraper A Completed Land Parcel 2010-08G Residential and 2050
commercial
M NEBALR RT 2010-08G Bl
Xuzhou Sky Scraper B Completed Land Parcel 2010-01G Residential and 2051
commercial
M NEHBIHR %I 2010:016 i
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlinzhigu (CJ) Phase | Completed No.Ning 2018GY04 Science 2068
education
BR ARIREAC) 5 31 NO.Z2018GY04 E
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlinzhigu (CJ) Phase |l Completed No.Ning 2018GY05 Science 2068
education
AR BRIMEAC)-H #I NO.E2018GY05 B
Shanghal Dexin ¢ Zhizao 368 Project Completed Songjiang Land Parcel No.905 Industrial 2052
15 B o B5368ER BT HNT05% 4 1%
Shanghai Zhihui Gang Completed Fengxian District Xiduzhen No.10 Jiefang 80/11 Qiu Industrial 2055

3 L2 $®T EERREEI0A801 L I%
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Primary
Intended Use
City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location of the Project
BRE
FrEsim 58/ HAMRR R RERR
Development  Hangzhou Zenith Garden Completed Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2009] No. 50 Residential
Properties i ER BT TBEE ! [2000]50% fiz
S Hangzhou East Star Completed Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2015] No. 3 Pengbu R21-08  Residential
il RREH %I REEL2015]3% ZER21-08 141 =
Hangzhou Junshang Palace Completed Hang [2016] Land Parcel No. 8 Changmu Unit R21-01B Residential
i Pree %I f[2016]8% REB TR21-01BIHR i
Hangzhou River Qiantang Completed Hang Dajiangdong Chu Chu Land Parcel (2016) No. 5 Zongdi Residential
i ALRE %I RALREAL (201655 R =
Hangzhou Montnorth Completed Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2017) No. 8 Residential and
commercial
i BRI $®T KBTI [53
Hangzhou Majestic Mansion (EIiL ) Completed Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017) No. 14 Residential and
commercial
i EVI %I BRELLOITI4SLA [5]:3
Hangzhou New Lanyue Completed Yu Zheng Chu Chu (2017) No. 10 Commercial
i HER ®T AHEL (20171108 [E
Hangzhou Genter Hangzhou Completed Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parce! (2016) No. 31 Commercial
M B2 #I REGL 01631 305 A%
Hangzhou Elegant Mansion Under Development Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2017] No. 41 Residential
il NEEH i3 MBEL[017)41 58 =z
Hangzhou Shixin Palace Under Development Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018) No. 4 Residential and
commercial
M i ki AU (201845505 ]33
Hangzhou Dajiang One Under Development Hang Dajiangdong [2017] Land Parcel No. 9 Residential and
commercial
il AIES i3 RATRP0170E AR i3
Hangzhou Golden Mansion(t £ £ ) Under Development Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018) No. 2 Residential and
commercial
i ERER i AL (2018)24858 A
Hangzhou Bay Cloud Under Development Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018) No. 12 Residential
HiM BEERSRN i3 SR 201812t iz
Hangzhou Time Mansion Under Development Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018) No. 19 Residential and
commercial
il BRAR i3 BHRL 018195 5% Al
Hangzhou Qiantang Mansion Under Development Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 34 Residential
fiM FEEH i3 B EAIH 2018345 frz
Hangzhou Dexin Yunchuan Business Center Completed Xihu District Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2018) No. 20 Commercial
il BEZNBEPL %I FARAB 2018205 08 2 B Bx
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City Project/Phase

iz 1

Hangzhou Chinoiserie Mansion

i NER

Hangzhou Huanyi City

M REH

Hangzhou Ganal Mansion

i ENEH

Hangzhou Dexin Konggang City

il RN

Hangzhou Time City

fiM BELR

Hangzhou Yuefenghua

fiM BmE

Hangzhou Yuehangli

il )

Hangzhou Yin'aowan

M H&E

Hangzhou Chenguangli

M REE

Hangzhou Yunwang Puyuan

i 2R

Hangzhou Heping Dexin Center

M AR

Hangzhou Lake View Mansion(E3# 2 %)

M iR

Hangzhou Hangzhou Digital Trade City Unit 05 Land
Parcel

fiM NS FERAE 055

Hangzhou Oriental Lake Mansion

M ZE

Hangzhou River Mansion

M TLERR

Hangzhou Corniche

M HEIRE

Project Status

ERHR

Under Development
i

Under Development
ki

Under Development
ki

Under Development
ki

Under Development
i

Under Development

i

Under Development

kR

Under Development

i3

Under Development

g
Under Development
i
Under Development
g
Under Development
it
Under Development

i3
Under Development
g
Under Development
4
Under Development
i

Project Location

TR it

Xiao Znheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2018] No. 24 Shushan Unit
BHELL018ME T BT IR

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2017) No. 95
BEHI017)05% 05

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 2
RBEHL 0192588

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2013) No. 2
BHEIL 013254

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 6
AU (201965048

Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 22

BB (2019225054
Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 25

ERE 01925508
Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 22

BHEL (201922805
Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 61

BRI E01961 505

Fu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2019) No. 9
BHFAL (20190505

Wenhui Unit XC0402-B1/B2-02

B ETTXC0402-B1/B2-02

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 8
R [2020]8%

Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 9

RIEIL[202019%

Fushan Unit XH2006-07 Land Parcel

I ETTXH2006-0738%

Jian Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 27
BRI [2019]27%

Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel (2020) No. 25
BHEAL (2020)05%

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRE
RERR
Residential
fiz
Commercial
[
Residential
fiz
Commercial
[
Residential
fix
Residential and
commercial
Af
Residential and
commercial
i
Residential and
commercial
i
Residential and
commercial
Al
Residential
frz
CGommercial
A%
Residential
i
Residential

fr=
Commercial
FE
Residential
i
Residential
frz
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Primary
Intended Use
City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location of the Project
BRE
FrEsim 58/ HAMRR R RERR
Hangzhou Jingfang Triangle Land Parcel Under Development Hang Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 39 Commercial
i SH-AA i B [2020)30% Bx
Hangzhou Qingmanli Under Development Xiao Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 44 Residential
i e i3 B [2000] 443 [z
Hangzhou Center Mansion Under Development Fu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No. 22 Residential
i 2R i3 EHRL (20201205 iz
Hangzhou Digital Trade Gity Unit JG1804-01 Land ~ Held for Future Yu Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2020] No.33 Residential
Parcel Development
i HTHENETIGI804-015% 1 AHFE[2020]33% fz
Hangzhou Yangxi New Town Expressway Exit Block  Held for Future Jian Zheng Chu Chu Land Parcel [2019] No. 26 Residential
S-4-8 Land Parcel (No.26) Development
i FERHERLORIAS-4-3R06%)  HE RRE[2019]26% [z
Wenzhou Bolin Residence Completed Quhai Lougiaohengyu Unit B-01 Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
el SARAR BT BSERREASTB-01E [53
Wenzhou No. 1 Lakeside Completed Wautian West Unit B-20 Land Parcel Residential
bl 0B %I RERETB-2044% iz
Wenzhou Haipai Mansion Phase | Completed Quhai D-06a-02 Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
bl BEER—4 %I £1/8D-06a-02 31
Wenzhou Haipai Mansion Phase Il Completed Quhai D-06a-01 Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
it BEER_H %I E1/8D-06a-01 i
Wenzhou Grade Mansion Completed QOuhai B-18 Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
bl iz} %I E/8B-184% At
Wenzhou Grand Kingdom Completed Quhai B-05 Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
il AbiE %I B9B-0543% i
Wenzhou Borui Palace Completed Land Parcel 2016XG004 Residential and
commercial
el e R 2016XG0045% t
Wenzhou Wenzhou Courtyard Completed Qi Dou Laotucun G08, C09 Land Parcel Residential
il EHAR BT HAZERC08 - CO9i3E iz
Wenzhou Yueqing Palace Completed Leqing Central District Land Parcel G-b3 Residential
B £ BT LETROEG-H3R iz
Wenzhou Country Garden Completed Wenzhou Economy Technology Development District Jinhaiyuan  Residential and
District Land Parcel D-03a commercial
et -4 BT AMEERTHEESERED- 03 R i
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Primary
Intended Use
City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location of the Project
BRE
FrEsim B ERHR B A it RERE
Wenzhou Nine Villa Completed QOuhai District Wutian New District A-4-02a Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
pl 15k BT BSREMMEA4-0200R 53
Wenzhou Time Mansion Completed QOuhai Center South B-35 Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
it BRAE %I BgPLEB-35 533
Wenzhou Courtyard in Longwan Completed Yonggiang North Piangu Yaoxi South Unit Land Parcel 12-H-18b  Residential and
commercial
il B2k %I KSR BEXEET12-H18045% 51
Wenzhou Todown Completed Wenzhou Minying Economy Technology Industrial Base Land Residential
Parcel A-24b
il ) /3l BNEEEERREXEDA-203 fiz
Wenzhou |deal Mansion Completed Yonggjiang North Pianqu Longshui Unit Land Parcel YB-04-J-08a  Residential
it BEZH %I K& I R EEKETYB-04-J-08ai 5% iz
Wenzhou Gorgeous Palace Completed Qi Dou 04-C-14~18 Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
il 5EE %I +#04-C-14-18485% A
Wenzhou Cloud Class Completed Wautian New District D-1-06a Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
il 2% BT EBHED-1-06ait34 Al
Wenzhou Majestic Mansion (E117) Under Development Leqing Central District Partial Land Parcel E-b11-1 Residential
B WRn id4 ZETRLEEL1-1 B iz
Wenzhou Philippe Cloud Under Development Jinhaiyuan District Land Parcel C-09 Residential and
commercial
bl REN i3 £BRRC-00H5E A
Wenzhou Ruian Mansion Under Development Land Parcel 2018XG032 Residential
it EnE ids 2018XG032%% i3
Wenzhou Center Mansion (#1E) Under Development Land Parcel 2018XG033 Residential and
commercial
b HE g 2018XG033%: A
Wenzhou The Riverside Under Development Taohuadao T05-07 Land Parcel Residential and
commercial
M ik g HhTEST05-0750 Af
Wenzhou Central Mangion (2R 2) Under Development Yongjia County 3303240022019006 Residential
bt 2RE idd XE££3303240022019006 fiz
Wenzhou City Lakeside Under Development Wenzhou S1 Line Longxia Station A-120 Land Parcel Residential

bl Eiig kg MM SRS ERIA- 120008 %




City

Fresim

Wenzhou

bl

Wenzhou

2

Wenzhou

2

Wenzhou

2

Wenzhou

bl

Wenzhou

2

Huzhou

il

Huzhou

il
Huzhou
bl
Huzhou
il
Huzhou
il

Huzhou

2020F E$kE ANNUAL REPORT 2020

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Project/Phase

BB /K

Jiangyuewan

1RE
Fenghui

L

East Fame

F2E
River Sparkle

TEZEYR
Eastern Mansion

FRE
Central One Mansion

TUER
Xishan Luxury

pAIES
Shang Cheng

iw]

Yingxi Gourtyard
BEAR
Eminent Mansion
HEr

Xingchen Mansion
ERHE

Yunxi Mansion

2R
Time Mansion
(VN
Yunxi Villa
ZLHR

Project Status

BEAR

Under Development

i3
Under Development

kg

Under Development

i

Under Development

ki
Under Development

il
Under Development

kg
Completed

®T
Completed

BT
Completed
®I
Completed
%1
Completed
®I
Completed

®T
Completed
%I
Completed
®I

Project Location

Bt

Taohuadaopian District T05-14a Land Parcel

IR ET05- 1425
Land Parcel 2019XG016

2019XGO16%: 53

Wenzhou Economy Technology Development District Jinhaiyuan

District Land Parcel D-06b
BN ERTHEE S FERD-060iE

Yongjia Oubei Urban New District Qianpai - Wangjiawu

KEBILHTHEAE-TX5

Wenzhou Economy Technology Development District Jinhaiyuan

District Land Parcel C-08b
AN EERREESBREC- 0801

Wenzhou Binjiang Business District Land Parcel 03-02-21

BB TARE03-02-21 105
Land Parcel 001-120-000-00588-000

001-120-000-00588-000
Land Parcel (2010)100

(2010)100%: %

Land Parcel 2016-005

2016-005

Land Parcel 2011-078-1

2011-078-1

Deqing County Land Parcel 2015(393)
BIEZ00150309) 5%

Land Parcel 2010-086

2010-086

Land Parcel 2017-030
2017-030

Land Parcel 2011-078-2
2011-078-2

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRE
RERR
Residential and

commercial
i
Residential and

commercial
i
Residential and

commercial
i

Residential and

commercial
[
Residential and

commercial
[
Residential and

commercial
Al
Residential and

commercial
[
Residential and

commercial
i
Residential
iz
Residential
iz
Residential
iz
Residential and

commercial
i
Residential
i
Residential
frz
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Primary
Intended Use
City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location of the Project
BRE
FrEsim B ERHR B A it RERE
Huzhou Dothink Major Completed Land Parcel 2017-33# Residential
h -1 %I 2017-33¢ =
Huzhou Chunfeng Courtyard Completed Land Parcel 2017-50/51# Residential
A FRE %I 2017-50/514 i
Huzhou Majestic Mansion (=7 Completed Land Parcel 2017-335 Residential and
commercial
bl RRF #I 2017-3% 532
Huzhou Fengoi Yunlu Completed Land Parcel 2017-060 Residential
M BEZR %I 2017-060 £
Huzhou Gaofeng Village Project Under Development Land Parcel 2017-343 Commercial
il BEER ki 2017-343 [
Huzhou Asthetic Garden Under Development Land Parcel 2017-401-1 Residential
M EE i3 2017-401-1 s
Huzhou Central Mansion(&/& T L) Under Development Land Parcel 2018-038 Residential and
commercial
il EETLH i3 2018-038 Al
Huzhou Deqing Moganshan 049 Land Parcel Under Development Land Parcel 2017-049 Commercial
il @EETl040ts2 g 2017-049 [
Huzhou City Garden Phase | Under Development Fuxi Street Land Parcel 2019-009-1 Residential
il RE—H kg B21HiE2019-000-1 frE
Huzhou City Garden Phase Il Held for Future Fuxi Street Land Parcel 2019-009-2 Residential
Development
il RE_H i BEHE2019-009-2 fiz
Ningbo Qriental Residence Completed Ningbo Guojia Gaoxin District Land Parcel GX08-01-04 Residential
ER RR $I ERAFFMEGX08-01-0431% fiz
Ningbo Celebrity Mansion(Z %) CGompleted Ciguanhaiwei Land Parcel 1201537#-B Residential
B 2R %I EBBEI2015374-BI0R fiz
Ningbo Courtyard in Jiangnan Completed Suntangbeilu Land Parcel 14B, D Residential
B TAAR %I Fitk14B DR frE
Ningbo Lake City Realm Under Development Yongtuzigao (2018) No. 08006 Residential
g gg0 s B 1 &4E(2018080065% fiz
Ningbo Huchengdajing Under Development Yinzhou District 06-03-02#[Dongaian Lake] Land Parcel Residential
B RS g4 SR06-03-024REH 5% i
Ningbo Yunchengdajing Under Development Land Parcel 2019-85 Residential and
commercial
B ERAS i 2019-8533% e
Ningbo Xiaofeng Yinyue Mansion Under Development Land Parcel Haishu District HS17-03-07 Residential

2R BROAR iges {SEREHS17-03-07 [tz
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City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location of the Project
BRE
FrEsim 58/ HAMRR R RERR
Ningbo Mountain Village Under Development Land Parcel Yong Chu Chu 2020-005 Residential
1 W2 EER i3 i H12020-0055% i
Ningho Center Mansion (R E) Under Development Land Parcel Yong Chu Chu 2020-024 Residential
ER RE ki B L12020-04% fz
Ningbo Oriental Mansion Under Development Land Parcel Yong Chu Chu 2020-103 Residential
i &5 il B FA1ti2020-1085% fiz
Taizhou Jiangshan Mansion Phase | Completed Beichengjiedao Puxi No.2 Residential and
commercial
aM il —f@—* ®T bRy TiVs [
Taizhou Jiangshan Mansion Phase |l Completed Beichengjiedao Puxi No. 1 Residential and
commercial
Al T-m=§ %I JHEERRR Al
Taizhou Shenxian Garden Phase Il Completed Land Parcel G2018160 Commercial
a BIEXIEEE_S %I 62018160 [
Taizhou Xihu Yunzhuang Completed Yuhuanxincheng (Xuanman Phrase ll) Jiankangyangshengxiaozhen  Residential and
Phrase | Land Parcel commercial *
Science
education
a iyl %I TR (R 8 R - FREE
Taizhou Feilonghu Project Held for Future Land Parcel Located at the Palace East fo the Tongjiang Road ~ Residential
Development and North to the Xiandai Road, Lugjao District
a B f RERMIRNR  REABMA—0R fixz
Zhoushan Zhoushan Palace Completed Donggang New District 0580-ZS-DG-07 Kong Gui Unit 42-1 Land  Residential and
Parcel commercial
Al AL 3T RAEHE0560-25-DG-07 R E 42- 13858 i3
Zhoushan Majestic Mansion (£7) Completed Daishan 2017-11 Residential and
commercial
Al AR %I 112017115 At
Zhoushan Celebrity Mansion(Z ) Completed Daishan 2017-10 Residential and
commercial
Al ER %I f1112017-10% i3
Zhoushan Golden Mansion(£ %) Under Development Zhoushanshi Putuogu North Pianqu H-29 Residential
Al B i AT ERE LR EH-205% frz
Zhoushan Hancheng Under Development Zhoushanshi Putuogu North Pianqu B-07 Residential
Al i idd AFEREL BHEB-0THA fz
Zhoushan Putuo Donggang Project Held for Future Zhoushanshi Putuoqu Donggang New District Land Parcel No.  Residential and
Development 42-5 commercial
Al BB e AUTERERENEA2-55 R At
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Primary
Intended Use
City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location of the Project
BRE
FrEsim B ERHR B A it RERE
Quzhou Quzhou Mansion Completed Quzhou West District Land Parcel E2-5 Residential
B ERE $®T EHAERE2-SR fiz
Quzhou Oriental Residence Completed Qujiangau Dongjidadao Land Parcel No.5 Residential and
commercial
B iR R®I EIERIAETIR [
Quzhou Celebrity Mansion(E %) Completed Qujiangau Dongjidadao Land Parcel No.7 Residential and
commercial
B ER %I EIBRTARTHIR [31
Jinhua Courtyard in Jiangnan Completed Land Parcel BDC3307231201729857348 Residential
&% TEAR #I BDC3307231201729857348 i
Jinhua Celebrity Mansion (2 7%) Completed North of Hubin Road, West of Jianshe Road, Beiling New District, ~ Residential and
Wuyi County commercal
2% R 3T REGIENEMERIL - BRENE [5i
Jinhua Yu Xihu Completed Jinhua [2017] Land Parcel No. 20 Residential
&% HEHR #I SE[2017] 2055k =z
Lishui Lake Courtyard Completed Land Parcel 20161701 Residential and
commercial
Bk T %I 20161701 [5]:3
Xuzhou Imperial Cullinan Completed Land Parcel 2017_11G, Land Parcel 2017_11G Residential and
commercial
Gl BE4 %I 2017_11G 2017_11G A
Xuzhou Celebrity Mansion (2 %) Under Development Land Parcel 2018-4 Residential and
commercial
M ER ki 2018-45 504 At
Xuzhou Academy Mansion Under Development Land Parcel 2019-21 Residential
M L} id4 2019-21 50 iz
Xuzhou Wings of Future Under Development Land Parcel 2019-45 Residential and
commercial
Gl AR E g 2010-455 458 At
Xuzhou Chinoiserie Mansion Under Development Land Parcel 2020-4 Residential
Gl NER il 2020-4%:303% fiz
Xuzhou Online City Under Development Land Parcel 2020-19 Residential
Gl AR g 2020-1950 4% frz
Xuzhou Peace Mansion Held for Future Land Parcel 2020-20 Residential
Development
M RSN fi 2000-20§ 5% iz
Xuzhou Yunxi Elegant Courtyard Held for Future Land Parcel 2020-32 Residential
Development

Gl B g 2020-325 3% i3
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City Project/Phase Project Status Project Location of the Project
BRE
FrEsim 58/ HAMRR R RERR
Nanjing Oriental Courtyard Under Development Land Parcel 2019G11 Residential
ER EREH i3 2019611 i
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlinzhigu (FG1) Under Development Land Parcel No.2019G40 Business services
AR BRIHEARGY) ig=S NO.2019G40 ik mRRA
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlinzhigu (IG2) Under Development Land Parcel No. Ning 2019GY14 Science education
BR BRIHERIGY) g NO.Z2019GY14 iEE
Nanjing Jiuxi Mansion Under Development Land Parcel No. Lishui 2019G15 Residential
BR UEH ki NO.Z7k2019G15 fz
Nanjing Xingchen Jingyuan Under Development Land Parcel No.2020G41 Residential
I ERHE i3 NO.2020G41 iz
Nanjing Land Parcel 2020NO.G49 Held for Future Land Parcel 2020NO.G49 Residential and
Development commercial
HR 2020NO.GA49M % #1 2020NO.GA4 % A
Nanjing Nanjing Xianlinzhigu (E) Held for Future Temporary Named Land Parcel No. Ning 2013GY31 Science education
Development
AR ERIIHEAE f ZENO. Z2013GY31 iEE
kunshan Park Vision Under Development Kun Di Wang [2019] Land Parcel Guazi No. 2-3 Residential and
commercial
Il HERRLE ki E 201987 2- 3504 532
Jingjiang Jiang Yu Tian Jing Phase | Under Development Jing Chu Land Parcel 2019 Gua No.31, 32 Residential and
commercial
B TERE—H kg H#2019831 - 325 ]33
Jingjiang Jiang Yu Tian Jing Phase Il Held for Future Jing Chu Land Parcel 2019 Gua No.31, 32 Residential and
Development commercial
B TERE-H #1 ER2019831 - 2% i
Wuxi Elegant Yunxi Under Development Land Parcel Xi Guo Tu (Jing) 2019-12 Residential and
commercial
&5 ERLE il $HELT (£8)2019-12 Al
Suzhou Wanglanting Under Development Wujiang Gaoxin District (Shengzezhen) Ballonggiaolu East Land  Residential
Parcel (WJ-J-2019-023)
B 2RE ki RIIGHE (R2E) ARBRRERWI-J-2019-028) i3
Changzhou Changzhou Celebrity Mansion (£MERT)  Completed Land Parcel J2X20180702 Residential and
commercial
EM FNERR %I J2X20180702 i3
Shanghai Yinxiu Yunlu Under Development Land Parcel 202012601 Residential
9 EAZE i3 202012601 fz
Shangrao Celebrity Mansion(Z ) Under Development Land Parcel DEB2018014, Land Parcel DEB2018015 Residential
s ER i DEB2018014 + DEB2018015 i3
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BEEW

City

Fresim

Jiujiang

AL
Chengdu

w#
Chengdu
K#
Chengdu

]
Chengdu
K#
Chengdu

K#
Guangzhou
B
Guangzhou
EM

Foshan

Gl
Foshan

il
Wuhan
Wuhan

Wuhan

BE

X'an

BZ

New Jersey, U.S.

£RHERAN

paii

Project/Phase

Jiujiang Mansion

AILE]
Guanlan Courtyard

BRAR
Jinxiutiancheng
BRAH
Kings Lake

HHEE

Cloud Villa

e

Meishan Dongpo Project

EMAR

Golden Mileage

SEER

Nansha Wangingsha Town Land Parcel
EDEEN B

Langging Yuan

R
Jiangnanyin Mansion

STHE

Courtyard in Jiangnan
TAAR
Chenguangli

Fi2

Starry Park
ERDE
Xichen Mansion
i)z

One Park

One Park

Project Status

ERARR

Under Development

i

Under Development

i
Under Development
ki
Under Development

ki

Under Development

Vil

Held for Future
Development

fi

Completed

3T

Under Development

ki

Under Development

i3

Under Development

g
Under Development
il
Under Development

i3

Under Development
g

Under Development
i3

Completed

BRI

Project Location

TR it

Land Parcel DGD2017027, Land Parcel DGD2017028-A, Land
Parcel DGD2017028-B

DGD2017027 ~ DGD2017028-A - DGD2017028-B

Tianfu New District Shigao Land Parcel No. 34

AFHERRUHIR

Tianfu New District Shigao Land Parcel No. 16, 19, 20
AFRER16 19 20511

Land Parcel TF2020-10

TF2020-10343%

Land Parcel TF(07)2020-09
TF(07)2020-0935%

Land Parcel D-232

D-232

Land Parcel 83101265A19001
83101265A19001

Land Parcel 2020NJY-7
2020NJY-7

Land Parcel TD2019(GM)WGO018

TD2019(GMWG0018
Land Parcel TD2019(CCJXG0004

TD2019(CC)XG0004

Wuhan Land Parcel P(2018) No. 48
REP018)48% 0%

Wuhan Land Parcel P(2019) No. 100

HEPRO19)1005 5

Land Parcel P(2019) No. 017
P019)0175% 853

Land Parcel HX1-(28)-124
HX1-(28)-124

N/A

Primary
Intended Use
of the Project
BRE
RERR
Residential and
commercial
A
Residential and
commercial
i
Residential
fiz
Residential and
commercial
[553
Residential
fiz
Residential and
commercial
Al
Residential
iz
Residential
=z
Residential and
commercial
i
Residential and
commercial
At
Residential
frz
Residential and
commercial
At
Residential
frE
Residential
i
Residential and
commercial

[
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes:

Data on site area have been excerpted from the information contained in
the relevant land use rights certificate and housing title certificate (or real
estate title certificate) or, if there is no relevant land use rights certificate,
from the data on site area in the land grant agreement.

With respect to the GFA, the data on a completed project have been
excerpted from the housing title certificate (or real estate title certificate)
or documents of acceptance; the data on a project under development
or planning shall be excerpted from the information (with a deviation of no
more than 3% from the actual GFA) contained in the relevant construction
work planning permit or construction work commencement permit or,
if there is no construction work planning permit, from the data on the
capacity building area in the land grant agreement.

Leasable GFA refers to the area from which rental income can be
generated.

A property is considered as “sold” after the Group entered into the relevant
purchase agreement with and has delivered it to the customer. A property
is deemed to have been delivered to the customer after it has passed the
acceptance check. A property is considered as “pre-sold” in the event that
the Group has entered in the relevant purchase agreement but has not yet
delivered it to the customer.

Refers to the date on which the Group obtained the construction work
commencement permit or the date estimated by the Group.

Refers to the date on which the Group obtained or is expected to obtain
the pre-sale permit of the project, based on the internal records of the
Group.

Refers to the date on which acceptance examination upon completion is
obtained or the expected date of completion.

Based on the actual equity interests held by the Group in the relevant
project companies pursuant to PRC laws.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEEBNEEHS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board consists of 7 Directors, of whom 3 are executive Directors,
1 is a non-executive Director and 3 are independent non-executive
Directors. Our Board is responsible for and has general powers for the
management and conduct of our business.

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (#—¥), aged 54, is the founder of our Group and
has been our Director since 16 January 2018. He was re-designated
as an executive Director and the chairman of our Board on 14 August
2018. He is the chairman of the nomination committee. He was also
appointed as a director of Tak Yick International Limited (“Tak Yick”)
and Dexin Holding (Hong Kong) Limited (“Dexin HK”) on 7 February
2018 and 22 March 2018, respectively. He is also a director of certain
members of the Group. Mr. Hu Yiping is the father of Mr. Hu Shihao,
our non-executive Director and one of our Controlling Shareholders.
He is also one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Hu Yiping is
primarily responsible for overall development and investment strategies
and major business decisions of our Group. He has around 25 years
of experience in the PRC real estate industry. He established Dexin
Real Estate Group Co., Ltd (‘Dexin Real Estate”) on 1 September 1995
and has been the director and chairman of the board of directors
since then.

Mr. Hu Yiping is the president of the Zhejiang Province Real Estate
Industry Association* (VL& EHERE). He is also the chairman of
Huzhou Chamber of Commerce in Hangzhou* (fi/H T #M E &) and
the president of the New Urban Industry Committee of the General
Association of Zhejiang Entrepreneurs* (M€ HMEEXE S
). Mr. Hu Yiping graduated from Zhejiang School of Construction*
CIMTEBETEER) in Zhejiang, the PRC in January 1987 with a
diploma degree (1 EE2[F) in Civil Engineering Specialty (L REH %),
and from Zhejiang Yu Cai Workers’ University (3TLE A BT K2 in
Zhejiang, the PRC in June 1995 with an associate degree (K% E£F)
in Architecture. He also obtained his bachelor's degree (AFLEE) in
Financial Management (online course) from Tianjin University (K2 K £)
in Tianjin, the PRC in 2013. He also obtained his executive master of
business administration (EMBA) from Xiamen University in Xiamen, the
PRC in September 2018. He also obtained a qualification for senior
economist issued by Zhejiang Human Resources and Social Security
Department* (/L& AN BRI E{REEE) in December 2007.
He also obtained a qualification for engineer issued by Personnel
Department of Huzhou* (#3/1{T AZ/3) in September 1996.
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DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED EEHhEERRARAT

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNEREEBNEREFE

Mr. Fei Zhongmin (EE8) (“Mr. Fei”), aged 51, has been our
Director since 16 January 2018. He was re-designated as an executive
Director and was appointed as our president on 14 August 2018. He
is responsible for business operation, day-to-day management and
daily business decisions of our Group. He is also a director of certain
members of the Group. He has over 24 years of experience in the
PRC real estate industry. He joined our Group as a project manager
of Dexin Real Estate in August 1997. Since then, he served various
positions in Dexin Real Estate and other subsidiaries of our Company,
including vice president, executive vice president, president and
director, during which his responsibilities included participating in the
formulation of our Group’s strategy and the day-to-day management.

Mr. Fei graduated from Zhejiang Yu Cai Workers’ University* (4TI &
BT KZ) in Zhejiang, the PRC in January 1995 with an associate
degree (KEZJF) in Architecture. He also obtained his executive
master of business administration (EMBA) from Shanghai Jiaotong
University (_E/8% 8K E) in Shanghai, the PRC in June 2013. He also
obtained a qualification for engineer issued by Personnel Department
of Shaoxing* (488 A% B) in November 2006.

Ms. Shan Bei (B27%) (“Ms. Shan”), aged 36, was appointed as the
Executive Director on 25 August 2020 and was appointed as the
Assistant President and General Manager of Financial Management
Center. She was appointed as vice president on 8 February 2021.
She is mainly responsible for the management of the financial affairs
of the Group. She has more than 13 years of experience in the
real estate industry in China. Ms. Shan graduated from Zhejiang
University of Finance and Economics in June 2007 with a bachelor
degree in management majoring in accounting. She also obtained the
qualification of certified public accountant in March 2010.

Ms. Shan joined Dexin Real Estate Group in May 2011 and
successively served as the Project Finance Manager, Deputy General
Manager of Fund Management Center, Deputy General Manager of
Financial Management Center, etc. Prior to joining Dexin Real Estate
Group, from May 2010 to April 2011, she served as the accountant of
a real estate development company in China. From July 2007 to May
2010, she served as an auditor of an accounting firm in China.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEEBNEEHS

Ms. Feng Xia (J5E) (“Ms. Feng”), aged 44, has been our Director
since 16 January 2018. Ms. Feng resigned as executive Director with
effect from 25 August 2020. She was re-designated as an executive
Director and was appointed as our vice president on 14 August
2018. She is primarily responsible for management of financial and
administrative affairs of our Group. She has been serving as the
vice president of Dexin Real Estate since December 2013, primarily
responsible for management of financial and administrative affairs. She
is also a director of certain members of the Group. She has over 13
years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.

Ms. Feng graduated from Shijiazhuang Tiedao College* (F i
BEPr) in Heibei, the PRC in June 1999 with a bachelor’'s degree
in Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning Engineering. She also
obtained her master’s degree in Accountancy from Zhejiang University*
(T ARE) in Zhejiang, the PRC in March 2006. She has also obtained
the qualification for intermediate accountant issued by Personnel
Bureau of Hangzhou* (/1T AZ /@) in October 2009.

Ms. Feng joined Dexin Real Estate in April 2011, and has been the vice
president of Dexin Real Estate since December 2013. Prior to joining
Dexin Real Estate, she was the financial manager of project companies
of Zhejiang Lvxi Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.* (/L4kPEHEELEE A
fRA7F)), a joint venture of Greentown China Holdings Limited (4735
HESEAGRAF]) which is listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code 3900 and engaged in property development and sales, and she
was primarily responsible for the financial management of Qingshanhu
Rose Garden project from May 2009 to April 2011. She was the
financial manager of Zhejiang Zheda Insigma Group Co., Ltd.* (#/T
AEFEBAGR A7), which is engaged in property development,
and she was primarily responsible for the project financial control and
financial management from April 2006 to April 2009.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Hu Shihao (#5 %), aged 26, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 14 August 2018. He was also appointed as a
director of Dexin HK on 22 March 2018. Mr. Hu Shihao is a member
of the audit committee. He is the son of Mr. Hu Yiping who is our
executive Director and one of our Controlling Shareholders. He is
also one of our Controlling Shareholders. Mr. Hu Shihao is primarily
responsible for providing advice on the financial affairs of our Group.
He has over 6 years working experience in the real estate industry.

Mr. Hu Shihao graduated from Boston College in Massachusetts,
the United States in May 2018 with a bachelor’s degree in Finance.
He also graduated from Columbia University in New York City, New
York, the United States in May 2019 with a master degree in Property
Development.

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (£k#) (“Dr. Wong”), aged 69, has
been our independent non-executive Director since 11 January 2019.
He is primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Group. Dr Wong is the chairman
of the audit committee. He has 27 years of experience in accounting.
Dr. Wong is the principal consultant of KND Associates CPA Limited,
Hong Kong, a private professional auditing firm in Hong Kong, and is
responsible for administration, operation, audit and corporate taxation
since January 2018. He is currently an Independent Non-executive
Director of APAC Resources Limited (stock code: 1104), Solargiga
Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 757), China Merchants Land
Limited (stock code: 978), China VAST Industrial Urban Development
Company Limited (stock code: 6166), China Wan Tong Yuan
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 6966), Capital Finance Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8239) and China Medical & HealthCare Group
Limited (stock code: 383), all are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Dr. Wong was the managing director of Charise Financial Planning
Limited, a private professional consulting firm in Hong Kong, and was
responsible for administration and operation from October 2005 to
January 2014. He was the principal consultant of KND & Co., CPA
Limited, a private professional auditing firm in Hong Kong, and was
responsible for administration, operation, audit and corporate taxation
from January 2014 to December 2017.

FHTES

MEFELE 2657 ' M2018F8 A14HEZRT
BIFMITEE - HIFR2018F3 A22BER T
REEEENES HFRLERSEIFZES
BB - ERBMARITES RIERKRE 2 —
H—FEENRTF - HITMARMOIERRKRE 2
— PR REAETZEERAEENYBER
RBitEE HETHEEMETEEEBIB6E

Hﬁ%?f‘ai#mmiﬁ%%%%%ﬁé%%
Mg TESR - ESemMBTEM0 - HIR
2019&5)%%%50?%%ﬂ%’])ll%ﬂ%’]rﬂ%htmﬁ
RE  BEVHEFREETEA -

BYEHITES

FoxEBRLT ((EEL]) 695 B201951 A
11TER—EABYIIERNTES - HFXEZAEH
AEEMNELLEEREHBEYER - TELE
BT ZEENEIR - HBEB2TFHNSELER -
52018¢1 )EH'L ET@i%{EE/&L/E @E‘I’Eﬂi
TERAR (—REBLAZEETAF) MY
FER - BETH - & - B ROEMBS
H- - WBHAAREAHERIMERRT LM
DARERBRAR (BRMHRIE - 1104) - BF3aE
BRIERAER AR (RS : 757) - BEBE
AR AT (RHNRSE - 978) ~ FBRIRRESE
mEERBR AT (RHRIE - 6166) - FEE
RE (FER) BRAE (RMDKSE : 6966) * &
MERIERBR AR (BRMHRIR : 8239) kA EH
BEEAEAR AR (RMOARSE - 383) 2@k
HITESE -

R2005F10 AE2014F1 8 - THLELER
MHREBRAR(—REBLATEZ AR
AMESHALCE  AETHREZESTE - R
20141 AE2017F 128 - HIEE T ES A
EBMBRARI(—REBLAZERE T
WEFEBR  BETHR - %8 B REER
HEE -



2020F E$kE ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERGREEEBNEEHS

Dr. Wong obtained his bachelor’'s degree in Commerce from a joint
program held by Shenzhen University (%3JIIK€) in Shenzhen, the
PRC and Clayton University in Missouri, the United States of America
in May 1990. He also obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Business
Management (online course) and a master’'s degree in Business
Administration (online course) from Nottingham Trent University in
Nottingham, the United Kingdom in December 2005 and December
2007, respectively. He also obtained his doctoral degree in Philosophy
in Business Administration from the Bulacan State University, Republic
of the Philippines in December 2010.

Dr. Wong was elected or admitted and has remained as member
of a number of institutions, including being a fellow member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since January 1999, a fellow member
of The Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Ireland since August
2000, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries since February 2002, a member of The Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators since May 2002, a fellow member of The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators since September 2002,
a fellow member of Association of International Accountants since
September 2005 and a member of the Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute since November 2012.

Mr. Ding Jiangang (T #Ml) (“Mr. Ding”), aged 57, has been our
independent non-executive Director since 11 January 2019. He
is primarily responsible for providing independent advice on the
operations and management of our Group. Mr. Ding is also the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. He has over
6 years of research experience in the PRC real estate industry. He
graduated from Xi’an Metallurgy and Architecture College* (FA&/A®
FELEBT) in Xi'an, the PRC in June 1983 with a bachelor’s degree in
Civil Engineering Specialty (T RiEZ %). Since May 2014, Mr. Ding has
been the director* (Ftf) of Zhejiang Daily Media Real Estate Institute*
O sREEH EMZEPT), which is engaged in provision of market
analysis of real estate industry, and is responsible for research on real
estate policy and real estate market. He is currently an Independent
Non-executive Director of Binjiang Service Group Ltd. (stock code:
3316) and Shinsun Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2599),
both are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ding was the director* (i) of
Transparent Market Institute* ((EBAT S %ET), which is engaged
in provision of market analysis of real estate industry, and was
responsible for research on real estate policy and real estate market
from March 2013 to May 2014. He was the assistant manager (&%
) of the economic department of, and the deputy editor (gl42474E)
of the website Live in Hangzhou* ({E7E#TM) of, Zhejiang Online News
Website Co., Ltd.* (MIEEFEAUER2AA]), which is engaged
in online news publication and he was responsible for researching
financial properties and providing commentaries thereon from
September 2008 to March 2013. He was the journalist and producer
of Zhejiang Radio & TV Group* (T EEEREME), which is engaged
in publication and sales of newspaper, magazines and video, and he
was responsible for production of property programs from April 1989
to September 2008. He was the teacher and the leader of teaching
and research group of building structure of Zhejiang Construction
Industrial College* (I &EEETHEZERK) and was responsible for
teaching building structure courses and management of the teaching
and research group from November 1985 to April 1989.

Mr. Chen Hengliu (“Mr. Chen”), aged 66, has been our independent
non-executive Director since 11 January 2019. He is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations
and management of our Group. Mr. Chen is a member of each of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee. He
has 14 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. Since
November 2006, Mr. Chen has been the vice president of Sunac
China Holdings Limited (gt&l# B B R A7), a company listed on
the Stock Exchange with stock code 1918 and engaged in property
development, and the chairman of its Southeast regional branch,
and he is responsible for the group’s human resources and the
development strategies of the Southeast regional branch.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chen was the general manager of
the United States subsidiary(ies) of China Sciences Group (Holding)
Co., Ltd.* (FRIEZESEIER)ERAF]), which is engaged in the
procurement and sales of technological products, and he was
responsible for corporate development and human resources from
1994 to 1997. He was the assistant to the general manager (#B4%32
B)¥E) and the manager of the development department (& 2 4F1E)
of Legend Holdings Corporation (B#81%x{nBRAR]) (previously
known as Chinese Academy of Sciences Computer Technology
Research Institute Technology Development Company* (FF BIR 28 5+
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E AT IR 3 E A 1)), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with stock code 3396 and engaged in research and development
and manufacture of computer products, and he was responsible for
corporate development and human resources from 1988 to 1990. He
was the assistant researcher of the Research Center of Contemporary
Science History of the Institute for History of Natural Sciences of
Chinese Academy of Sciences* (BRI B ARIE S HFRATAIRR
FIE P HIITE), which is engaged in research in science history, and
he was responsible for research of history of contemporary technology
development from 1985 to 1987.

Mr. Chen graduated from Beijing Normal University* (1t 5 A0 &5 K E2)
in Beijing, the PRC in July 1982 with a bachelor’'s degree in Science
(F2E). He also obtained his master’s degree in Science (3££2) from
Graduate University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (7 B R} A5t
A PBr) in Beijing, the PRC in May 1985.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management
of our business. The biography of each of our senior management
member is set out below.

Mr. Fei Zhongmin (Z#£8)), aged 51, is our executive Director and
president. For details of his biography, please refer to “— Board of
Directors — Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Shan Bei (87), aged 36, is our executive Director and vice
president. For details of her biography, please refer to “— Board of
Directors — Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Fang Jing (77#&) (“Ms. Fang”), aged 46, was appointed as
our executive vice president on 14 August 2018. She is primarily
responsible for marketing and sales, customer services and business
management of our Group. She was the vice president of Dexin Real
Estate from February 2012 to July 2014, and has been serving as
the executive vice president of Dexin Real Estate since July 2014,
primarily responsible for marketing and sales and customer services
management. In addition, Ms. Fang was the sales director (% #5428 ),
project general manager and general manager of Hangzhou region of
Dexin Real Estate, primarily responsible for sales, customer services,
project management and regional company’s operation management
from February 2006 to February 2012. She was the director of Dexin
Real Estate (Quzhou) Co., Ltd.* (fE{SHE#/M)ERAF]), primarily
responsible for major business decisions from April 2016 to May 2018.
She has 20 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.
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Prior to joining our Group in February 2006, Ms. Fang was the
operational manager of Hangzhou Woaiwojia Real Estate Agent
Co., Ltd.* MMBEERREHELLBRAT]), which is engaged in
agency service of sale and purchase of commodity properties, and
she was responsible for management of property leasing and sales
from October 1999 to December 2002. She was the head of sales
management department of Hangzhou Shengshi Weiye Real Estate
Agent Co., Ltd.* (i B8 {2 % 5 & I B PR A7), which is engaged
in agency service of sale and purchase of commodity properties,
she was responsible for sales management from December 2002 to
February 2006.

Ms. Fang graduated from Zhejiang University* (41T AXE2) in Zhejiang,
the PRC in June 1996 with a bachelor’s degree in Inorganic Nonmetal
Material Engineering. She also obtained her executive master of
business administration (EMBA) from Zhejiang University* (41T X£) in
Zhejiang, the PRC in December 2015.

Mr. Zhang Ce (3R) (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 50, was appointed as our
vice president on 14 August 2018. He is primarily responsible for daily
design management of our Group and in charge of our product centre.
He has been serving as the vice president of Dexin Real Estate since
February 2012, primarily responsible for product design, research and
development. He has over 22 years of experience in the PRC real
estate industry.

Prior to joining our Group in April 2010, Mr. Zhang was the chief
engineer of Lianyungang Xiangyi Group Co., Ltd.* (BEEHEFEE
BB F]) (formerly known as Lianyungang Xiangyi Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd.* (EEEFGFEMEMEZEABRADF)), which
is engaged in property development and property leasing, and he
was responsible for property design and engineering management
from October 2007 to September 2009. He was the deputy general
manager of Zhongyi Group Co., Ltd.* (FZEBEBRAF]) (formerly
known as Zhejiang Zhongyi Investment Co., Ltd.* (LRI EB R A
&), which is engaged in industrial investment* (B 2% %), and he was
responsible for design work management from May 2005 to December
2009. He was the director* (Fff) of Lianyungang Architectural Design
Research Institute Limited Liability Company* (%78 i &R
Zh AR EEAF), which is principally engaged in design drawings,
and he was responsible for architectural design and department
management from July 1992 to March 2005.
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Mr. Zhang graduated from Wuhan Urban Construction Institute* (&)
W ERR) (currently known as Huazhong University of Technology*
(ZEFR R AKE)) in Wuhan, the PRC in July 1992 with a bachelor’s
degree in Engineering in Architecture Profession. He also obtained
his master’'s degree in Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School (FEIEIFE TEERL) in Shanghai, the
PRC in August 2016. He has also obtained the qualification for senior
architect issued by Human Resource Bureau of Jiangsu Province in
November 2004 and qualified as the State’s Registered Class One
Architect (B —H a2 EEAT) issued by The National Administration
Board of Architectural Registration in March 2009.

Mr. Shi Binbin (FEXEXE) (“Mr. Shi”), aged 43, was appointed as
our vice president on 14 August 2018. He is primarily responsible
for investment and market research and analysis of our Group. He
has been serving as the vice president of Dexin Real Estate since
February 2017, primarily responsible for market research and strategic
investment. He has over 18 years of experience in the PRC real estate
industry.

Mr. Shi joined our Group in October 2001 and served as the deputy
general manager of the engineering department of Dexin Real Estate
from October 2001 to December 2007. He is also a director of certain
members of the Group. He also served as the general managers of
a number of subsidiaries of our Company, including Wenzhou Dexin
Real Estate Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Dexin Wutian Real Estate Co., Ltd.,
Wenzhou Dexin Guangjing Real Estate Co., Ltd. and Wenzhou Dexin
Ecological Park Real Estate Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Dexin Mingcheng
Real Estate Co., Ltd., Wenzhou Dexin Jintian Real Estate Co., Ltd.
and Wenzhou Dexin Kaicheng Real Estate Co., Ltd. from July 2013
to February 2017. He then served as the manager of the engineering
department of Guangde Sanshihede Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (B =%
MEEZAR AT (a joint venture company of our Company which
is held by Dexin Real Estate, Shanghai Hechen Investment Co., Ltd.”
(EEREREERATR) (an Independent Third Party) and Hangzhou
Erjian as to 40%, 35% and 25% and engaged in property development
and sale) from January 2008 to December 2010. He served as the
deputy general manager of Changxing Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd.”
(REEEEEAMRAA) from January 2011 to March 2013. He then
served as the general manager of Wenzhou Dexin Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. and a region company in Wentai (/& &E1%AF]) of Dexin Real
Estate from April 2013 to December 2016.
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Prior to joining our Group in 2001, he was the construction officer
of Zhejiang Yuexing Construction Engineering Co. Ltd.* (47T &
BERTIEBMRAT]) (formerly known as Zhejiang Changxing No. 3
Construction Engineering Company* (#1/T 4 KBS =2 E T2 A a))),
which is engaged in industrial and civil construction engineering, and
he was responsible for project construction management from July

1997 to February 2001.

Mr. Shi graduated from Zhejiang Construction Industrial College* (#f
TTERET ZEE4) in Zhejiang, the PRC in July 1997 with a diploma
degree (A EE/F) in Industrial and Civil Construction (T 2 81K 2 E),
He also obtained his bachelor’s degree (AEIZF) in Civil Engineering
(online course) from Chongging University (EEAXZ) in Chongging,
the PRC in July 2011. He also obtained a qualification for engineer
issued by Personnel Department of Shaoxing* (AEMmAER) in
December 2005.

Mr. Gu Ligiang (B %) (“Mr. Gu”), aged 46, was appointed as
our vice president on 14 August 2018. Mr. Gu resigned as vice
president on 18 March 2020. He is primarily responsible for operation,
engineering and cost control of our Group. He has been serving as
the vice president of Dexin Real Estate since February 2017, primarily
responsible for operation, engineering and cost control. He has over
22 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.

Prior to joining our Group in February 2017, Mr. Gu was the deputy
general manager of Xuzhou Vanke Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (‘RN EFIE
HEHBMR AT (a subsidiary of China Vanke Co., Ltd.* (BRIMERMNE
fR A 7R]), which is a PRC residential property developer listed on both
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock code 000002 and the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with stock code 2202 (“Vanke”)),
which is engaged in property development, and he was responsible
for engineering, cost, procurement, construction application and
related affairs from February 2013 to February 2017. He also worked
in several other property development companies in the PRC including

(i) the director of Xuzhou Wanke City Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (&M
BRI EBXAMRAF) and Xuzhou Wanchen Real Estate Co., Ltd.*

HINBREZAEMRAT) and (i) the director, chairman and general
manager of Xuzhou Dingjun Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (AN REBEA
R 2 7)), Xuzhou Dingshang Real Estate Co., Ltd.* ({xMEHEEAR
A 7)) and Xuzhou Dingxu Real Estate Co., Ltd.* ((GMEBEEAR
‘~7A]) from October 2014 to January 2017, during which his primarily
responsibilities included attending board meetings and directing
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and implementing daily production operation and management of
companies under the leadership of the board. He was project chief
manager and department head of engineering department of Zhejiang
Vanke Nandou Real Estate Co., Ltd.* (i T BRI EEEHEEGR R ) (a
subsidiary of Vanke), which is engaged in property development, and
he was responsible for overall project management and engineering
management of project companies from May 2010 to February
2013. He was the project manager of China Overseas Real Estate
(Hangzhou) Co., Ltd.* (F/EHEFIM)BR2AFR]), which is engaged
in property construction, and he was responsible for overall project
management from June 2007 to May 2010. He was the assistant
manager of the engineering department of Shenzhen China Overseas
Construction Co., Ltd.* (RIIFEEEBR AR, which is engaged
in property construction, and he was responsible for building system
for construction quality, building system for standardization and
management of progress of projects under development, quality and
safety from July 2006 to June 2007. He served various positions in
China Railway 22 Bureau Six Company* (fF# —+ — &7~ al), which
is engaged in provision of building materials, including technician,
technical director (¥fii& & A), project deputy manager and project
manager, and he was responsible for engineering management of
projects from July 1996 to July 2004.

Mr. Gu graduated from Beijing Jiaotong University (It RZBA
E) in Beijing in July 2004 with a bachelor's degree (AFIEFE) in
Civil Engineering (online course). He also obtained his master’s
degree in Fluid Machinery and Engineering from Harbin Institute of
Technology (BB % .AXZ) in Harbin, the PRC in July 2006. He
has also obtained the qualification for civil engineer issued by China
State Construction Engineering Corporation* (Bl T2 A F]) in
December 2008.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chau Hing Ling (B E#) (“Ms. Chau”), aged 46, was appointed
as the company secretary of our Company on 18 May 2018. She
joined Corporate Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited
since June 2013, and now serves as a director of Corporate Services,
where she leads a team of professional staff to provide a full range
of company secretary services. Ms. Chau has over 20 years of
experience in the corporate services industry. Prior to joining Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited, she was the associate director of
corporate secretarial of an international corporate services provider.

Ms. Chau is also currently the company secretary or joint company
secretary of several companies listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Ms. Chau received a master of laws majoring
in corporate and financial law from The University of Hong Kong
in November 2007. She has been a fellow member of Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as the the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators) in United Kingdom and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries since May 2013.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC are primarily engaged in the property
development and construction services, property investment and hotel
operations in the PRC.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are shown
under Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 270
to 272 of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
net results for the year by principal activities is set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators and an indication of likely future developments
in the Group’s business, could be found in the sections headed
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this annual report. The review and discussion form part of this
directors’ report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners.
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The Company provides a fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity
to our staff, provides competitive remuneration and benefits and career
development opportunities based on their merits and performance.
The Group also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings
and development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry and,
at the same time, improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their
positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide the products in a way
that satisfy needs and requirements of the customers. The Group
enhances the relationship by continuous interaction with customers to
gain insight on the changing market demand for the products so that
the Group can respond proactively. The Group has also established
procedures in place for handling customers’ complaints to ensure
customers’ complaints are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group is also dedicated to developing good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group’s business. We reinforce business partnerships
with suppliers and contractors by ongoing communication in a
proactive and effective manner so as to ensure quality and timely
delivery.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance for the
year ended 31 December 2020 will be included in an environmental,
social and governance report to be published by the Company and will
be uploaded to the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
within three months after the publication date of this annual report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated financial results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out on pages 143 to 274 of this annual report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.11
per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Proposed Final
Dividend”) to the shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on Thursday, 10 June 2021, subject to
the shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Friday, 4 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM”).
It is expected that the Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on or
before Thursday, 30 September 2021.

No interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2020, the
total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounts to
RMBO0.11 per share, which represents a payout ratio of 25% of the
profit attributable to the shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2020.

No Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
details of which are disclosed as follows:

Purpose
This Dividend Policy sets out the principles and guidelines that the

Company will apply when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends to the shareholders of the Company.
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Principles and guidelines

The Company may, subject to the Cayman Companies Law, from
time to time in a general meeting declare dividends in any currency to
be paid to the shareholders of the Company but no dividend shall be
declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may from time to time determine to pay to the shareholders
of the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to be
justified by the profits of the Company.

The Board has the discretion to declare dividends to the shareholders
of the Company, subject to the Articles of the Association of the
Company (the “Articles”) and all applicable laws and regulations,
taking into account the factors set out below:

e financial results;

e cash flow situation;

e business conditions and strategies;

e future operations and earnings;

e capital requirements and expenditure plans;

e interests of shareholders;

e taxation considerations;

e any contractual, statutory and regulatory restrictions on payment
of dividends; and

e any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Review of the Dividend Policy

The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to

time.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

(A) For Determining the Entitlement to Attend and

Vote at the 2021 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 1 June 2021 to Friday, 4 June 2021, both days
inclusive, during which period no share transfer will be effected,
for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2021 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2021 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 31 May 2021.

(B) For Determining the Entitlement to the Proposed

Final Dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 10 June 2021 to Tuesday, 15 June 2021, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the Proposed
Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 9 June 2021.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 275 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note
39 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 270 to 272 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note
14 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 231 to 232 of
this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 254 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
Notes 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial statements on page 255
of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders are set out
in Note 41(a) of the consolidated financial statements on page 274 of
this annual report. Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.
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BORROWINGS FROM BANK AND OTHER
FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

During the year, the Company issued senior notes with details set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Senior
notes” in this annual report. Details of borrowings from bank and other
financial institutions of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out
in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 256 to
258 of this annual report.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had not made
any loan or provided any guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to
the Directors, senior management of the Company, the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

In December 2020, the Company has determined to accept for
purchase a total of US$41,820,000 in principal amount of the senior
notes which due in August 2021 (the “2021 Senior Notes”). The
tendered notes have been cancelled at settlement, after cancellation
of the 2021 Senior Notes repurchased pursuant to the Offer, the
aggregate principal amount of the 2021 Senior Notes which remains
outstanding is US$258,180,000.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or
the laws of the Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING AND THE ISSUE
OF THE OVER-ALLOTMENT SHARES

The net proceeds from the listing amounted to HK$1,562.2 million
after deducting the underwriting fees and commissions and other
listing expenses borne by the Company. As at 31 December 2020,
the Directors are not aware of any material change to the planned
use of the proceeds as set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus dated 14 February 2019 (the
“Prospectus”). As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds were fully
applied to the purpose for which they were intended.

An analysis of the planned usage of net proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus and the actual utilization of the net proceeds for the period
from the Listing Date up to 31 December 2020 and the intended use
of the proceeds are set out as below:
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Note: As disclosed in the Prospectus, the estimated net proceeds from
the listing, after deduction of the underwriting fees and commissions
and expenses paid by the Company in connection therewith, were
approximately HK$1,367.8 million. The actual net proceeds received by
the Company were approximately HK$1,562.2 million after the exercise
of the over-allotment option. The Company intends to adjust the
difference of approximately HK$194.4 million to each business strategy
in the same proportion as the original funds to be applied as shown in

the Prospectus.
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DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of the following seven Directors:
Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

Ms. Feng Xia (Resigned on 25 August 2020)
Ms. Shan Bei (Appointed on 25 August 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hu Shihao
Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert
Mr. Ding Jiangang
Mr. Chen Hengliu

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages
B3 to 74 in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” to this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin being the executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Ms. Shan Bei, being the executive Director has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 25 August 2020.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date.
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Each of Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen
Hengliu, being the independent non-executive Directors, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is proposed
to have entered into any service agreement or letter of appointment
with any member of the Group (excluding agreements expiring or
determinable by any member of the Group within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation).

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions and Connected Transactions” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 266 to 270 of this annual report, no contract
of significance was entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2020 or subsisted at the end of
the year and no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling Shareholder
or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31
December 2020 or subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTOR'’S INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Related Party
Transactions and Connected Transactions” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 266 to 270 of this annual report, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the Group
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director or any entity connected with such a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emoluments (including the discretionary bonuses) of the Directors
and senior management of the Group are decided by the Board
with reference to the recommendation given by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 220 to 225 of this annual
report.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office. None of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive
any emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme as incentive
for Directors and eligible employees. Details of the said scheme are
set out under the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this
annual report.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or
are payable, for the year ended 31 December 2020, by the Group to
or on behalf of any of the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business that competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than
being a director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22
of the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 1 February 2020, each of the Controlling Shareholders entered
into the Deed of Non-competition in favor of the Company, pursuant
to which, among other things, each of the Controlling Shareholders
has irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken, jointly and severally
given certain non-competition undertakings to the Company. Details
of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-
competition” in the Prospectus.

The Controlling Shareholders confirmed that they have complied with
the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended 31 December
2020. The independent non-executive Directors have conducted
a review for the year ended 31 December 2020 and also reviewed
the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the Deed of Non-
competition has been fully complied with.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and appointment letters
as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ service contracts”
in this annual report, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Group was entered into or in existence as at the end of the year
or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2020.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceedings during
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 11 January 2019, the Company adopted the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”), which falls within the ambit of, and is
subject to, the regulations under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Group. The Directors consider the Share Option
Scheme, with its broadened basis of participation, will enable the
Group to reward employees, Directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group. Given that the Directors are
entitled to determine the performance targets to be achieved as well
as the minimum period that an option must be held before an option
can be exercised on a case by case basis, and that the exercise price
of an option cannot in any event fall below the price stipulated in the
Listing Rules or such higher price as may be fixed by the Directors, it
is expected that grantees of an option will make an effort to contribute
to the development of the Group so as to bring about an increased
market price of the Shares in order to capitalize on the benefits of the
options granted.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue on the day on which trading of the
Shares commence on the Stock Exchange, such 10% limit represents
263,200,000 Shares, but excluding any Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue for the time being.
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The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years from 11 January 2019 and the options granted have a 10-
year exercise period. Options may be vested over such period(s)
as determined by the Board in its absolute discretion subject to
compliance with the requirements under any applicable laws,
regulations or rules.

The exercise price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will be
a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant
(provided that in the event that any option is proposed to be granted
within a period of less than five business days after the trading of the
Shares first commences on the Stock Exchange, the new issue price
of the Shares for the Global Offering shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before Listing); and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of an option.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report and there
were no outstanding share options under the Share Option Scheme
during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

A summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme has been set out

in the section headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VI of the
Prospectus.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which he/she was taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein; or (c)
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules were as follows:

(i) Long/short position in ordinary Shares

Name of Director

Capacity

B 8

Mr. Hu Yiping® Interest in controlled
corporation

H—FRED REEEEs

Mr. Fei Zhongmin Beneficial owner

BRRSEE BEREAA

Ms. Shan Bei® Beneficial owner

Bt EaEE A

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 2,701,341,000 shares
in issue as at 31 December 2020.

(8) The entire issued share capital of Tak Yuan International Limited (“Tak
Yuan”) is held by Mr. Hu Yiping, therefore Mr. Hu Yiping is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares held by Tak Yuan by virtue of the SFO.
Since Mr. Hu Yiping owns 92% of Tak Shin International Limited (“Tak
Shin”), Mr. Hu Yiping is also deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Tak Shin by virtue of the SFO.

(4) Ms. Shan Bei was appointed as an executive Director on 25 August
2020.
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(ii) Interests in associated corporations of the
Company

Name of associated
Name of Director

B4

corporation

REEEEH

Capacity/nature
of interest

5/ BEtE

__‘-:

(ii) AA 2 B AREBEE A S

Percentage of
Number of shareholding
interest

REBDL

shares!"

Ro#E"

Mr. Hu Yiping Tak Shin® Beneficial owner 460 (L) 92.00%
it e ExBEA
Mr. Hu Shihao Tak Shin®@ Beneficial owner 40 (L) 8.00%
LEEY g Eme EnBEAA
Mr. Fei Zhongmin Deqing Jinxiao Corporate Beneficial owner 2,000,000 (L) 20.00%

Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares.

(2) Tak Shin is the holding company of the Company and therefore an
“associated corporation” of the Company within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO. Tak Shin held 1,814,290,000 Shares of the Company
which accounted for approximately 67.16% of the total share capital
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above in this annual report and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests and/
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company,
as at 31 December 2020, the following corporations/persons (other
than Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had interests
of 5% or more in the issued shares of the Company according to the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO:

Name Capacity

Y &6
Tak Shin Beneficial owner
= EREAA
Ms. Wei Peifen® Interest of spouse
BWMS2Zte B R
Notes:

(1) The letter “L.” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2) The calculation is based on the total number of 2,701,341,000 shares in
issue as at 31 December 2020.

(8) Ms. Wei Peifen is the wife of Mr. Hu Yiping. Under the SFO, Ms. Wei
Peifen is deemed to be interested in Mr. Hu Yiping’s interests in Tak Shin
and Tak Yuan.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at 31 December 2020, no person (other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had registered an interest or a
short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the year under review, the Group’s largest customers accounted
for 0.15% of the Group’s total revenue. The Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 0.48% of the Group’s total revenue.

In the year under review, the Group’s largest suppliers accounted
for 2.64% of the Group’s total purchase. The Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 7.91% of the Group’s total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers or the Group’s five largest customers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF
HOLDERS OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders of the Company by reason of their respective holding

of the Company’s securities.

BEROHEEENZH

(A4 45 [ AR B) ) — B0 BB RO BB AR o1
BISh - AAF - RERAAREAHBA RS
B A AT LA R - B
A B E AL R AR AR B BB
WiE% (BEERE) Hks -

FTEREBREF

REEFE  AEENSEATEFPIEREE BN
AB0.15% - AEBHAREPIEAREE AW
AH)0.48% ©

REBEE  AEBNZAREREAEER
RESEEM2.64% - AEEM A REEREASE
Bl EREENT7.91% o

MESFHEAMNETHEA (ERR(LHH
D) KEFBREEMARMNEEARREEHITR
RBEE R RN AEENAARHEFRAEAN
BEFBAE MBS -

EHEFFBEANEBEER
Hr

ARBATMBARRBRRAZBHAEARRA
BEHFMAESNEARBEERTRR



RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the employees of the
Hong Kong subsidiaries are required to participate in the Mandatory
Provident Fund in Hong Kong. The employees of the PRC subsidiaries
are members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The employees of both Hong
Kong and the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to this
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any forfeited
contributions that were utilised to reduce the level of contributions
under its defined contribution scheme.

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in Note
8 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 220 to 225 of this
annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had not
entered into any equity-linked agreements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into various transactions which constituted
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. All
the connected transactions during the year that need to be disclosed
herein are conducted in compliance with the Listing Rules. Reference
is made to the various announcements of the Company. Unless
otherwise defined, capitalised terms used herein shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the announcements.
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Details of the connected transactions are set out below:

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 30
March 2020. On March 28, 2020, Zhejiang Dexin (an indirect non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and Mr. Hu Shihao entered
into the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Parking Space Transfer
Agreement, pursuant to which Zhejiang Dexin has agreed to sell, and
Mr. Hu Shihao has agreed to purchase, the Property and the Parking
Space at a consideration of RMB12,327,448 and RMB450,000
respectively.

The Transactions are in the ordinary course of business of the Group,
which can allow the Group to recognise a gain and enhance the
turnover rate of funds.

Mr. Hu Shihao is a non-executive director of the Company and the
son of Mr. Hu Yiping, an executive director, Chairman of the Board
and the controlling shareholder of the Group.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 17
April 2020. On April 17, 2020:

(1) Dexin Zhongshun (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Junde Commercial entered into the Dongchen
Parking Spaces Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which Dexin
Zhongshun has agreed to sell and Junde Commercial has agreed
to purchase, the Dongchen Parking Spaces at a consideration of
RMB9,280,000;

(2) Dexin Donghang (an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Junde Commercial entered into the North Sea
Park Parking Spaces Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which
Dexin Donghang has agreed to sell and Junde Commercial has
agreed to purchase, the North Sea Park Parking Spaces at a
consideration of RMB2,052,000; and

(3) Deguan Investment (an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company) and Junde Commercial entered into the Morning
Mansion Parking Spaces Transfer Agreement, pursuant to which
Deguan Investment has agreed to sell and Junde Commercial has

agreed to purchase, the Morning Mansion Parking Spaces at a
consideration of RMB231,540.
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The Parking Spaces Disposal can allow the Group to recognise a gain
and enhance the turnover rate of funds.

Junde Commercial is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ShengQuan
Property Service, which is owned as to approximately 81.79% by
Shengquan Holding, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Dexin Holding.
Dexin Holding is owned as to 91.61% by Mr. Hu Yiping (an executive
Director and a controlling Shareholder) and 8.39% by Mr. Hu Shihao (a
non-executive Director and a controlling Shareholder), respectively.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated
24 June 2020. On 24 June 2020, Createrich Investments LLC (the
“Buyer”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
the Purchase Agreement with DMG Investments LLC (the “Seller”)
in relation to the acquisition of 49% of the limited liability company
interests of the Target Company at a consideration of US$26,120,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$204,453,600). The primary asset of
the Target Company is the Property, comprising 152 condominium
units located at 320 Adolphus Avenue, Cliffside Park, Bergen County,
New Jersey, U.S.

The Property is located within Cliffside Park and Bergen County, New
Jersey. Bergen County benefits from being part of New York, which
is the most populous metropolitan area in the U.S., and generates a
higher level of GDP per capita among the U.S. overall.

The Group aimed to expand its principal business through investing
in property projects overseas in order to improve the distribution
of assets profile and diversify the business risks of a single market.
Tapping into the U.S. property market can diversify the geographical
location of the Group’s investment portfolio.

The Seller is indirectly wholly-owned by Dexin Holding. Dexin Holding
is owned as to 91.61% by Mr. Hu Yiping (an executive Director and a
controlling Shareholder) and as to 8.39% by Ms. Wei Peifen (the wife
of Mr. Hu Yiping), respectively.
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The Group had entered into various transactions which constituted ANEBBERECETRE)E14AZZLZEE
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing MIFEEEX IR S - FRMEBERKFER
Rules. All the continuing connected transactions during the year WERFERELZFHFTACETHEI) - 2R
that need to be disclosed herein are conducted in compliance with iR RA B HEA2019411 A28H « 2019412
the Listing Rules. Reference is made to the announcements of H13H - 202045 H28H &2020F9H3HH)
the Company dated 28 November 2019, 13 December 2019, 28 % - AEBRE E2020F12A31HIEEFE
May 2020 and 3 September 2020. The transaction amount of the HIFBERIEZFNZZFESEEINNT ¢
continuing connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31

December 2020 is set out below:

Transaction Amount
for Year Ended
Connected Person Nature of Transaction 31 December 2020

B Z2020F12H31H

BEAL REHEL LtFEENRZ S
(RMB’ 000)

(AR®TIT)

Non-exempt continuing connected transactions

TEAEFREBESS

ShengQuan Property Service Co., Ltd. Provision of property management service 89,277
(“ShengQuan Property Service”)"

BREVMERFBOAERAR ([BEWMERE O REERDEEIERS

Zhejiang Geya Decoration Co., Ltd. Provision of decoration and 148,253
(“Zhejiang Geya Decoration”)® related services

AT IER AR AR ([HIE TSR] @ TR o S AR A AR 7%

Huzhou Geya Doors and Windows Co., Ltd. Provision of decoration and 40,865
(‘Huzhou Geya”)® related services

MNMEHEPIE AR AT (DAMEHR] © TR o S AR A AR 7%

Notes: PHaE -

(1) ShengQuan Property Service is a company established under the laws (1) BEVEBRBA - BREFEIZMINERE

of the PRC with limited liability and is principally engaged in providing AR BEREFRAMRERRE - B22Y
property management services. ShengQuan Property Service is owned as KRB REEERRERRAR (D58 E—F
to approximately 81.79% by Shengquan Holding Co., Ltd. which is wholly- FE (RRAIER - RITERRIEBKRR) #AR
owned by Dexin Holding Group Limited, a company owned by Mr. Hu 91.61% RAMMF L+ (H—FRENET RiZ
Yiping (the Chairman, an executive Director and controlling shareholder of BR) HE8.39% ) 2 EHANAZIERA
the Company) as to 91.61% and Ms. Wei Peifen (the wife of Mr. Hu Yiping RARIERHIB1.79% -

and a controlling shareholder) as to 8.39%, respectively.

On 1 February 2019, the Company and ShengQuan Property Service 2019F2A18  AAREBEWRRIEET LIE
entered into the framework property management service agreement to ROXERRSHE - UREBREWRRIBAA
govern the provision of property management services by ShengQuan SERHMRARARREMREEREY - R
Property Service to the Group for its property development projects for a E2021F12A31HLE -

term up to 31 December 2021.




On 13 December 2019, the Company and ShengQuan Property Service
entered into the supplemental framework property management agreement
to amend the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The revised annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB73.0 million. The annual caps for the years ending 31 December 2020
and 2021 will be RMB51.0 million and RMB65.9 million, respectively.

On 28 May 2020, the Company and ShengQuan Property Service
entered into the Supplemental Framework Property Management Service
Agreement to revise the existing annual caps under the Framework
Property Management Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2020 and for the year ending 31 December 2021. Save for the amendment
to the existing annual caps, all other terms and conditions (including the
pricing policy and basis) of the Framework Property Management Service
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

The revised annual caps under the Supplemental Framework Property
Management Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020
was RMB124,000,000 and for the year ending 31 December 2021 will be
RMB190,000,000.

On 3 September 2020, the Company and ShengQuan Property Service
entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Second Supplemental
Framework Property Management Service Agreement”) to further revise
the proposed annual caps under the Framework Property Management
Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and for the year
ending 31 December 2021.

The Second Supplemental Framework Property Management Service
Agreement replaces and supersedes the Supplemental Framework
Property Management Service Agreement in its entirety. Save for the
amendment to the existing annual caps, all other terms and conditions
(including the pricing policy and basis) of the Framework Property
Management Service Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

The revised annual caps under the Second Supplemental Framework
Property Management Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2020 was RMB106,000,000 and for the year ending 31 December 2021
will be RMB179,000,000.
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LIERTFE LRE S R A AR 124,000,0007T
K AR #190,000,0007T °
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UHEnE((E_OHRERYEETERSH
#) o E—TBETEE2020F12 A31 A LEF
EREE2021F12 A1 B ILFEMIERYEE
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FE_NHEAERYEEERB HALE LKA
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gt (BEEBRRERESE) DAF TRES
KAER -
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2020F12 A31 HILFEMEERIFE LR AA
R¥106,000,0007t * EZE2021F12 43181k
FE# A ARKE179,000,0007T °
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Zhejiang Geya Decoration is a company established under the laws of the
PRC with limited liability and is principally engaged in providing decoration
services. Zhejiang Geya Decoration is owned as to 91.43% by Mr. Hu
Yuegen, the brother of Mr. Hu Yiping.

On 1 February 2019, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration entered
into the framework decoration service agreement to govern the provision
of decoration and related services by Zhejiang Geya Decoration to the
Group for its property development projects for a term up to 31 December
2021.

On 13 December 2019, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration
entered into the supplemental framework property management agreement
to amend the annual caps for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The revised annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB200.0 million. The annual caps for the years ending 31 December
2020 and 2021 will be RMB160.0 million and RMB200.0 million,
respectively.

On 28 May 2020, the Company and Zhejiang Geya Decoration entered
into the Supplemental Framework Decoration Service Agreement to
revise the existing annual caps under the Framework Decoration Service
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 and for the year ending
31 December 2021.

The revised annual caps under the Supplemental Framework Decoration
Service Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMB260,000,000 and for the year ending 31 December 2021 will be
RMB320,000,000.

@)

AIRHERSGH S —RREBEPEERKIMNBERE
EAR - BXE2RFRHEEMRTG - MITHRIER
#FR AR — PR Z LRI AR EREH 91.43% °

2019F2 A1H » AREEMINTIE AT LIE
REMRBSHE  WREMIEERESHRAEE
MEMEFARIERIREEMRAAERY - BRE
2021412 A31 A1 -

2019412 A138 » ANA R M T /& KR #FE] 3L
HIERE MR 5 - AEFTEHZE2019F12
AB1BLEFENFE LR -

HE2019F 12 A1 HILFEZLKETFE LR
BAREE200.05 8T - BE20204F £20214F
12A31BIEFENEE FRSFIARARE160.0
BBLTRARE200.088T -

R2020F 58280 + ANQ A EMT AR HEFREHET
SEFAERE MRS g - DMEFTER AR
BiEE TEE2020F12 A1 B I FEEREE
2021512 A1 AILFERBEFE LR -

HRIERLMRBIHEIE TEE2020F12
AB1BIEFENKEITIFELRAARE
260,000,0007C * & 22021412 A31AILEE
15 A A R #320,000,0007T °
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Huzhou Geya is a company established under the laws of the PRC with
limited liability and is principally engaged in providing decoration services.
Huzhou Geya is owned as to 90% by Mr. Hu Yuegen, the brother of Mr.
Hu Yiping.

On 13 December 2019, the Company and Huzhou Geya entered into
the framework decoration service agreement to govern the provision of
decoration and related services by Huzhou Geya to the Group for its
property development projects for a term up to 31 December 2019.

The annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB30.0

million.

On 28 May 2020, the Company and Huzhou Geya entered into the New
Huzhou Framework Decoration Service Agreement, whereby Huzhou Geya
agreed to provide decoration and related services to the Group.

The proposed annual caps under the New Huzhou Framework Decoration
Service Agreement for the two years ending 31 December 2020 and 2021
will be RMB53,000,000 and RMB45,000,000 respectively.

On 7 August 2020, Hangzhou Wuhe (a non-wholly owned subsidiary

of the Company) as lessor and each of Hangzhou Changyu and

Hangzhou Kangyu as lessee entered into the Lease Agreements

for a term of three years from 15 December 2020 to 14 December

2023. The Proposed Annual Caps under the Lease Agreements for

the three years ending 31 December 2021,

2022 and 2023 will be

RMB7,404,800, RMB9,353,500 and RMB8,963,800 respectively.
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The Transactions allow the Group to increase the occupancy rate
and make efficient use of its investment properties and increase its
revenue from leasing.

Each of Hangzhou Changyu and Hangzhou Kangyu is owned as to
100% by Hangzhou Suiyu, which is owned as to 58.0% by Dexin
Holding. Dexin Holding is owned as to 91.61% by Mr. Hu Yiping
(an executive Director and a controlling Shareholder) and 8.39% by
Ms. Wei Peifen (the wife of Mr. Hu Yiping and a controlling
Shareholder).

The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions have been entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal
commercial terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The independent
non-executive Directors further confirmed that the annual caps in
respect of the above continuing connected transactions are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole and that the transactions were conducted in accordance
with the pricing policies disclosed in the Prospectus or the relevant
announcements.

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor of the Company has issued his unqualified letter containing
his findings and conclusions in respect of the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of such
transactions.

The Group entered into certain related party transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2020, details of which are
set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements on pages

266 to 270 of this annual report.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors
and the Group’s senior management who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2020. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the
Model Code by the senior management of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Company has issued US$150 million senior notes bearing an
interest rate of 9.95% per annum due in December 2022 at an issue
price of 100.827% on 13 January 2021. The senior notes were listed
on the Stock Exchange on 14 January 2021.

Save as disclosed above, there are no important events after the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the public float as required under
the Listing Rules.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
for all Directors and senior management. These insurances provided
protection to the liability incurred from related cost, fees, expense and
legal actions resulting from corporate activities. Pursuant to Article 192
of the Articles, the Directors, managing Directors, alternate Directors,
auditors, secretary and other officers for the time being of the
Company and the trustees (if any) for the time being acting in relation
to any of the affairs of the Company, and their respective executors or
administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or
any of their executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or
trusts, except such (if any) as they shall incur or sustain through their
own fraud or dishonesty, and none of them shall be answerable for
the acts, receipts, neglects or defaults of any other of them, or for
joining in any receipt for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers
or other persons with whom any moneys or effects of the Company
shall be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for the insufficiency
or deficiency of any security upon which any moneys of the Company
shall be placed out or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or
damage which may arise in the execution of their respective offices
or trusts, or in relation thereto, except as the same shall happen by
or through their own fraud, dishonesty or recklessness. The Company
may take out and pay the premium and other moneys for the
maintenance of insurance, bonds and other instruments for the benefit
either of the Company or the Directors (and/or other officers) or any
of them to indemnify the Company and/or Directors (and/or other
officers) named therein for this purpose against any loss, damage,
liability and claim which they may suffer or sustain in connection with
any breach by the Directors (and/or other officers) or any of them of

their duties to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognises the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as well as
preserving the interests of the shareholders as a whole. The Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
105 to 134 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made charitable
and other donations amounting to RMB14,342,797.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management
and external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted
by the Company and the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDITOR

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 26 February 2019,
and there has been no change in the auditor since the Listing Date.
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution will
be proposed at the 2021 AGM to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers
as the auditor of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company was in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the Company.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD AND THE
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,

the changes in the Board and the information of Directors are as

follows:

(i)

Ms. Feng Xia resigned as executive Director with effect from 25
August 2020 owing to health reason. Ms. Feng has confirmed that
she has no disagreement with the Board and she is not aware of
any matter in relation to her resignation that should be brought to
the attention of the shareholders of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Shan Bei has been appointed as executive Director on 25
August 2020 and vice president on 8 February 2021.

Mr. Ding Jiangang (our independent non-executive Director) has
been appointed as independent non-executive Director of Shinsun
Holdings (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2599) which is listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited with effect from 20
October 2020.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that no information

is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing

Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Hu Yiping
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report in
the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since the Listing
Date. The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to safeguard the interests of shareholders and
to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has
adopted the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Board believes that the Company has fully complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the code provisions of the CG Code.

THE BOARD
(1) Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation
of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board
has established three Board Committees including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.
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(2) Directors’ and senior management’s liability
insurance and indemnity

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors and senior management of the Company
for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

(3) Board composition

As at 31 December 2020, the Board comprises three executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

Ms. Feng Xia (Resigned on 25 August 2020)
Ms. Shan Bei (Appointed on 25 August 2020)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hu Shihao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

Mr. Ding Jiangang

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Except that Mr. Hu Yiping is the father of Mr. Hu Shihao, no other
relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) between the Board members.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times
met the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10(A) of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise and the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board. Among the
three independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Wong Wing Kuen

Albert has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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(4) Board diversity policy

Pursuant to Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the nomination
committee (or the Board) shall have a policy concerning diversity
of board members, and shall disclose the policy on diversity or
a summary of the policy in the corporate governance report. The
board diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
specifies that in designing the composition of the Board, Board
diversity shall be considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The appointment
of Directors will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be evaluated against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity of the Board. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills.

The composition of the Board will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report every year and the Nomination Committee
will supervise the implementation of this policy. The Nomination
Committee will review the effectiveness of this policy, as
appropriate, discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

As at 31 December 2020, the diversity of the Board is illustrated
as below. Further details on the biographies and experience of the
Directors are set out on page 63 to page 69 of this annual report.
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The Nomination Committee has reviewed the membership,
structure and composition of the Board, and is of the opinion that
the structure of the Board is reasonable, and the experiences and
skills of the Directors in various aspects and fields can enable the
Company to maintain high standard of operation.

(5) Measurable objectives

For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

() Independence: The Board should include a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) so that
there is a strong element of independence in the Board. The
independent non-executive Directors shall be of sufficient
calibre and stature for their views to carry weight.

(i) Skills and experience: The Board possesses a balance of
skills appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. The Directors have a mix of finance, academic and
management backgrounds that taken together provide the
Company with considerable experience in a range of activities.

Apart from the above objectives, the Board Diversity Policy has
the following objectives to comply with the Listing Rules:

1. at least one third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors;

2. at least three of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors; and

3. at least one of the members of the Board shall have obtained
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Board has achieved the measurable objectives in the Board

Diversity Policy.
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(6) Confirmation of independence by the

independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines as set out in the
Listing Rules.

Except that Mr. Hu Yiping (an executive Director) is the father of
Mr. Hu Shihao (a non-executive Director), none of the Directors
has any personal relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship), with any other Director.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as their
respective identity of the public companies or organisations
and the time involved to the issuer, the Directors have agreed
to disclose, and already disclosed their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.

(7) Induction and continuous professional

development

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.1 of the CG Code, each newly
appointed Director should be provided with necessary induction
and information to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as his/her
responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors, namely
Mr. Hu Yiping, Mr. Fei Zhongmin, Ms. Shan Bei, Mr. Hu Shihao,
Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen
Hengliu, have been updated with the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements through reading materials and a training provided
by Paul Hastings of the Company’s legal advisor to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. In addition, continuing briefing and
professional development to Directors will be arranged whenever
necessary.

The individual training record of each Director received during the
Year is summarised below:

Directors

E=

Executive Directors
HITES

Mr. Hu Yiping
H—FEE

Mr. Fei Zhongmin
BREE

Ms. Shan Bei
BRELL

Non-executive Director
FHITES

Mr. Hu Shihao
HAFREE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

FoxiEE L

Mr. Ding Jiangang

TEMIEE

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Chen Hengliust 4

Reading materials
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(8) Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
performed by different individuals. Under the current organisation
structure of the Company, Mr. Hu Yiping is the Chairman of the
Company and Mr. Fei Zhongmin is the president of the Company
(namely, the chief executive officer of the Company).

The Board and the senior management, which comprises
experienced and high calibre, individuals can ensure the balance
of power and authority. As at 31 December 2020, the Board
comprised three executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and three independent non-executive Directors.

(9) Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of Mr. Hu Yiping and Mr. Fei Zhongmin, being the executive
Directors, has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date.

Ms. Shan Bei, being the executive Director, has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 25 August 2020.

Mr. Hu Shihao, being the non-executive Director, has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Each of Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert, Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr.
Chen Hengliu, being the independent non-executive Directors, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has or is
proposed to have entered into any service agreement or letter of
appointment with any member of the Group (excluding agreements
expiring or determinable by any member of the Group within
one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation).
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In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit
himself/herself for election by shareholders at the first general
meeting of the Company after appointment and any new Director
appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit himself/herself
for re-election by the Shareholders at the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after appointment.

re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles. The Nomination

The procedures and process of appointment,

Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
monitoring and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

Board meetings and committee meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee shall meet at least once every year and the Audit
Committee shall meet at least twice a year. Notices of not less
than fourteen days are given for all regular Board meetings to
provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend and include
matters in the agenda for a regular meeting. For other Board and
committee meetings,
agenda and accompanying board papers are dispatched to the
Directors or committee members at least three days before the
intended date of the meeting to ensure that they have sufficient
time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the
meeting. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to

reasonable notice is generally given. The

the chairman of the Board or the committee members prior to the
meeting. Minutes of meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
with copies circulated to relevant Board or Board Committee for

comments and records.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Board or committee members
and dissenting views expressed. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and committee meeting are sent to the relevant Board or
committee members for comments within a reasonable time after
the date on which the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board
meetings are open for inspection by Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, ten board meetings
were held and the attendance of the individual Directors at these
meetings is set out in the table below:

Directors

B

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman and Executive Director)
H—FRE(EERIITES)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin (Executive Director)

BOBSEE (RITES)

Ms. Feng Xia (Executive Director) (Resigned on 25 August 2020)
BB L (MITESE) (R202068 A25 HEHE)

Ms. Shan Bei (Executive Director) (Appointed on 25 August 2020)
BRELL (ITES) (202058 H25 HEZR )

Mr. Hu Shihao (Non-executive Director)

ARSI L GERITESE)

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (Independent Non-executive Director)
FokEEL (BIIFRTES)

Mr. Ding Jiangang (Independent Non-executive Director)
TRRmISEE BIIERITES)

Mr. Chen Hengliu (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Hengliuft 4 GBI IEHITES)

(11)Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiry has been made of all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DEEREE

EXe N REeeR BN ACREES
REEEMERHNERNMPTERANIRE
BREFEXZEeNBMRENEMMA
BRARENRHER REZEER
ZESERMNLBEREEZRTHYIR
MEERRARXTHEEEeXEZES
REABEBXRER - EFGERHLHER
REEEERH -

REE2020F 12 A31HILFE - £
+thEFEeeR  AREERNZES
HEBREHINN TR

Attended/Eligible
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BHE BEEHE
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and
operational matters. The Directors could have recourse to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at the
Company’s expense and are encouraged to access and to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board to ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s
needs. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management on the
Company’s behalf.

Corporate governance function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be
the collective responsibility of Directors and has delegated the
corporate governance duties to the Audit Committee which
include:

(@) to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the
Group;

(c) to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors of the Group; and

(e) to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code from
time to time adopted by the Group and the disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report to be contained in the
Company’s annual reports.

BOARD COMMITTEES

(1) Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) comprised three
members, namely Mr. Hu Yiping (the chairman and executive
Director), Mr. Ding Jiangang and Mr. Chen Hengliu (each being
an independent non-executive Director). The majority of the
committee members are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Hu Yiping is the chairman of this committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
followings:

e To review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and to make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

e To develop the criteria for identifying and assessing the
qualifications of and evaluating candidates for directorship;

e To identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become a
member of the Board and to select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

e To assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company;
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e To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular, the chairman of the Board and the
chief executive officer of the Company; and

e To develop a policy concerning diversity of members of the
Board and to disclose the policy or a summary of the policy in
the corporate governance report.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put
to the Board for decision. Their written terms of reference are
available on the respective website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the year under review, two meetings of the Nomination
Committee was held and the attendance record of the Nomination
Committee members is set out in the table below:

Directors

BE=s

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)
HA—F AL (EF)

Mr. Ding Jiangang
TERIE

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Chen Hengliu%t 4

In the meetings, the Nomination Committee reviewed and
discussed the policy, procedure and criteria for nomination of
the Directors, reviewed and discussed the Board Diversity Policy
and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the
policy and the progress made towards meeting the measurable
objective in the policy, assessed the independence of independent
non-executive Directors, considered the re-appointment of the
retiring Directors, recommended to the Board of the appointment
of director, reviewed the time commitment required from the non-
executive Director and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.
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(2) Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the following policy with regard to
nomination of Directors.

1.

Objective
The Policy aims to:

e set out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company;

e ensure that the Board the Company has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the Company; and

e ensure the Board’s continuity and appropriate leadership
at Board level.

Scope

The Policy applies to the Directors of the Company and where
applicable, senior management prepared for Board positions
under the succession planning of the Company.

Nomination and Appointment of Directors

3.1 Criteria

In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship,
the Nomination Committee shall consider the following
criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships:

e Character and integrity.

e Qualifications including professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity
aspects under the Board Diversity Policy that are
relevant to the business and corporate strategies of
the Company.
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Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments.

Requirement for the Board to have independent
directors in accordance with the Listing Rules
and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives
adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board.

Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
business of the Company.

3.2 Nomination Procedures

3.2.1 Appointment of directors

()  The Nomination Committee identifies individual(s)
suitably qualified to become Board members,
having due regard to the board diversity policy
and the nomination policy of the Company, and
assesses the independence of the proposed
independent non-executive director(s) as
appropriate.

(i)  The Nomination Committee makes recommendation(s)
to the Board.

(i) The Board considers the individual(s) recommended
by the Nomination Committee, having due regard
to the board diversity policy and the nomination
policy of the Company.
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(iv) The Board confirms the appointment of the

(v)

individual(s) as director(s) or recommends the
individual(s) to stand for election at a general
meeting. Individual(s) appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board will be subject to re-election by
shareholders of the Company at the next annual
general meeting after initial appointment in
accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee
shall attend the annual general meeting of the
Company to answer the questions raised by the
shareholders on the nomination of directors and
other matters in relation to the Policy.

(vi The Shareholders approve the election of

individual(s), who stand(s) for election at general
meeting, as director(s).

3.2.2 Re-appointment of directors

(i)

(i

The Nomination Committee shall review the
overall contribution and service to the Company
of the retiring director including his attendance of
Board meetings and, where applicable, general
meetings, and the level of participation and
performance of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall also review and
determine whether the retiring director continues
to meet the criteria as set out in 3.1.

(i) The Board considers each retiring director

recommended by the Nomination Committee,
having due regard to the board diversity policy
and the nomination policy of the Company.

(iv) The Board recommends the retiring directors

(v)

to stand for re-election at the annual general
meeting in accordance with the Articles.

The shareholders approve the re-election of
directors at the annual general meeting.

(iv)
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4.  Review and Monitoring of the Policy

The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, size,
composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis at least annually and diversity of
the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience and diversity of perspective appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Company.

The Nomination Committee shall keep under review the
leadership needs of the Company, both executive and non-
executive, with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
Company to complete effectively in the marketplace.

The Nomination Committee shall keep up to date and fully
informed about strategic issues and commercial changes
affecting the Company and the market in which it operates.

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) comprised three
members, namely Mr. Fei Zhongmin (an executive Director),
Mr. Ding Jiangang (an independent non-executive Director) and
Mr. Chen Hengliu (an independent non-executive Director), the
majority of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Ding Jiangang is the chairman of this committee.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model
described in paragraph B.1.2(c) under Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules (i.e. make recommendation to the Board on the

remuneration packages of individual executive Director and senior
management member).
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The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
followings:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

e To review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time;

e To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment;

e To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive directors of the Company;

e To consider factors such as the level of remuneration paid
by comparable companies, the time commitment and
responsibilities of directors and senior management, and the
employment conditions of the Company and its subsidiaries
and consolidated affiliated entities;

e To consider the level of remuneration required to attract and
retain directors to manage the Company successfully;

e To consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;

e To ensure that no director or any of his/her associates is
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration. For the
avoidance of doubt, members of the committee must not be
involved in deciding his or her own remuneration;

e To review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;
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e To review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and

e To advise shareholders of the Company on how to vote in
respect of any service contracts of directors that require
shareholders’ approval in accordance with the Listing Rules,
and as to whether the terms are fair and reasonable, and
whether such contracts are in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

Their written terms of reference are available on the respective
website of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year under review, two meetings of the Remuneration
Committee was held and the attendance record of the
Remuneration Committee members is set out in the table below:

Directors

BE=s

Mr. Ding Jiangang (Chairman)
TEMISAE (EFE)

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

BREEE

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Chen Hengliust 4

In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed and
reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, assessed performance of
executive Directors, made recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid.
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Details of the Directors’ emoluments are disclosed in Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 220 to 225 of this
annual report. Details of the remuneration by band of the members
of the senior management of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out below:

Remuneration band
e E

Nil to RMB841,640 (equivalent to nil to HKD1,000,000)
T AR841,6407T (ABE N ZZE1,000,000747T)

SEEREE

EBRESHFHOHBEBENRAFRE220
Z225 B ERE M IF KM FES - BZ= 2020
F12RA31BIEFEARRSARERERKE
REEEDOFEBERIAT

Number of

individual(s)

RMB841,640 to RMB1,262,460 (equivalent to HKD1,000,000 to HKD1,500,000) =
AR¥841,6407tE ARYA,262,4607T (#8E 71,000,000/ L= 1,500,000/ 7T)

RMB1,683,280 to RMB2,104,100 (equivalent to HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,500,000) 1
AR¥1,683,280t = ARM2,104,1007T (A5 E 72,000,000/ 7t £ 2,500,000% 7T )
RMB2,104,100 to RMB2,524,920 (equivalent to HKD2,500,000 to HKD3,000,000) 2
AR®2.104,1007.E AR¥E 2,524,920 7T (#8514 2,500,000/% 7L £ 3,000,000/ 7T)
RMB2,524,920 to RMB2,945,740 (equivalent to HKD3,000,000 to HKD3,500,000) 1

AR#2,624,9207TFE AR ¥2,945,7407T (HE 73,000,000 7T £ 3,500,0007% 7T )

(4) Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2020, the audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) comprised three members, namely Mr.
Hu Shihao (a non-executive Director), Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert
(an independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Ding Jiangang
(an independent non-executive Director), the majority of whom are
independent non-executive Directors. Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert
is the chairman of this committee. The main duties of the Audit
Committee include the following:

e To be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

e To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards. The Committee should
discuss with the auditor the nature and scope of the audit and
reporting obligations before the audit commences;
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To develop and implement policies on engaging an external
auditor to provide non-audit services. For this purpose,
“external auditor” includes any entity that is under common
control, ownership or management with the audit firm
or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
knowing all relevant information would reasonably conclude
to be part of the audit firm nationally or internationally.
The committee should report to the Board, identifying and
making recommendations on any matters where action or
improvement is needed;

To monitor the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, accounts, half yearly reports and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant
financial reporting judgments contained in them;

To review the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

To discuss the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have effective systems. This discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function;

To consider major investigation findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or
on its own initiative and management’s response to these
findings;

Where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that
the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

To review the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ and
consolidated affiliated entities’ operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices;

To review the external auditor's management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control
and management’s response;
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To ensure that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

To report to the Board on the matters in the Terms of
Reference;

To review arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and
to ensure that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action;

To act as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors;

To review the Company’s compliance with the corporate
governance code from time to time adopted and disclosure in
the corporate governance report;

To review continuing connected transactions of the Company
and ensure compliance with terms approved by shareholders
of the Company; and

To perform the Company’s corporate governance functions
with details set out in the paragraph headed “THE BOARD -
(13) Corporate Governance Function” above.
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During the year under review, three meetings of the Audit
Committee were held and the attendance record of the Audit
Committee members at these meetings is set out in the table
below:

Directors

B

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (Chairman)
FoKEET (EFE)

Mr. Hu Shihao

AR L

Mr. Ding Jiangang

T Ml

In those meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s
policies on corporate governance and discussed the same with
the Board, reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems
(including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions) and
associated processes and the reappointment of the external
auditor and fulfilled duties as required aforesaid. The Board
had not deviated from any recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed (i) the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2020 as well as the audit’s report prepared by the external auditor
relating to accounting issues and major findings in course of
audit; (i) the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 as well as the review
report prepared by the auditor relating to accounting issues and
major findings in course of review; and (iii) the audit scope and
audit plan prepared by the auditor relating to the audit for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

There are proper arrangements for employees, in confidence, to
raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control and other matters. Their written terms of reference
are available on the respective website of the Company and the

Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 which give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of
the Group’s consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members
of the Board with monthly updates on Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of
the Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report in this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for monitoring the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group on an
ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Group updates and reports the key risk areas,
including any remedial plans, if deemed necessary or appropriate, to
the Audit Committee for consideration. The identified key risk areas
and the appropriate risk mitigation strategies were reviewed and
commented by the Board at its meeting annually.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted review of both
design and implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020, covering all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions
are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates any
material issues to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, our internal control
department performs internal control review and carries out the
analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were reported
to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in
internal control and risk management measures as recommended
to enhance the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board.
Based on the findings and recommendations as well as the comments
of the Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.
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Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Company has established its enterprise risk management
framework in 2019. While the Board has the overall responsibility
to ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an internal
control system to manage all kinds of risks facing by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management — Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and
management to manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board
receives regular reports through the Audit Committee that oversees
risk management and internal audit functions.

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2020 was conducted by our internal
audit department. The review is conducted annually. The Group
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major risks of
the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee,
and management with a profile of its major risks and records
management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk
is evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood of occurrence
and potential impact upon the Group. The risk register is updated
by management as the risk owners with addition of new risks and/
or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually, after the
annual risk evaluation has been performed. This review process can
ensure that the Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in
the sense that all risk owners have access to the risk register and are
aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that
they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on an
ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management framework
will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management meeting
is held to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of the daily
business operation processes in order to align risk management with
corporate goals in an effective manner.
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HANDLING OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating inside
information in compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), procedures including
notification of regular blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions to relevant Directors and employees, identification of
project by code name and dissemination of information to stated
purpose and on a need-to-know basis have been implemented by the
Group to guard against possible mishandling and/or unauthorised use
of inside information within the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2020, an analysis of the fee paid/
payable to the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit
services and non-audit services is set out as follows:

Service Category

BREREHE

REREBBEVEST1E(E S LB
MRERR RERBMARTELE  AEED
EwiEf  ERANEHESRETARER
ZHHLBHRRZXZRE - ARIRBERIEB Rk
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BrEREE 2 ARTRETE R SR E K EE
ABHEE -

o B8 Bl 57

HE2020F12A31BIEFE BB RB X
IEEARG AT FEA AR B INEE I BRET Y B
RAom&ENmT

Fees Paid/Payable

Bt ENER R 3% 8 5l

RMB’ 000

AR¥T T

Audit services HETARTS 5,450
Non-audit services T RS

— Senior notes issuance related fee — BAZEBETHEER 1,250

— Others — HAth 200

Total HBE 6,900

COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

The Company engaged Ms. Chau Hing Ling, the director of Corporate
Services of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited (a company
secretarial service provider), as the company secretary of the
Company. Her primary contact at the Company is Ms. Shan Bei, an
executive director of the Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chau Hing Ling

undertook not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to
update their skills and knowledge during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two general meetings,
being the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company (2020 AGM”)
and an extraordinary general meeting were held on 4 June 2020 and
24 September 2020 respectively.

Name of the Directors

EEEW

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Hu Yiping

HH—FEsE

Mr. Fei Zhongmin

BRgUEE

Ms. Feng Xia (Resigned on 25 August 2020)
ISEBX L (FR202048 A25 A BHE)

Ms. Shan Bei (Appointed on 25 August 2020)
BrE+ (R20205F8 A25 R EZL )

Non-executive Director
FHTES

Mr. Hu Shihao
AR R EE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFHTES

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert

EoxtEEL

Mr. Ding Jiangang

T R4

Mr. Chen Hengliu

Chen Hengliust £

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation. The chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive, and the
chairmen of Board Committees, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee attended the 2020 AGM to answer questions
and collect views of shareholders.
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COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the shareholders and potential investors on the
Group’s business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable shareholders and investors to make the
informed investment decisions.

The annual general meeting provides opportunity for shareholders to
communicate directly with the Directors. The chairman of the Board,
the chairmen of the Board Committees will attend the annual general
meeting to answer shareholders’ questions. The external auditor of
the Company will also attend the annual general meeting to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report and auditor independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company and its
shareholders and maintains a website at http://www.dothinkgroup.
com, where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may at any time contact the
Company’s Investor Relations Department at 852-31509914 or
email to ir@dexingroup.com. The Board will review the shareholders’
communication policy regularly to ensure its effectiveness.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
will be proposed by the chairman of that meeting for each substantially
separate issue at shareholder meetings, including nomination and
election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each shareholder meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

(1) Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting

In accordance with Article 64 of the Articles, any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

(2) Procedures for putting forward proposals at
general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. However, shareholders who wish to propose
resolutions may follow Article 64 of the Articles for requisitioning
an extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at
such meeting. The requirements and procedures of Article 64 of
the Articles are set out above.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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(3) Enquiries to the Board B MEEESREESN
Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests BERERIEEEAIZ T @ EmARRED
to the Company as follows: EREHAXEK
Address: Room 2813, 28/F., The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Ak - HEFIREFREFIQRFIRF L
Central, Central, Hong Kong 281E2813 %
Attention: Investor Relations Department BEA  REEBR
Tel: 852-31509914 FEiE : 852-31509914
Fax: 852-31509900 5 & : 852-31509900
Email: ir@dexingroup.com BE AL : ir@dexingroup.com
Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner by AARBREFOEEATIREHEBEE -

the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL HBERXHEE
DOCUMENTS

The Articles has been amended and restated with effect from the H#RBIE&EFTNEY] - B EHHHEARI A
Listing Date, and are available on the respective website of the Stock  RES X FT AR RIFMEEMUEE R © B L XF#
Exchange and the Company. Save as disclosed above, there was no  EESN - HZE20209F12 A31 A - FEHMEY
change to the Articles during the year ended 31 December 2020. HMBVELEE -
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To the Shareholders of Dexin China Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Dexin China Holdings
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 143 to 274, which comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

B X HERE
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a summary of significant accounting policies. Zo
PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong YRR A TR o TR T A
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com B : +852 2289 8888 » fHH : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as follows:

e (Classification of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and

associates
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Key Audit Matter

s E R

B X HERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
B EH AR IR AR E = 1E

Classification of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

MELAR  SELCERBEARNDE

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 19 and Note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FELMRAE Y BHRERN T4 - BIFE19 RMIFE39 ©

The Group co-operated with other parties to invest in a
large number of property development projects, which
were classified as subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates.
EXEEAMFEERENAENEMEER - WHEE R
ASMAMBAR  AELERBEAF -

We focus on the classification of investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates as it is determined
based on whether the Group has control, joint control or
significant influence over the investees. The assessment
involves significant judgements through the analysis of
various factors, including constitution of decision making
authorities of an investee, such as shareholders’ meetings
and board of directors’ meetings, decision making
process, the Group’s representation on the decision
making authorities of an investee, as well as other facts
and circumstances.
BMBIRESEAMBAR aEbXESBERR] - BH
R EEBERBHREUREALETIE HARESIEREKX
TENERRENENHE - RENSBAE I REXH
i FEGEONMZERER  BRREBRIBRRERE
PREERRAEREBFSHNRE  RKHET X SEEEREY
KOTERRERBORKREL - UREMEERBI -

In assessing the classification of new investments or
changes to existing investments during the year, we
have performed the following procedures:

R ERFFIENIRE RN FREEBENFERE -
BMERT ATESER

1. We obtained and examined the legal documents
in relation to the investments (“Investment
Documents”), including the cooperation
agreements with other co-developers and
articles of associations of the investees, with
particular focuses on, including but not limited
to the terms and conditions in relation to the
rights of investors, cooperation arrangements,
termination provisions, management structures
and profit-sharing arrangements, and assessed
management’s judgement by analysing these
key terms against accounting standards. Where
there have been subsequent changes to the co-
developers’ agreements, articles of association
and management structures, we critically
assessed management’s re-assessment on
whether those changes would affect the initial
classification.

1. BMEGTEE TREHRNERXMH ([KRE
M) BREEHMRESTEITNEEREGZ
MREHRNER - WEAITRTREERT B
BREENEN  SERENRH - BRIEGR
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
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Classification of investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

MELAR  SELCERBEQRNDE

2. We examined the documents related to decision
making of property development, including
minutes of shareholders’ meetings and board
of directors’ meetings of the investees, and
evaluated the detailed project management and
approval processes on a sample basis, including
the authorities in determination and approval
of project budgets, financing plan, selection of
main constructors and vendors of the projects
and the determination of sales and marketing
plan.

2. ZMBEETHAERBARXY  BREREHRH
BREAEGNESTEERCHE - WHETHARBD
BEEERREMHLRERE BEEERENEIR
BROBRFEHEFNEDR  TERKEET

B EIE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that
management’s judgements applied in determining
the classification of the Group’s investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates were
supported by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BNEN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BNEN RS

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Au Chi Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ra s

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLEEE

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ TR ARBTIT
Revenue WA 6 15,668,775 9,512,995
Cost of sales 4R 7 (11,766,517) (6,453,672)
Gross profit £l 3,902,258 3,059,323
Other income HE KA 9 331,048 81,583
Other (losses)/gains — net Hfth (E518),/ Uez5 558 10 (8,264) 88,992
Selling and marketing expenses & & & 5 & 7 (457,854) (457,555)
Administrative expenses 77 & 7 (746,665) (720,650)
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties & & ¥ R A BE
(B18) /s 15 (26,666) 186,153
Operating profit &2 F|58 2,993,857 2,237,846
Finance income & & WA 11 69,502 95,382
Finance costs g & A4 11 (550,787) (527,320)
Finance costs — net gl & ik 558 (481,285) (431,938)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates D {h& & N
kNI 19 592,888 1,175,306
Profit before income tax F75 % B % E 3,105,460 2,981,214
Income tax expenses FT{SFiFI ST 12 (844,965) (724,587)
Profit for the year F£ R T4 2,260,495 2,256,627
Profit attributable to: A T & 5 FE/EFIE :
Owners of the Company AR &#EH A 1,192,502 1,556,514
Non-controlling interests FE{Z I 4 5 1,067,993 700,113
2,260,495 2,256,627
Earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company
(expressed in RMB per share) X2 T HEEAEBEERER
(BRUARYESIR)
— Basic and diluted — E AN #58 29 0.44 0.60

The above consolidated income statement should be read in A F4R&KREE R FEEAREMT M s —GFE)E -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GezHERER

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

Note RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

=2 AR¥T T ARET T

Profit for the year X%/ 2,260,495 2,256,627

Other comprehensive income Hfth 2 HE U - -

Total comprehensive income for the year FF A2 E U S 4458 2,260,495 2,256,627
Attributable to: A T & HFE(G :

Owners of the Company N2 A A A 1,192,502 1,556,514

Non-controlling interests FE#ZE G HEZS 1,067,993 700,113

2,260,495 2,256,627

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should A _F4RA 2N E T FESEBEFT s — 01RI:E -
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERMEX

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR%T T ARETTT
ASSETS &7E&
Non-current assets FFHREEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - = & & E 14 511,369 378,821
Investment properties & ¥ 15 3,478,381 2,924,115
Intangible assets # & & 956 1,445
Investments accounted for using the equity method {# A BRAVIRE 19 5,402,191 3,792,338
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss R QA EETE B £ &

AAAERNEREE 21 93,157 170,726
Deferred income tax assets #EEFTIS T & & 17 772,325 748,400
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & 5 & £ b & U 75 78 LA &

Faft | 23 79,301 75,179

10,337,680 8,091,024
Current assets REEE
Properties under development F 3 H ¥ % 22 49,429,752 36,657,831
Completed properties held for sale 51 H & H% T ¥3 22 1,524,348 591,370
Trade and other receivables and prepayments & 5 K E fi i W 7018

WA R FER R 23 4,637,845 3,512,629
Amounts due from non-controlling interests & U FE1% A #E 28 F0 0B 33 8,695,353 4,951,599
Amounts due from related parties & Uk B8 /5 5k 18 38 5,033,402 2,918,668
Contract acquisition costs & 49Uk Bk Zx 6 190,517 13,705
Prepaid income taxes TEfFT15H: 996,416 879,318
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & AR B{ET 2

BRI ABRENCREE 21 109,768 100,743
Restricted cash X R flIIR & 24 928,980 5,797
Cash and cash equivalents 314 MR ZEY 25 14,719,240 9,564,316

86,265,621 59,195,976
Total assets EE&A % 96,603,301 67,287,000
EQUITY #&
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the Company

KAREBAEBEELRR REE
Share capital f&7 26 9,200 9,200
Reserves f#{#& 27,28 5,836,082 5,004,285

5,845,282 5,013,485
Non-controlling interests 3E#% A% i 2% 10,765,522 5,721,243
Total equity #E#= &% 16,610,804 10,734,728
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEERER

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB?’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARETTT

LIABILITIES & f&
Non-current liabilities JERE & &
Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions B 877 & H b

TR R 30 16,949,610 9,307,915
Trade and other payables & 5 K E i FE {5118 31 - 247,498
Amounts due to non-controlling interests & JE12E I i 25 FUB 33 26,318 228,598
Amounts due to related parties J&1f B8 7 28 38 - 500,000
Deferred income tax liabilities #EEFTEH & & 17 208,528 210,650
Lease liabilities A& & & 16 471,566 156,063

17,656,022 10,650,724

Current liabilities FE & &
Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions B 877 & E 1t

TREBAER 30 8,738,454 5,540,160
Trade and other payables & 5 K H b &~ 7118 31 7,182,058 4,323,513
Amounts due to non-controlling interests &<t JE12E I i 25 FIB 33 5,748,068 3,681,099
Amounts due to related parties &1 B8 77 718 38 7,082,019 3,485,010
Contract liabilities & # & & 6 32,309,337 27,628,013
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS % & & 1,269,148 1,242,359
Lease liabilities & & & 16 7,391 1,394

62,336,475 45,901,548

Total liabilities B E& % 79,992,497 56,552,272
Total equity and liabilities #E 3 & & &4 %8 96,603,301 67,287,000
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction LA 434 &2 & (& 7% FE FEBE T T — OFBIE -

with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 143 to 274 were $143E274HMEZEA M EHRERN20214F3 A
approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2021 and were 25REESEZRe#E TRXEEFSEE
signed on its behalf.

Hu Yiping Shan Bei
#—F &
Director Director

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARRBDHE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ARTRE AR

Non-
Share Other Statutory Retained controlling Total

capital reserves reserves earnings Total interests equity

BA& Hthikfe HE RS RE K Az | FERER ERBE

RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARMTT ARBTr AR%TR AR%Tr | AR%TR | ARETR
(Note 26) (Note 27) (Note 28)
(K26) (Myazar) (Kz£8)

Balance at 1 January 2020 202051 A1 R 144 9,200 1,579,693 742,128 2,682,464 5,013,485 5,721,243 10,734,728
Comprehensive income 2 AUz

- Profit for the year — F R - - - 1,192,502 1,192,502 1,067,993 2,260,495
Total comprehensive income A Mm% - - - 1,192,502 1,192,502 1,067,993 2,260,495

Transactions with owners in their

capacity as owners 2B A AR EREFAN

) HRS
Capital injections from non-controlling interests

FERERTE - - - -
Return of capital to non-controlling interests 512

BRFHERS - - - -
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries

(Note 37) Y M2 RIAVERSMER (MEE37) - (146,775) - - (146,775) (182,069)  (328,844)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yt8& /1B 2 7l - - - - 1,568,941 1,568,941
Distributions to non-controlling interests 43E2 1%

BRIk - - - -
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without

change of control (Note 37) 7 K2 A 12| i ph

3,515,500 3,515,500

(97,500) (97,500)

(349,514) (349,514)

MERTLERBL AIES (FixEs7) - 2,177 - - 2,177 38,070 40,247
Dividends for the year ended 31 December 2019 (Note
13) H22019F 12 A31 AL EE MRS (Hi513) - (216,107) - - (216,107) - (216,107)

Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 40) HEMB A (FizF40) - - - -

(517,142) (517,142)

Total transactions with owners in their

capacity as owners B A (MEEAERA
WEH) HRELEE - (360,705) - - (360,705) 3,976,286 3,615,581

Transfer to statutory reserves EBE %Rk -

324464 (324,464) - - -

Balance at 31 December 2020 20205128318
fies 9,200 1,218,988 1,066,592 3,550,502 5,845,282 10,765,522 16,610,804

147



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

RETERRARLA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SRR BR

Attributable to the owners of the Company
ﬂ]‘ E A
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves reserves eamings Total interests equity
b E i Vi1 wEWE h 2
RMB'000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T TT T ARETT T T
(Note 26)
(HzE26)
Balance at 1 January 2019 #2019%1 §1 A48 6,848 598,540 372,605 1,495,473 2,473,466 4,395,171 6,868,637
Comprehensive income 2 EIE
- Profit for the year — ERH & - - - 1,556,514 1,556,514 700,113 2,256,627
Total comprehensive income 2 Mz #£58 - - - 1,556,514 155,514 700,113 2,256,627
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
EREA UEERREANSH) B A
Issue of shares in connection with the Gompany’s listing
RARALHETRG 2017 1,426,936 - - 1,428,063 - 1,428,068
Share issuance costs R E{TRE - (46,481) - - (46,481) = (46,481)
ISsue of shares in connection with
the capitalisation issue 5t E AL BT A 33 (335) S S S = =
Capital injections from non-controling interests JEER &R E - - - - - 1230,916 1230,916
Return of capital to non-controlling interests $EEAF
Rk - - - - - (97,885 (97,885)
Acquisttion of additional interests in subsidiaries (Note 37)
WEMEARDNBIMER (H3E37) - (152,526) - - (152,526) (206,427) (358,953)
Acquisition of subsidiaries which do not contain a business
YETERZXHOHEAA - - - - - 17,7% 17,79
Distributions to non-controling interests $/3EEiRERRM 2 & - - - - - (565,087) (565,037)
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without
change of control EREEEGIERZMEATHE
WELRER - 23,693 - - 23,693 246,596 270,289
Interim dividends for 2019 (Note 13) 2019 ER #k & (H3E13) = (270,134) S S (270,134) = 270,134)
Total transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners A A (MEEBEEANEH)
WRXAAR 2,35 981,153 - - 983,505 625,959 1,609,464
Transfer to statutory reserves E1EZ TR - - 369,523 (369,523) 5 E =
Balance at 31 December 2019 201951231 A& 9,200 1,579,693 742,128 2,682,464 5,013,485 5,721,243 10,734,728

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be

d in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEHEREBR

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HLEEE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T

Cash flows from operating activities & ZEHNHELHRE

Cash generated from operations & ZEFT{5H & 32(a) 2,626,306 2,004,178
Income tax paid B TS (986,525) (1,067,883)
Interest paid B 1351 & (1,674,102) (1,201,223)
Interest received & U7 & 125,393 95,791

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities &4 EE TS~
G 91,072 (169,137)

Cash flows from investing activities REEFFHNRERE
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment FtEE %

5 B % > AN R IR (203,660) (111,192)
Payments for purchase of investment properties #t## & # & ¥ % > (38 (327,337) (695,282)
Investments in joint ventures ¥ & &> %R E (2,137,436) (587,308)
Investments in associates $1EE &R A1 E (1,202,951) (1,084,345)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss &

RAREBEFEEHEEHTABENEREE (143,379) (543,813)

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss &R AR BEGTZ AHEEH T ABRD

TREEMSNRIA 229,871 671,342
Advances to non-controlling shareholders [f)3F 1% A% A% B8 £ 3¢ (4,859,308) (2,865,170)
Repayment of advances from non-controlling shareholders 3F#2 #& A% 5

EEBK 757,164 1,049,372
Advances to third parties [A15 = 5 3K (455,605) (313,970)
Repayment of advances from third parties 5 = /7 {BiE 2 5k 296,410 34,781
Advances to joint ventures and associates [A14 & (b 2 LBt & A 18K (4,549,194) (2,727,347)
Collection of advances from joint ventures and associates W [E& &> %

S WNSIEE 2,364,119 2,212,378
Net cash inflow/(outflow) for acquisition of subsidiaries U4z E& 1B A 7]

FHEESRACRE) 59,893 (922,625)
Advances to other related parties [A) £ b BE s /5 24 5k - (6,088)
Collection of advances from other related parties U351 H b B H 77 24 7% 19,423 381,211
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 2 Y& &% K&

B N RIS 867,682 1,349,647
Net cash outflow for disposal of subsidiaries H&EHIEB R FFIR £ A 40 (378,152) =
Return of capital from joint ventures and associates & &% &

BENRREERN 488,004 -
Prepayment for investment in a joint venture &N — & & EFa Rt 78 (26,000) =
Others-net HAfth + JF %8 (3,429) 21,941
Net cash used in investing activities & & /A B FTAIR & /558 (9,203,885) (4,136,468)
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
nV'.F IE%U“:E'%%

Cash flows from financing activities BEEEHNEERE

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE

2020
20205
RMB’000
AR®FR

2019
20194
RMB’ 000
AREF T

Proceeds from the Company’s listing 4~/ &) _E T FT{5 508 - 1,428,953
Payments for listing expenses {5 B ZUB - (40,464)
Proceeds from borrowings from bank and other financial Institutions

BRIT R HM S B ENE RS RIE 24,766,443 12,193,035
Repayments of borrowings from bank and other financial Institutions

BEBRTRAMSREENER (17,547,643) (7,217,680)
Repayments of loans to third parties EEFE=HHNER (437,498) (56,001)
Advances from third parties 2R 8 % = 77 K 878,554 437,498
Advances from joint ventures and associates & B & &b 2 KRBt & A 7

YK 4,372,872 1,478,597
Repayment of advances to joint ventures and associates EE & &%

N A/NGI SN (641,427) (1,579,060)
Advances from other related parties 7 & £ th BB 77 69 430 22,497 60,654
Repayment of advances to other related parties [A) E th BB 77 (B2 24 50 (3,351) (2,758)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests FE¥ERRAERSITE 3,515,500 1,230,916
Capital returned to non-controlling interests & @l 3122 A% 4 25 & /K (97,500) (97,885)
Distribution to non-controlling interests ¥fJEFE AL HEZEHY 2 IR (349,514) (565,037)
Payments for acquisition of non-controlling interests Y 38 FE42 A% 2 2515 X (328,844) (358,953)
Advances from non-controlling interests & B FF12 A% A 25 H) #A X 4,495,560 3,707,184
Repayment of advances to non-controlling interests 1&i& JF1R AR EEZR BA TR (3,184,510) (4,205,295)
Principal elements of lease payments & 78 = B 5D (37,979) (30,334)
Payments for dividends of the Company 3 & A B AL & (216,107) (270,134)
Proceeds from disposal of interests in subsidiaries without loss of control

EARKREZEHENITR T L EM B R RERISHIEA 40,247 270,289
Restricted cash for borrowings & # &) 2R #1138 & (923,183) (4,502)
Net cash generated from financing activities Bt & EEFTSIR & /F 58 14,324,117 6,379,023
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents & R B &S EYIEINFEEE 5,211,304 2,073,418
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year E#1I8 $ MR L HEY 9,564,316 7,486,911
Exchange (losses)/gains on cash and cash equivalents 3¢ M IR & ZEY

e (B518), s (56,380) 3,987
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year S RXRBEERBEEEEY 25 14,719,240 9,564,316

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dexin China Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 16 January 2018 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The Company is an investment
holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the property development and
construction services, property investment and hotel operations in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company’s shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 26 February 2019.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”"), unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issued by the Board on 25 March 2021.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial
statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i)  Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622.

e SRR A

—REHR

EEPEZERER QA ([AQA]) RIK
MEeERATER2018F1 16 HER
SERSTMKIABREERNF o Kt
9 = B2 4 A Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands "2 7] A%
BERAG - ARG REMB AR (K&
) FERPEARKLNEA ([FE])HE
MR ERREERE  MERERBIEE

=

(TAVAN
b =

AATRDN2019F2 A26 HEE A
RHFAER AR (TH#FT]) £ o

BIEREHA  BARFHEEPHRERIA
ARE(TARE] 275 -

ZEGAMBHRERCON2021F3 A25HE
EESREREM -

EXRETTBREE

AU R B REZ FHRA M HMREFAMR
MZBAEHRRBE - BRRBHAIN
ZEBRRFAEERFEER—BUER -
BRI R/AEE (BARTRENB L
BIAER) AR -

21 MBEE

() BFEBHHHREERREERA]
&0

AEBOGEMBHRRDBRIERE
MBmELER (FEMBREE
A1) REE R AHEDIE 622 F B
BRTRHE -

151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

2. EXERTHEBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(i) Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit

21 MBEE ()
(i) FELHEAZE
A BBRER TIRIBE & AR

2 UKEERAREEFERR
B ABRGNEREERKREY

or loss and investment properties, which are carried at fair X (o EEIIKR) MIEEET -
value.
(i) New and amended standards and interpretations adopted (i) FE BRI FET RACIEETER R

by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations for the
first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1

January 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

EEEERE IR REB S ERESR (BFIA)

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BEEMBREEANFEIN (BFIA)
Amendments to HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9
and HKAS 39
BEAMBRERAETS  BEMBREER
FOR LB R GFERIFE395 (BFTA)
Revised Conceptual Framework
RETHIER
Amendments to HKFRS 16
BERNBREEAE165 (BITX)

The amendments listed above did not have any impact

2

AEBEF2020F1 A1 HREBH
FEREHERERAT 2554
Bl » R ZABR] AR RRE -

Definition of Material
BERNTE

Definition of a Business
EVE0NGE:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

SRS

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
BRI ELE

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

2019F BB SHAEREER

BRERTAREREHRERN SR

on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are A2 - FEEAS AREIE SR
not expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

KBPETEHEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EREHHERYE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 MBEZE (&)
(iv) New Standards, amendments to standards and (iv) 525 R IR FTETER) - 2EAl

interpretations not yet adopted by the Group ZIEFT R R 2 FE
The following new standards, amendments, interpretation ATRERET 4R~ R ZBRTA - 3
to standards and accounting guideline have been TR e sl B - R ARRE
published that are not mandatory for the year ended 31 F£2020%F 12 A31 H L F[EZ 58§l
December 2020 and have not been early adopted by the 17 AERAEETERERA
Group:

Effective for annual

periods beginning

on or after
AT B sk
BB FE
HARR A
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2021
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 - Phase 2
BN BREENEIR REE G LA FIREANE - F_RER 2021F1A1H

F39% - BEMBHREEFE4R R
BERMBRELRFE165 (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: 1 January 2022
Proceeds before intended use

BRI ERE165 (BITAX) ME - WERRE - R TERRA 20221 A1H
PS5O

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual 1 January 2022
Framework

BB EERFEIN (BFIA) SRPSER 202261 A1H

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling 1 January 2022
a Contract

BB G ERIE37H (BFTAK) BRAR - BITRRNKA 2022F1A1H

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRS 1 January 2022
Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

FREBE BEMBREER 2 FEUCE - 202241 A1 H
2018 £ 20205 B 51
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

e
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREFTBERBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 wRBEE (H)
(iv) New Standards, amendments to standards and (iv) NEE 3R RABIFTETZER] - 228
interpretations not yet adopted by the Group (continued) ZIEET AR (&)

Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after

Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common 1 January 2022
Control Combination

BRI g5 EEIE55% HRAZFHEHZEMHEE 2022F1A1H

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as 1 January 2023
Current or Non-current

BEA GRS (BITAR) BEANBARDIIERD 2023F1A1H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2023

— Classification by the borrower of
a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause

BHEREBEST (2020F) MBBEZEH — ERAHHERER 20231 H1H
BEEFZEHER 2O

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

BEEMBRELANFE7H5 RBRER 2023%1A1H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or contribution of Assets To be determined

between an investor and
its associate or joint venture

BEMBREEAFE10HREF LG ER REENEBERAISLELEZHEN fFE

F28%% (BT K) BELEXLE
The adoption of the new and amended standards and BN T RASHE RTE B A R e R
interpretation did not have a material impact on the AREZEEHBHRRLBEAY

consolidated financial statements of the Group. 2-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations
Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been consolidated from the date
when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statements and the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control consolidation.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between combining
entities or business are eliminated on consolidation.

e SRR A

2. EXGFBREBE (H)

22 MEBATF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘l-ﬁ A X Zl-ﬁ&#&'%élz{j?

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EREHBERME (18)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
22 BT ()

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

@) EHE G (&)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations under common control (continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group. The consideration transferred includes
the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interest and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of
non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition
date fair value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e MR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 B R (&)

@) RBEEOF(B)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

Business combinations under common control (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without

(©

change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded in
equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category if equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

2. EXERTHEBE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

(@)

(e)

Structure entities

For structured entities, the Group assesses whether they
should be consolidated based on the contractual terms
as to whether the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Third-party beneficiaries’
interests in the consolidated structured entities with
a limited life or puttable instruments issued and are
classified as liabilities in the Group’s consolidated balance
sheets, and net profits or losses attributable to third-party
beneficiaries are recorded in consolidated profit or loss as
“finance costs”.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment and is being either the cash
consideration amount or the amount of net asset value
of the subsidiaries for share-settled transaction under
reorganisation and business combination under common
control. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

e SRR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREFTBERBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Associates 23 BENT]
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant BERNRINASERAFRBREERY
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally 2 mIE I IR S K B H R AT
the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of BB —RME AEEREPHES
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted 20% E50% MR ZRE - KRB QAR
for using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity KREZEESTEAR - REEzE
method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised A REBEVSRKAER - LHEE
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased = 2k PR BRE (E A MRS B B g
to recognise the investor’'s share of the profit or loss of the REEDMBERETHEZR - Dok
investee after the date of acquisition. Dividends received or JEYEE AR R EER BN EREE
receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction W o REBEREBE RAGNIRERRE
in the carrying amount of the investment. The Group’s W BRGNS - WERE AT
investment in associates includes goodwill identified on FREHER - B AR REAEE
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in DIEEE AR ENEERBENTF
an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate AREEZENEREZEARIIERY
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s = o

identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but EREBE QRN BREERL - ME
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of FEWRE  BE—HHzrEH
the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive HEEREFERNSEBEWENS
income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate. ¥aEn (WEA) -

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is REEDEHRBEEBERES KNG
recognised in the consolidated income statement, and its XKABR - MESGHEMEEKER
share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive WU R B Z BN H A 2R N R
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with R UEHRENROEERERE -
a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the EAEESNBERRNEBEERN
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate HREHNE S QR ER (BIEEE
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any hEE AR RIE) - AIRIEREED
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise EEETSErEAREREZEE
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive RANR  BAIREE T8 —T®E

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. RETE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount
of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in profit or loss.

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depend on the
contractual rights and obligations of each investor, rather than
the legal structure of the joint arrangement. The Group has
assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EREHBERME (18)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
24 HEZRH (&)

2.4 Joint arrangements (continued)

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income.
The Group’s investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Dividends received or receivable
from joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in a joint venture, any difference between
the cost of the joint venture and the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is accounted for as goodwill. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint ventures.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment in the joint
venture is impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share of results of a
joint venture” in profit or loss.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker (“CODM”), who is responsible for allocating

resources and assessing performance of the operating

segments, has been identified as the executive directors that

makes strategic decision.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

@)

(b)

()

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation

currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREFTBERBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued) 26 HERE (E)
(c) Group companies (continued) (c) EEL A (E)
e income and expenses for each income statement o BMHEEMWARFAZIEFEY
are translated at average exchange rates (unless this fERME (BRIFLEEL I
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative ERXRFHHMRTERZFZE
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, BWEBAE - BRIKRARMAX
in which case income and expenses are translated at BN S ABHBRE) - &

the dates of the transactions), and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised in s FERNEANENRZHEAR
other comprehensive income. HEma2mlesAER -
2.7 Property, plant and equipment 27 MI%¥ - BERKE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost Y - BB R EEIRE LA T
less depreciation and any impairment loss. Historical cost EREMAEBEYEER - BELKAE
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the FFRWEETE B B EEMHRAT -

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount BENTENNEERILESEZ
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when HEEBMRREEN = MZEERN
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with AR ER - At ABE
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can FHENERABLEE (WER) -
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component ERBIEEANERNEMBLAER
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when BEREERKILHER FIEHMES
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to MMREEEANASELHRGEANGIE
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are TR ©

incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
27 W% - BERRE ()

2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment, the

WERBERENE  AREMAF A £
REHRA - AWBEEMERERSE
THERE MREURATEEHEBS
A BECERA (HIBRERIREE) -

shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 20-40 years
BFREEYREE 20E404F
Office equipment 3-5 years
HNRE 3ESF
Motor vehicles 4 years
k=] VRS

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other (losses)/gains-net” in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred of property, plant and equipment less
any impairment losses. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time the relevant assets
are completed and ready for use. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

The carrying amount of an asset under construction is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

EENFBEAENMTEAFHNSR
SHARETRMALFE (WER)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8

2.9

Intangible assets
Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (2 to 5 years). Costs associated with
maintaining computer software programs are recognised as
an expenses as incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties, such as right-of-use assets, are held
for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both,
and that are not occupied by the Group. They also include
properties that are being constructed or developed for future
use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the
rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In such
cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted for as
if they were finance leases. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value, representing
open market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are presented in

profit or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EREHHERYE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10lmpairment of non-financial assets 210 kS REERE
Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible REBEAEAFHNER EENE
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and FHRTANENEEET#E B
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to SFARBEETAR - BEHHEN
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or BE BEESHLHAXBRARERET
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount BRTEE ] gE R B B BT TR E R
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for Mo mESEREEZREEBLHE
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its ARESE ZEHER - JIKE S E
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of NWEEZARBEEMNBHESE X ANK(E
an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. FEEMEZHEESEBE - RNFEH
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped BER  BERUSH#AANBEESRE
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable (ReELEM])HRERBRAES -
cash flows (“‘cash-generating unit”). Non-financial assets other BREEN  EEXRENECREE
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for ESEREREIRRERS AT ARE
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. HEITER -

2.11Properties under development 2MBHEE R Y
Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost FERYERKANEERFE-F
and net realisable value. Net realisable value is determined WEREESER - TSR FES2ER —
by reference to the sale proceeds of properties sold in the ﬂx%ﬂ‘“ﬂ&ﬁP EEWMERHEEER
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling R ERMAISEER I RIES
expenses and the anticipated costs to completion, or by uﬁlﬂz'vﬁém CKAREEEREER
management estimates based on prevailing marketing TSR EFTERE °
conditions.
Development cost of property mainly comprises cost of land MENREXNANETZERE L OFERAE
use rights, construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised KA - BEKRAK  REEREEER
for qualifying assets and professional fees incurred during EHERRKAREREAREENE
the development period. On completion, the properties are XBR  -WMERBRIRERE/FIED
transferred to completed properties held for sale. ERR T -
Properties under development are classified as current assets BRIFTEEN A ERZIE B EER
when the construction of the relevant properties commences ER—MEERE  DRIFEFRYE
unless the construction period of the relevant property REEMENRETRERBEDEAS
development project is expected to complete beyond normal MENEE - —REEBHBEER2ES
operating cycle. The normal operating cycle is usually between F o

2 and 3 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.11Properties under development (continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract comprise the development cost and
land use right cost directly related to an existing contract
that will be used to satisfy performance obligations in the
future. The costs to fulfil a contract are recorded in properties
under development if they are expected to be recovered. The
amount is amortised on a systematic basis, consistent with
the pattern of revenue recognition of the contract to which the
asset relates.

2.12Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at reporting period
end are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to the unsold
properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale
proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses, or by management
estimates based on prevailing marketing conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13Financial assets 2IIERMEE
2131 Classification 2181 748

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment
is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2182 Recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
fair value through profit or loss are expensed in the
consolidated income statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13Financial assets (continued)
2.182Recognition and measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

e Amortised cost: assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on
a debt investment that is subsequently measured
at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the consolidated income
statements when the asset is derecognised or
impaired. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method.

e Fair value through profit or loss: assets that do not
meet the criteria for amortised cost or financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
measured at fair value through profit or loss. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss and presented net in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income within ‘other
gains — net’ in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in the

‘finance income’.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13Financial assets (continued)
2182 Recognition and measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statements as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in ‘other gains —
net’ in the consolidated income statements as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

2.14Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheets when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREFTBERBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15lmpairment of financial assets 258 REERE
The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected AN B 1R AU WE M B AT Ak B L IR 8
credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised KASNENEEREAABETER
cost and debt investment at fair value through other E2Pi A EMme2ARENEREE
comprehensive income. The impairment methodology applied ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’]i‘ﬁﬁéﬁ{?ﬁﬁﬁg o B8 AHRAE
depends on whether there has been a significant increase FEERRNEERRBESTREBHS °
in credit risk. Note 3.1.2 details how the Group determines MIEE3.1. 25 il AREEE A FEE EE R
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. BREBAEAR °
Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of EHEEEEAYCREENTEHSE
credit losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over mNEEEEEN T (A
the expected life of the financial assets. FIER&EMMIRE)
For contract assets and all trade receivables, the Group ?Jﬁ BHNEERMBE ZEWKKRIEAEM
applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which CAEBRAEEMBRELERNSE
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial QEJE/’EEH’\JEMKEK AN ERKTER
recognition of the assets. The provision matrix is determined GRERABENRVEEREERER -
based on historical observed default rates over the expected BHEEAREEREUEERRISEN
life of the contract assets and trade receivables with similar EREERE S EWFIARNTEH F 5
credit risk characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking AMBEBRRENOERETE - WikH
estimates. At every reporting date the historical observed EUEETAR REREHHENB
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking FABRELOE RS HTATE G
estimates are analysed. 2o
Impairment on other receivables are measured as either HEiERRIERERI2EABHEER
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit EEAFEMEREEEETZE R
losses, depending on whether there has been a significant TEERBVEEREESKNEAS
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant fME ° 4 fERFKIBEEERR VI
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred since initial REeEXEAS  AIERERFERE
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime expected HEEEETE -

credit losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16Land use rights 2.16 1 b 55 FA#E

All land in the PRC is state-owned or collectively-owned
and no individual ownership right exists. Land use rights are
acquired by the Group for development of properties. Land
use rights held for development for sale are inventories and
measured at lower of cost and net realisable value, of which
those within normal operating cycle are classified as current
assets and included in properties under development or
completed properties held for sale, while those out of the
normal operating cycle are classified as non-current assets.
Land use rights to be developed for hotel properties and
self-use buildings, are non-current assets, which are stated
at cost and subsequently amortised to the profit or loss on a
straight-line basis.

2.17Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
properties sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXEFHREE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18Contract assets and liabilities and costs for LBEHNEERBBURBEER
obtaining contracts Y B 2
Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group FHRPIUAHNR  AEBEHEE
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer BEFPINHRE  WHRERTEFHE
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or REVHRBEHNBHET - ZFHEF
services to the customer. The combination of those rights FEHETHAEBFEELF A
and performance obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net B RTFHGENEBENEF BN
liability depending on the relationship between the remaining BERME o fMBERRE R FIERE GG
rights and the performance obligations. The contract is an BANBREBITORAOEME @ BlZE
asset and recognised as contract assets if the measure of NR—IBEE ITHIARGHNEE -
the remaining conditional rights to consideration exceeds the Rz MFGENSEBBEGHE
satisfied performance obligations. Conversely, the contract is - RZENAE—BEEE WHERA
a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the measure araE-

of the remaining performance obligations exceeds the
measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a WAEEERGITNEARERERE
contact with a customer within contract assets if the Group HMEERNZENRA @ BB EREK
expects to recover these costs. KERBEHWERE o

2.19Cash and cash equivalents and restricted 29 ERBEESEBEMURZRE
cash Re
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MEEHRERERANEIME © B
statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes e hASESEMREFEEAS  JTH
cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other RITHEREREBAEAE=EAFIUA
short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities MEMBH  sREERE - B
of three months or less. Bank deposits which are restricted FRANRTESGAGEGEERER
to use are included in “restricted cash” of the consolidated AR ZRHRS ] - IRHBETE
balance sheets. Restricted cash is excluded from cash and RERSRRESZEMA -

cash equivalents.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.21Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment
is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They
are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.22Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREFTBERBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.22 Borrowings and borrowing costs (continued) 22 ERREREA (&)
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the EAHNNFIANETRHER « BUBSE
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled i BEREEEBBERABKR -2
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of KHEBRIEBREAM TN ESREED
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred FREBEEMANRE (BEMEEN T
to another party and the consideration paid, including FRSEESIMAENAR) cHNE
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is ERERNERSEMBRASIREK
recognised in profit or loss as other income or finance costs. PN
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group RIEREBBERBEGUGEEBEER
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for HRCERERREEZL12R - &
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Alfg DB ARBEE -
General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable Wi  2ESAE-—BFTREEHET
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying ARRBERARILENEEREE
assets, like properties under development, assets under (PlunmzEh s  EREERTER
construction and investment properties under construction, BYE) BEEELN—REFRIERK
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period RERANEZZEENKE EEZ
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added EEETABAERERASHEE -

to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of EEBETERANBNEAEREE
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying MY GEEREEEMEENRE W
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for ABEBBREREBERE AR R ©

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the FrEHMERANAEREEARBER
period in which they are incurred. PR ©
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Group’s entities operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment. The group measures its tax
balances either based on the most likely amount or the
expected value, depending on which method provides a
better prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using the tax
rates(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

e SRR A

2. EXEFBERBE (H)

223 B RS P15
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. EXEFHBEREBE (H)

223 BNHA R IR FE Fr 18 4 (48)

2.23Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued) (b) EIEATIZH ()

Inside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the joint venture’s or associate’s
undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be

utilised.

AEEEEZERE ()
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
223 BN R IESE ARG B (4

2.23 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(c) Offsetting (c) # 5

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.24Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

The group companies incorporated in the PRC contribute
based on certain percentage of the salaries of the
employees to a defined contribution retirement benefit
plan organised by relevant government authorities in the
PRC on a monthly basis. The government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired employees under
these plans and the Group has no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

Contributions to these defined contributions plans are
expensed as incurred.

ERREAITHENSEMNEER
EEERHARGHEN  BELMHm
BREEME B KAR—HHEH
FRHERT BRI RERKTER
BEBRANFEEEEEAENE
BREF - RIRT RIS EERA
EEARE -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.24Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Housing benefits, medical insurances and other social

(©

insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate
in various government-supervised housing funds, medical
insurance and other social insurance plan. The Group
contributes to these funds based on certain percentages
of the salaries of these employees on a monthly basis.
The Group’s liability in respect of these funds is limited to
the contribution payable in each period. Contributions to
the housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances are expensed as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs for a
restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and
involves the payment of terminations benefits. In the case
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.

2. EXERTHEBE (&)

2UEERF (&)

(b) 1EE#EF -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
LUEEEF ()

2.24Employee benefits (continued)

(d) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

2.25Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

(d) 1ES AR
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREFTBERBE (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.26Revenue recognition 2.26 R A TERR
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration WARBRAEHEMEARRAE
received or receivable for the sales of properties in the PRC B HEEBBRERRERE M KL
and services in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. FBUWREHRAABETZ - 7 REA
Revenue is shown, net of discounts and after eliminating sales e fOBR T NI SH B AR &= B Ak B A )
with the Group companies. The Group recognises revenue RISHE o ﬂ»‘%@ﬁﬂﬁlki\%ﬁ%%’]—f%
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when AR RREEMNZRETERA
it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the B &??Aﬁﬁlmxlﬁﬁﬁ“/ﬁibﬁﬁ
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of FEEIRERRERA « BBBINT o

the Group’s activities, as described below.

() Sales of properties and construction services () HEYRREZRE

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the WAEEEEFIRER G ERKE

asset is transferred to the purchaser. Depending on the BR - BRESHNNBIMERNE

terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the HHER - EEMIEHIENESTE

contract, control of the asset may transfer over time or R—RRIE-EHER - IRA

at a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over SENBOBAFEATERL &

time if the Group’s performance: ERIEHIEN K — R B A EE

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed e BXRARWIBEEARER
simultaneously by the purchaser; or BAMERF = 5

e creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser o AREEREHRAIZEILEELER
controls as the Group performs; or FriEHle&EE ; =k

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to e BRBEEEXHAKEABNRAR
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to MEE - BARSE ] RHIENIT
payment for performance completed to date. HEMAKRZAEZSETK

BXVEB D BUFRIE o

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is MREEMZEHRECE —KRERHE

recognised over the period of the contract by reference % WASRBHORTETHREER

to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that EBHRERETHER - TR WA

performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised FERESEEEHEOREIE

at a point in time when the purchaser obtains control of R e

the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.26Revenue recognition (continued) 2.26 N ATERR (48])

(i) Sales of properties and construction services (continued) () HEDEREZRE (B&)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation, by reference to the contract costs incurred up
to the end of reporting period as a percentage of total
estimated costs for each contract.

For property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in
time, revenue is recognised when the purchaser obtains
the physical possession or the legal title of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment and
the collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effect of a
financing component if it is significant.

For construction services, the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset or work in progress that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
thus the Group satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time. Revenue in respect of
the construction services is recognised over time on a
cost-to-cost method. It is measured by reference to the
contract costs incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection with
future activity on a contract are excluded from contract
costs in determining the stage of completion. The
directors consider that this input method is an appropriate
measure of the progress towards complete satisfaction
of these performance obligations under HKFRS15. The
Group becomes entitled to invoice customers based on
achieving a series of performance-related milestones.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREFTBERBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.26Revenue recognition (continued) 226 ATERR (48)
(i) Sales of properties and construction services (continued) () HEYRREZRD (&)

The Group recognises a contract asset for any work HEENSBEERS PAASEER
performed, and the amount previously recognised as ENHBEANEZEGIE - HE
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at BN ZGERARE ERIREK AL
the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the BIEEERHMEA - AIRNEESH
milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised EEREHEE - EEE}EZFEW\J
to date under the cost-to-cost method then the Group BEAHPUEENRERD
recognises a contract liability for the difference. There %*ETF&ZN:ISW%EEuu”ﬁl?\%ﬁi&
is no significant financing component in construction BNRENBRERE DR —F -

contracts with customers as the period between the
recognition of revenue under the cost-to-cost method and
the milestone payment is always less than one year.

(i) Hotel operation (i) L EE
Revenue from hotel operation is recognised in the B E 2B AR R AR RS PTTE
accounting period in which the related services are GETHARINER ©
rendered.

(i) Rental income (i) FHZ YA
Rental income from properties leasing under operating KEHETHYEREMEEMA
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease SWAREFEETHBRNER -
terms.

2.27Management and consulting services income 221 EB R BHARBEA
Income from rendering of management and consulting REEERDBARBEENRARE
services is recognised in the accounting period in which the HAABERE ST BRRNER -

related services are rendered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.28Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

2.29Dividend income

Dividends are recognised as revenue when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.30Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee,
or the estimated amount that would be payable to a third
party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of joint
ventures and associates are provided for no compensation,
the fair values are accounted for as contributions and
recognised as part of the cost of the investment.

e SRR A
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREFTBERBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.31Leases 231HE
Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a HERFMHEEEETHASEFEAE
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is ARATREEEREEAE -

available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. AHUREHENRIERESTD - &5

The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the EREEAESBIHERBEHNHNR

lease and non-lease components based on their relative BOoEZHERIFBVERD - A -

stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for MASEEEAABARNEREM

which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate T HEEETR > HERFRES

lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for o EmMEZEEEARERE —H

these as a single lease component. EEo o

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and HEBRRTDERZEETE - FAAEGER

contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The MARHEETER - REBEAFENE

lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than EEEMNEFEZRI)  HEWMZITE

the security interests in the leased assets that are held by MR R - HEEETSAIESE

the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for BEREER -

borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured HEMEENEERBEYVRIRERE

on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net ARHE -HEAEREUTHEEN

present value of the following lease payments: SRE)FIRE -

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), e EENR(BEEEEEMNR) K
less any lease incentives receivable FAEKEEESR

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a o ERIEEER RIS B BBkl
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the HA ARG BN BEHENK
commencement date

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under o FMEBEERTHASEEAREN
residual value guarantees RIE

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is e WEEEBEMNITHEE (MAKEE
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and BREEITFEZEER) &

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the o TRHKIEHEEMSRK (WAEERER

lease term reflects the Group exercising that option. REBITHERERZERL) -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. EXGFBREBE (H)

231 HE ()

2.31Leases (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third party financing,
and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, eg term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. EXREFTBERBE (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.31Leases (continued) 231 7E (&)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable 75 [ R 2R AT BE AR R 8 Bk R & 48 N
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not A S REE - ™A B SR R
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When EERRTETAREERE - ERE
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take EHAHNEHHEHENRIELNFARAE
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against wEs - HEAGEEREBETRAREES
the right-of-use asset. TEHTERAE -
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance HENZRAEE MM BKAR 2 BIED
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the Al o AR SRR ERN
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of B BEUSSHEMNAEHSRENEE
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each =5 -
period.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the TREEERNATE  BIEUTE
following: H -
e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability o VRFTENEEENEHE
e any lease payments made at or before the o TGRS ZAERMEMEE

commencement date less any lease incentives received NRREREREEES
e any initial direct costs, and o FIFIBEERAE : Kk
e restoration costs. o TBIRRKA °
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter CRAREE-—RNEENTEHFH
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line MAEH (UREE A%E) NIZE G
basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a TUFE - WAKEESEBREETEE
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over BEEE AFRBREENBEHEEE
the underlying asset’s useful life. WA AFBRRTIAE -
Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and HOHRERERAEURAERE
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on BEEHESEEBENNRIZESENE
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term HEREER  NHAEEHESRA
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less 12 ASKA TR EREEREENME
without a purchase option. Low-value assets comprise IT E-EKEEEETZREEERMR

equipment and small items of office furniture. HRNHFARE o
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. ERESTTHERME (&)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
231788 (&)

2.31Leases (continued)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term (Note 16). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of
adopting the new leasing standard.

2.32Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, and
liquidity risk. The Group’s principal activities are conducted
in RMB, except that certain cash in banks, other receivables,
other payables and borrowings are denominated in USD and
HKD. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the
Group’s monetary assets and liabilities denominated in USD
amounted to RMB1,942,731,000 and RMB4,481,214,000
respectively, and monetary assets denominated in HKD
amounted to RMB151,052,000. If there is a 6% increase/
decrease in RMB against USD, the effect of increase/decrease
in the profit for the year is RMB152,309,000. If there is a
6% increase/decrease in RMB against HKD, the effect of
decrease/increase in the profit for the year is RMB9,063,000.

AEEEREHEHANEEHENEE
WARBERENREERRNERRBA
(PH3E16) - BEELEHEELNIA
EEMAGAHBEENREE I
REEMAARREERANERE
EEARAX - BRHEEEREM
B AEERER - KM AEER
% AKRBEFHESLBAFRSE
BEENSTRBIEEMAAE -

2.2 E 7Dk

ERGEERRLETBSHERNE
REN - RARERHEERZBRZ
AEEMERARERRLRKEZ
ERE TR B IR

3. B EE
1 B EREE

AEBMEKEHSCHEHERSEY
BRKE : NERR - FIERER - E
ERBERBHESRR - AEBEH
FTEEBUARBET  HHETHU
ETRABLAENRITES « Hit
FE UK IE - H fh FE AT FRIE R fE K BR
Hh o FR2020F 128318 - AEBELL
ENFENEKEERABNEEE
DRIABARE1,942,731,000T XA
R¥4,481,214,0007T * A TTET
EMEBEENEEAENAARE
151,052,0007T ° fi AR 5 ETH
B #E6% ' BIFAFEEREEN,
B AR 152,309,0007T © i AR
HEBILHAE,B2E6%  AJFAFIEE
FESR A /18 0 A R #9,063,0007T °
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UK EEERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 MBEREMEE (&)
311 Interest rate risk a1 FYEE

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from long-term REENFRERKE REER
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose BEEAEGE El’ﬂﬁ?f&”ﬁzli%l@
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk which is partially RIReRENEER - ZRARE
offset by cash held at variable rates Borrowings obtained E‘ﬂ?ﬁ?‘v‘féiﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁfﬁ
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate BEFEMNEF EMEREAEER
risk. The Group closely monitors trend of interest rate BRAREBEEMNERER - AEERY
and its impact on the Group’s interest rate risk exposure. ERFFBAREEREERFER
The Group currently has not used any interest rate swap BRI E - AEBBAMWRFERT
arrangements but will consider hedging interest rate risk AR EREHZE  ERFEREE
should the need arise. A X E g

As at 31 December 2020, bank and other borrowings M2020F12 A31H » REE LT
of the Group which were bearing at floating rates B F 5 BRI RIT R B A E KL
amounted to approximately RMB9,694,957,323 (2019: B AR 9,694,957,3237T (2019
RMB5,921,080,000). If interest rates on borrowings at F: ARM5,021,080,0007T) °
floating rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower WZBFEAERFE EAXT
with all other variables held constant and without taking PESOMER BATE EMh#EREF
into account interest capitalisation, interest charges for & EBAEEFNBEERNL
the year ended 31 December 2020 would have been BIE Z2020F 12 A31 HILFE
RMB48,474,787 higher/lower (2019: RMB29,605,400 MR B g m, o AR
higher/lower). 48,474,787 70 (20194 : #&m

B AR #29,605,4007T) ©

312 Credit risk 312 IFEmE
The Group has no concentrations on credit risk. Cash AEBUYEEFEERR - REX
transactions are limited to high credit quality institutions. FERNEEEERIFAMEE - K
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation SEERMNEREERBHNRANE
to financial assets is the carrying amounts of cash and ERBMOFGEEEAEBRAT
cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), restricted TR FEEEM (FERS
cash, trade and other receivables, amounts due from BRON) - ZRBRHIRE - BHRHEA
related parties and financial assets at fair value through TEHK?XIE JE W B BSE U7 RRIB A 4R
profit or loss shown in the consolidated balance sheet. AREBEEFEEEEHTABEN
CHEENRESE -
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, in order to manage 2020F %2019F 124311 -
this risk, the Group’s bank deposits are mainly deposited REZILER - AEBMRITER
with reputable banks which are all high-credit-quality FEFRRBESEZNRT  ZF
financial institutions incorporated in the PRC. RITHBEFRTMALBEEEE

ERFNT R -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. B ERERE (&)

(CONTINUED)
31 MBEREE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued) 312 IER ()

For the trade receivables arising from sales of properties,
the Group manages the credit risk by fully receiving
cash or properly arranging the purchasers’ mortgage
loans financing procedures before delivery of properties
unless strong credit records of the customers could be
established. The Group closely monitors the collection of
progress payments from customers in accordance with
payment schedule agreed with customers. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
purchasers with an appropriate financial strength and
appropriate percentage of down payments.

Meanwhile, the Group has the right to cancel the
contracts once repayment from the customers is in
default; it also has monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up actions are taken to recover overdue
balances. In addition, the Group regularly reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade receivables
to ensure that adequate impairment provisions are made
for irrecoverable amounts. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of the Group’s property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of such purchasers for
repayments. Detailed disclosure of such guarantees is
made in Note 34. If a purchaser defaults on the payment
of its mortgage loan during the guarantee period, the
bank holding the guarantee may demand the Group
to repay the outstanding principal of the loan and any
interest accrued thereon. Under such circumstances, the
Group is able to forfeit the customer’s deposit and resell
the property to recover any amounts paid by the Group
to the bank. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

SLHEMEELNE ZRUGIRM
5 RIEREFHEEAEREARY
MIEERE  SAANKEERER
NYEME2RBIRERZE L
BEXNRBEERRERFREERRE
BB - AEBERBER P #EH
NREERESEETPNERN
oo AEEEN T HBBER - AR
RAAEEEVBEN LA XME
EEOLERFENETETH
=

=

R - ERFEHMARE - ARE
BHEEUHAH - XAEETEHIEE
BRERF - MERERRETSHINK
Clig MR o AN - AEEEEH
=& (R E 5 e kIR /) A] e [
TR RN AR E SRR E D
EORERE - AERENEERR
DERRBEHFHIREPH - At
TESEETHEERR -

AEECAREEMEELNET
BRTHRITHE - LERHEER
MERZFEFETEREEMIE
o REREROFARBEHNK T
34 - WERNERMAERIZE
BERNF - HARRORITAIER
AEBEEREEREFRANEENREE
MRS - ELZFRBRT - &A%
BEEHLREFPMES - YEYME
BEABAANRERRITNRE
A 5RER © Bl - NRRAREERR

AEENEERRFIARRE -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. BEMEE (&)

(CONTINUED)
31 MEERER (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

312 Credit risk (continued) 312 1B ()

For other receivables and amounts due from related
parties, the Group assessed the credit quality of the
counter parties by taking into account their financial
position, credit history and other factors. Management
also regularly reviews the recoverability of these
receivables and follow up the disputes or amounts
overdue, if any. The directors are of the opinion that the
risk of default by counter parties is low.

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forward-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

e internal credit rating

e external credit rating

e actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the

borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

e actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of individual property owner or the

borrower

EJEET@FE”QFAIE&FE”&E@HWH RIE
mE - NEEZEEFHHMEIR
R RS R E M E R AR
EMEEEE - ERERITESRE
BEZERBR AT B - IR
FRdaRneE(NE)  E=H
RREFHEHNRRERE -

REBEEEN IR TEREE BIE
HIRRTBENE » R EES IS B
FERREDEREREEM - £
HEEERBR L BERNE - K
SERREAMEERERONT
BEMEERYIIAFER B I A M A]
BEMETTIE - Rt EEA RS
MERRXFBUHREER - Fhl2
A TATHER:

. PEEEFAR

.« SMEBEEAR

. BE - UBTEEERTER
o LA 2 ) TE HR S B
NBTEESENELEAE
LM EATRIEL

. 1I)“:U¥I ‘Mﬁm ARERED
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. M ERERE (&)

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3 MEREKREE (&)

312 Credit risk (continued) 312 5B R (58)

e significant changes in the expected performance e BRAEHRERITAMNENRX
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in it BEEBRAREEEA

B BRAROR 2L T 1 3R A O
BRER( -

the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.

AR5 B BR R % S R UK TR B PO {812
B RREEERR L EE SR
MEBRBEN SR - ZERREER
[\ B AR RSN ERAE AR AP AR — B -

The Group uses four categories for those receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision
is determined for each of those categories. These internal
credit risk ratings are aligned to external credit ratings.

AEEBEHEREEBREAZNOR
ARG

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
expected credit loss model is as follows:

Basis for recognition of
expected credit loss provision

BRENFEBRRRENER

Category

Group definition of category

Eobi FREHHZENER

Performing Customers have a low risk of default and 12 months expected losses. Where the

a strong capacity to meet contractual expected lifetime of an asset is less

cash flows than 12 months, expected losses are

measured at its expected lifetime
% RPENERREEARNELSNBRNALRE AR1REANRHER - ARBRFERE12EA2
NNEE  BHFREREHEESNHE

Underperforming  Receivables for which there is a significant increase Lifetime expected losses

in credit risk since initial recognition, but are not

credit-impaired
b RIEERECRERBEENETRIREERENER  FEEREER

Non-performing

HE

Interest and/or principal repayments are
credit-impaired at the reporting date

Lifetime expected losses

TR MER/ ZALEFRBREAHLBEERE FREEERER
Write-off Interest and/or principal repayments are Asset is written off
more than 3 years past due and there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery
1% MER/SAeEFRB=FI L - BAEEHTaKE MiHEE
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UKERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 MBERREE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 (zBEE (8)
The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately AEERBRENEEATBHEER
providing for expected credit losses on a timely BEELBERFEFERR
basis. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, FTEEBEEBEXR  AKEZE
the Group considers historical loss rates for each EEEERKEINELEER I
category of receivables and adjusts for forward looking AN RBCBEEIRETRE -
macroeconomic data. The loss allowance provision for HE2020F12A31HEFE © K
the Group’s financial assets were not material for the year SEEREENBERBLTEX
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: same). (20194 : #E[A) °
() Trade receivables () BZENFE
The Group applies the simplified approach to REBEEAGETE  RES
providing for expected credit losses prescribed B iSRS 2RI B OSRAT IR T/
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime TREEEE BT RS - &k
expected loss provision for all trade receivables from AlnsrmEREE=F L#E
third parties and related parties. 4T E 5K IENATE
TR ER S 1B 4 o
Expected loss rate of trade receivables from related KBRS R E S R ERIE &
parties and trade receivables from government REBFHEENE S EYRIE
authorities are assessed to be 0.1%. The loss HIEBEERHBER0A% °
allowance provision for these balances was not HE2020F12A31BIEHF
material for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: B ZEEBOEBEREBLT

same). BA(2019%F : #8R) °
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. M ERERE (&)

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 MEREKREE (&)

312 Credit risk (continued) 312 s BEE (1B)

() Trade receivables (continued) () EZELFE ()

In calculating the expected credit loss rate of the
trade receivables, the Group has considered the
historical credit loss experience to incorporate
relevant, current and more forward-looking information
for different class of trade receivables which grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. As there was no significant change
of the customer base, historical credit loss rate of
customers and forward-looking information for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
adopted the same expected credit loss rate for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. The loss
allowance provision as at 31 December 2020 and
2019 is determined as follows.

Within
1 year

1R

Over
1 year

and within

AL
1225

REtEE S ERGRIERNTERE
EEBEXR  A5ECERA
ANEEEEBIBR  UBEE
BB SRBGIEZE R R EEA
EMHEMEEER  MEHE
W EM R DR EEAES
Mz E R RS & E RS
o AREE2020%F £ 2019
F1I2AG1BLFEMEFRE
W BERFPEEBEERA
EMHERWES NS - Bl
REBEHE2020F K20194F
12H31BEFEHEAHERL
TEHEERIEE - R2020F
K2019% 12 A31 HHYEE#
BEEWAT -

Over

2 years
and within
3 years
2E3F

At 31 December 2020 A2020F12H 318
Trade receivables (RMB’000) £ 5 FEW &

H(AR%FT) 57,688 24,896 4 33,809 116,397
Less: receivables from related parties
(RMB’000) & : FEUk BB 5 008
(AREFT) (7,631) (19,632) - (430) (27,693)
receivables from government
authorities (RMB’ 000) FEUR BT
WETE(ARETT) (15,069) - - (31,286) (46,355)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BR
BEARETR) 34,988 5,264 4 2,093 42,349
Expected loss rate B % 1% 5% 20%  50%-100%
Loss allowance provision (RMB’000) E5#8
BE(ARETT) 350 263 1 2,030 2,644
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBERERE (F)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 BKEREE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 (B (B)
() Trade receivables (continued) () B ZENIE(E)

Over Over
1 year 2 years
and within and within

PACEIR 3 years
122F 2Z3F

At 31 December 2019 420195128318
Trade receivables (RMB’000) £ 5 FE i 5
B(AR%®TR) 51,979 12,424 41,302 92,960 198,665
Less: receivables from related
parties (RMB' 000) & : FEU
B nrE(ARETT) (33,089) - (430) (500) (34,019)
receivables from government
authorities (RMB’000) FEUREX

BEZE(ARETT) - = (40,872) (91,472) (132,344)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BR
“E(AR¥Tr) 18,890 12,424 = 988 32,302
Expected loss rate TEEIEEE 1% 5% 20% 50%-100%

Loss allowance provision (RMB’000) &8
BEARETT) 188 621 = 988 1,797
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. KREBERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 MBEBEZE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 EEEE (B)
() Trade receivables (continued) () B ZENIE (&)

The closing loss allowance provision for trade MR2020F 12 A31 HMRAE
receivables from third parties as at 31 December =T E GERFIBZ FRE
2020 reconcile to the opening loss allowance for that BERERFINZERREY
provision as follows: BRI ¢

Trade receivables

(excluding receivables

from related parties
and government
authorities)

E S EWRE

(FBEEK

R 5 R BT HE

HIE)

RMB’ 000

AR®T T

At 1 January 2019 #2019F1H1A 1,421
Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net M8 HERH E B BHEF

7 376

At 31 December 2019 2019%12H31H 1,797

At 1 January 2020 720201 81H 1,797
Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net P 8% HER B B 1B B %

] 847

At 31 December 2020 742020F12 831 H 2,644
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UKERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3 MBERMREE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 (zBEE (8)
() Trade receivables (continued) () B ZENIE (&)

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, H Z=2020%F K 2019F 12 A 31
the provision for loss allowances were recognised in HIEFE @ BEBERERS
profit or loss in administrative expense in relation to HUREE Z EWRIEF BT
the impaired trade receivables. RS A ERR o
As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying amount M20205612H31H - EFJE
of trade receivables excluding receivables from W skIE (B35 e W B 7 &
related parties and government authorities was BB ARIE) M RREE
RMB42,349,000 (2019: RMB32,302,000), and thus BAR42,349,0007T (2019
maximum exposure to loss was RMB39,705,000 F: AR#32,302,0007T) °
(2019: RMB30,505,000). Hit R AR EER A RARK

39,705,0007T (20194 : AR
#30,505,0007T) ©

(i) Other receivables (i) E b pERIE
Other financial assets at amortised cost include other B#ERAGTENEMESHE
receivables from third parties, related parties and EREREE=F BB R
non-controlling interests. FEVEE AR % B0 EL L PR IR o
To measure the expected credit losses of other Z%%%ETMEHQ?XIEE’J?EHH{?
receivables, other receivables have been grouped BEE EEARKEREER
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the ﬁ%ﬁ(&ﬁ,ﬁﬂi%{%ﬁﬁ‘r@[ﬁ%m

days past due. THDH o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UK EEERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BiXEEE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 IFEER (&)
(i) Other receivables (continued) (i) E M EKE (E)
The closing loss allowance provision for other M2020F 12 A31 A R E b fiE
receivables as at 31 December 2020 reconcile to the WK IE 2 FF RS R B F 1)
opening loss allowance for that provision as follows: WEZEIEBEERNT ¢
Other
receivables
HLfth P& WL 7R 1B
RMB’ 000
AR¥T T
At 1 January 2019 4201941 A1H 21,285
Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net F 1825 7R &R HY &5 18 5
1% 30,920
At 31 December 2019 7420196 12H31H 52,205
At 1 January 2020 74202051 81H 52,205
Provision for loss allowance recognised in profit or loss, net 718 %5 1 #E72 1Y &5 18
e 8,355
At 31 December 2020 42020512 A31H 60,560
The impairment provision recognised during the REHREERORERER
reporting period included 12 months expected losses F12EAEHEERFES
and lifetime expected losses. Management considered TEHIEE  cBEREERARER
other receivables from third parties, related parties =7 - @A MIEERR RS
and non-controlling interests to be low credit risk Hitfg B EERRIE -
as they have a low risk of default and the issuer has RZERENEHRREE %
a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow TABEEHESE HEITELH
obligations in the near term. WEHNRERERT °

199



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED EEHhEERRARAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UKERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BiXEEE (&)
312 Credit risk (continued) 312 IR AR (&)

(i) Other receivables (continued) (i) E M EKFE (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the HZE2020F 2019412 A31
provision for loss allowance were recognised in profit HIEFE @ BEBERERS
or loss in administrative expenses in relation to the B (B HY H At FE YL SR IE B RE &Y

impaired other receivables. THAZHER -
As at 31 December 2020, the maximum exposure M2020F12H31H * KBEHE
to loss of other receivables for third parties, related =77 - BEEE T RGEIERE R R
parties and non-controlling interests were as follows: o fE WK IR Y f K S R O

AR -
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AREET T
Amounts due from related parties J& B8 5 218 5,033,402 2,918,668
Amounts due from non-controlling interests & W 15 I 25 008 8,695,353 4,951,599
Amounts due from third parties (including deposits and others) & Ug

F=HFE (R REMW) 1,623,282 979,040

15,352,037 8,849,307
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UK EEERE (&)

(CONTINUED)
31 BEREE (F)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

31.8 Liquidity risk 318 B E LR

Management of the Group aims to maintain sufficient cash
and cash equivalents or have available funding through
proceeds from pre-sale of properties and an adequate
amount of available financing including short-term and
long-term borrowings and obtaining additional funding
from shareholders. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility in
funding by maintaining adequate amount of cash and
cash equivalents and through having available sources of
financing.

The Group has a number of alternative plans to mitigate
the potential impacts on anticipated cash flows should
there be significant adverse changes in economic
environment. These include reducing land acquisition,
adjusting project development timetable to adapt
the changing local real estate market environment,
implementing cost control measures, promotion of sales
of completed properties, accelerating sales with more
flexible pricing and seeking joint venture partners to
develop projects. The Group will pursue such options
basing on its assessment of relevant future costs and
benefits. The directors consider that the Group will be
able to maintain sufficient financial resources to meet its
operation needs.

The table below sets out the Group’s financial liabilities
by relevant maturity grouping at each balance sheet date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

AEEEEBEEEAFRARNRE
kR EEBYIBRBEEMENFT
BHRERSIRES  YHERH
MR BARE (BEEHERBE
R ARERRESBEINES
RRERESNBRERIE - AKE
FBREFERNRE MRS EEY
PA RSB8P B R R B B R AR TS
BoHEEN -

HEERIRHIREANTMES - K
SEEARZ E A A E B
HEBEHRERENBEETE - &
B T WEE - AEIER M
R 2R DAE FE N 2L B 3 S it
EMSRR - BRAANZEHIER
RFEETIME - BEEEENTE
EMRIHERBRELLEEIER
HRZER - AREREREER
BRI A R M ss O RHE #E R fE
B EERR/AKEGREER
RAENMBERRMTEEER

TREJINEEERBRAAEE
AN RARE S NEREE -
RTFBEBENER/ANARUERRS
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBERERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BiXEEE (&)
313 Liguidity risk (continued) 313 mEE2ER ()

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year | and 2 years | and 5 years | Over 5 years Total

1F MR 1225 2Z5% 5F 5L Foy
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARETR| ARSTn| ARETR | AR®TR

As at 31 December 2020 7202012 531 H
Borrowings from bank and other financial

institutions B #R17 R ELtth & BB A0 B 5K 10,900,117 9,723,407 7,624,098 1,514,724 29,762,346
Trade and other payables, excluding accrual

for staff costs and allowances, and other

taxes payable & 5 & E AN FHE (T 23E

JEETB TAANRORRE A R E fh FE T HRIE) 4,676,135 - - - 4,676,135
Amounts due to non-controlling interest fEft

MR IR 5,799,815 28,330 - - 5,828,145
Amounts due to related parties JEfBE A

A 7,083,319 - - - 7,083,319
Lease Liabilites HE B & 48,745 52,390 151,000 570,991 823,126

28,508,131 9,804,127 7,775,098 2,085,715 48,173,071

Less than Between 1 Between 2
1year | and 2 years | and 5 years | Over 5 years Total

1EHR 1224 2Z5% 5L L Fohy
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | ARETR| ARETnR| ARETR | AR®ETR

As at 31 December 2019 722019412 A31H
Borrowings from bank and other financial

institutions B #2177 R Bt & B A E X 6,937,829 5,805,193 3,637,597 597,216 16,977,835
Trade and other payables, excluding accrual

for staff costs and allowances, and other

taxes payable B 5 K E B FIE (T B1E

JEAHE TR R 2 BA R E B RETE) 2,520,765 261,019 = = 2,781,784
Amounts due to non-controlling interest fEft

RS FR 3,699,982 233,599 = = 3,933,581
Amounts due to related parties JEfER 7

R 3,506,788 507,234 = = 4,014,022
Lease Liabilites HE & & 14,879 14,879 47,317 257,836 334,911

16,680,243 6,821,924 3,684,914 855,052 28,042,133
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UK EEERE (&)

(CONTINUED)
31 BEREE (F)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

313 Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group also provides guarantees to secure repayment
obligations of certain purchasers of the Group’s property
units and the principal of borrowings of the joint ventures,
associates and third parties, which will have contractual
cash flows only if the guaranteed purchasers, joint
ventures, associates or third parties default the repayment
(Note 34).

3.2 Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for the owner and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the owner, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net borrowings divided by total
capital. Net borrowings are calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings as shown in
the consolidated balance sheets) less total of cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash.

313 mBELE R (&)

AEBETRHERABRAEEY
XETHETERNEREERE
Bh¥  BMEARTREZFNER
e EMBEZERNER 4
Bh¥E  BMEARRRE=FHERE
FHBERT TEELEENBRER
= (M17E34) o

32 BEXER

AEBEEAERZBNAREAEE
RHERENRN  UREBARMED
HANRSEMASABEE RGNS - B
By 15 IR ) B AN B DAURUE B AR
o

RRFAABENGRE - AEET A
EHBEXNTHEANBRE SR  #
TTHRM K EEEAR D ET

AEBENEEABLEERERER
MEE - BERENL RZEFFER
NERBRESE - BFOFRRERE
H(BREAEERBRANIRHEIE
KRIFBVHE ) RERE MRS EEY
HZRHIR S ERRTHE -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. ERERE (&)

(CONTINUED)
32 WAEE ()

3.2 Capital management (continued)

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T AREETIT

Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions (Note 30) & #8717 & Hith

TR E A E K (F9RE30)

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) J& : 34 RIELHEY (i:E25)
Restricted cash (Note 24) 2R #1218 4 (Ft7524)

25,688,064 14,848,075
(14,719,240)  (9,564,316)
(928,980) (5,797)

Net borrowings & FUF 58
Total equity #5485

10,039,844 5,277,962
16,610,804 10,734,728

Total capital &7 48%8

26,650,648 16,012,690

Gearing ratio BEBEL X

38% 33%

3.3 Fair value estimation

(a) Financial assets carried at fair value

The Group’s financial assets carried at fair value include
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The
different levels of the financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method, have been defined as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and
equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market price used
for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

33 ARAEBEME

pi7

@) AL EEIRNTHBEE

REBEZEAABEIENSHEE
BREERARBENEBEEZEHTA
BamemEE - FRHEBEXER
AEBEIENERIATRERR
TELT

—EBf mERRMELRSNE
BMTE (PIRARXSHITETA
RERES) NAREBEERRS
HROMHHRE - LAKEAFES
BMEEMEROTISRESEFIH
RER - ZFIAFAFZER -

“ER NIRRT LR 50
TRTANAABEERARAL
&R AT BIE IS BUR M B E R
TE - SRR RE D HARRER E BB AT
BANMGE - MFETAERIAEE
FIBENMEEARBABEBYTE
£ AZTAFASE B -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(a) Financial assets carried at fair value (continued)

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019,
by level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value.

Level 1

F-EBR

RMB’ 000
ARBT

At 31 December 2020 420205 12A31H
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss %
ARBEFEAHZEHTABTNERNEE -

e SRR A

3. MBERERE (F)

33 D ABEME (8]

(@) ‘AR EES R T/ EE (&)

FEZEA WA -EXZEEAH
ABBRSIFERABRMSEE
AT A AE=ER - JE LT
AEFEBURIER -

AR TAEBENTERE
Rifr e

TREZEFEAABEMANMES
ERRBASBENER DM ASE
B 2020F & 2019F 12 A31 H
BEAABEARNSRTIA -

Level 2
EZER
RMB’000
AR®T T

Total

st
RMB’000
AR¥T T

Level 3
E=E&
RMB’000
AR¥T T

- 202,925 202,925

At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A31H
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss %
AABEFEAEEZHTABRENEREE -

= 271,469 271,469

Significant unobservable inputs

EATUBERBARE

Valuation approach

fhER %

Range of unobservable inputs

FUERE AR BHE

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
2020%12H318 201912 A31H

Expected rate of return &£ []7 % Return approach [E3k% 2%-8% 2%-6%
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value: the A B A SR EA R BENE
higher of expected rate of return, the higher the fair value. % FEHRRERHEZAAABER

The Group manages the valuation of level 3 instruments
for financial reporting purpose on a case by case basis. At
least once every reporting year, the Group would assess
the fair value of the Group’s level 3 instruments by using
valuation techniques.

REEFYHHRE B NREALEE
MEMME=ZHTENEE - RT—
WEFE - AEBESRABMHERIN
HHEE-QRTENAREBEEETE
DR o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. KEMERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 DAEEME (E)

(a) Financial assets carried at fair value (continued) (a) AR5 EBEIFRNSHEE (B)
The valuation of level 3 instruments mainly included FZRTEMNGEETERIEYRTT
investments in wealth management products issued by A REERTHNEYERD
banks or other financial institution. As these instruments &’é c AR ZE T AW ARNER™M
are not traded in an active market, their fair values have BR5 Bt EAnBEDLER
been determined by using applicable valuation techniques, BENGHERNEE  2RXE6
which mainly include discounted cash flows. FRSREAIER -

If the fair values of the financial assets at fair value EREEFFEZEARBETER
through profit or loss held by the Group had been 10% HEPTAEZNESREEND
higher/lower, the profit before income tax for the year REEEN B 10% - AEE
ended 31 December 2020 would have been approximately 2020F 12 A1 B IEFEME
RMB20,292,500 higher/lower (2019: RMB27,147,000 RAITFEGEN RO ARKE
higher/lower). 20,292,500 (20194 : &0~

B AR#E27,147,0007T) ©

The Group’s policy was to recognise transfers into and AEENBREERERARERA

transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end AEEEAHEAREL - HE

of the reporting period. There were no changes in level 2020F12AG1HILFE  F=/

3 instruments during the year ended 31 December 2020 AT BN B EE) (20194 : 48

(2019: same). @) o

(b) Investment properties b) KEYE

Investment properties of the Group were measured at fair REENREMER AR BEER

value. £

() Fair value hierarchy () AAIEEER
This note explains the judgements and estimates MR A E FE RN AR S B TS
made in determining the fair values of investment KRNEBRARBERERARTEN
properties that are recognised and measured at WEMEN R EERFTEH
fair value in the consolidated financial statements. B R st - RISHEEAAE
To provide an indication about the reliability of the BFMABASIBENERER
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has 12 AEBREEEAGE
classified its non-financial assets into the three levels FEeMEENRB=EEHR -

prescribed under the accounting standards.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(b) Investment properties (continued)

()

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the
end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: same).

Valuation techniques used to determine level 3 fair
values

The directors determine a property’s value within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. Fair values
of the Group’s completed investment properties are
derived using the income capitalisation approach. This
valuation method takes into account the net rental
income of a property derived from its existing leases
and/or achievable in the existing market with due
allowance for the reversionary income potential of the
leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate.

3. UKERERE (&)

33 D ABEEME (F)

(b) KEYE (8)

(0

AR BEER ()

4

SRR RER S HARHE
AAABEEBANE ANE

o

7

i

nk
|
N\,

-
&

EE

REZE2020F12 A31HLILF
EREURARBEABYEL
F— FRE-EfHEE
#% (20194 : R o

(i) BEF=FBRIAEEFHBIG

k-3

EERABNARBEMGTE
EANETMEER - ~5EE
RIREMENRAREBEER
W B AR EERS - ZAER
EERMENREHEMB
K/ S E BT 45 _E A U ER
mESBAFE BERZSE
HENERBABHEEE R
% BRZSHEHETFTUERL
NERE—EEENLLEEF
NAfEE -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. ERERE (&)

(CONTINUED)
33 A AEELMLE (H)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(b) Investment properties (continued) (b) BEYx (E)

(i) Valuation techniques used to determine level 3 fair

values (continued)

Fair values of the Group’s investment properties under
development are derived on the basis that they will
be developed and completed in accordance with the
latest development proposals provided to us by the
Group. It is assumed that all consents, approvals and
licenses from relevant government authorities for the
development proposals have been obtained without
onerous conditions or delays. In arriving at the fair
values, the direct comparison approach is adopted by
making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the market and also taken into account
the costs that will be expended to complete the
developments to reflect the quality of the completed
developments. The “market value as if completed”
represents the opinion of the aggregate selling prices
of the property assuming that it would be completed
as at the valuation date.

All resulting fair value estimates for investment
properties are included in level 3.

(i) BEEFE=EBRIAEEFHIG

E#M (&)

AEBERRENENAAE
BT ERE SRR SR B
B ER T B R R B M ST
MFH o EERRELEEHE
HRIEEBERT - ERFERE
A ERSHEEBRAMPNME
RE ~ SEXRFFAIE - EatE
AREER  SRMERLR
% BRMIGAEFSNAIEL
BIHER P RINE BT %
HIEBHRA - RRRETT
MEEAMNEE - [RI®EM
BIEREVEREEBHE
TIBERATMHYEAEER
MER -

—YHEELENRENERIAR
EBER/ADIAZ=ZER -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBERERE (F)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AABEEME (&)
(b) Investment properties (continued) (b) KEYZE (E)
(i) Fair value measurements using significant (i) 1€ FHE XA B2 ) A BIR
unobservable inputs (level 3) (B=/ER)ETABEITE
Detailed disclosures of the changes in level 3 items BB E2020F k201912
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 AB1BLEFELEMEARE
for recurring fair value measurements are disclosed B ENFEF=-ERBEZHHN
below. BEFERBENTX
(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (v) 1EE A B4 % B 7 (B A
#1E
The following table summarises the quantitative TREASEEE=EHAL
information about the significant unobservable inputs BHEITEMNAEATITERE
used in recurring level 3 fair value measurements. See BHEER - - BEmMER2Z
(i) above for the valuation techniques adopted. HERMTE2R i) °

Fair value at 31 December
R12A31BHNAREE

Properties status 2020 2019
LIE 3N 20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR¥T T ARBTF T

Completed B T 2,863,181 1,719,515
Under development 2 615,200 1,204,600
3,478,381 2,924,115

Range of unobservable inputs

FUBEGASENEE
As at 31 December
M12A31H

Properties status Unobservable inputs 2020 2019

YA EE TR S A BB 20204 20194

Completed 2% T Term vield FAHBfURZE = 3.5%-6.5% 4.0%-6.5%

Reversionary vield 18 57U &5 & 4.0%-7.0% 4.5%-7.0%
Monthly rental (RMB/sg.m./month)

A& (AR¥T /" FHXA) 19-124 21-133

Occupancy rate 7= 75%-95% 80%-90%
Unit rate (RMB/sq.m.) BEf7 8 R ( A

Under development BiZ R/ FHK) 6,367-19,943  6,600-20,500
Accommodation value (RMB/sg.m.)

BEEE(ARBT,/ FHXK) 4,808-18,526  3,600-14,400
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. KREBERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 DAEEME (E)
(b) Investment properties (continued) (b) BEYx (E)
(iv) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (iv) 15 1EEAEE R D7 (EE
(continued) BE (&)
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value: PRI B R ABURE A 1 BE
BIRAR -
— 1 The higher rate of term yield and reversionary - 1HBREERERKE
yield, the lower the fair value; EWE - A EEBE
- 2 The higher monthly rental, the higher the fair - 2RMeMs  AnEME
value; FAA=.
- 8 The higher the occupancy rate, the higher the - SHMEEHs AREMRE
fair value; e
- 4 The higher the unit rate, the higher the fair - 4BNEXHS ARE
value; TE#LET%_
- 5 The higher the accommodation value, the higher - SEHEHMS AnEME
the fair value; =
(v) Valuation processes (v) 1ZEEF
The Group’s investment properties were valued by an REBERREMECHBELE
independent professionally qualified valuer, who holds EAERMEMETHE  Z
a recognised relevant professional qualification and HEMFELRITNABEZE
has recent experience in the locations and segments B AENBAERRUVE
of the investment properties valued. For all investment R EEREMENLE - 3t
properties, their current use equates to the highest FIBIREMEME - EREK

and best use. Rzl AEEs REERR -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. UK EEERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 AABEEME (&)
(b) Investment properties (continued) b) REYE (&)
(v) Valuation processes (continued) ) 15ERF (&)
The Group’s finance department has a team to review REBERMTBEFIRE —EE
the valuations performed by the independent valuer B EFIRE BB AERE
for financial reporting purposes. This team reports B iR B W mEIT 2 (G1E -
directly to the executive directors. Discussion of ZEBGEERRITESER -
valuation processes and results are held amongst the WITES - HEEKREERM
executive directors, the valuation team and the valuer ELEAEARAERMNPEH
at least once every six months for the Group’s interim REEHRERFHIR AGE
and annual reporting process. BFEMER-
At each reporting period end, the finance department: REFRERIR - B -

e \Verifies all major inputs to the independent REBUGERENAE

valuation report; FE@ AZIE

e Assess property valuations movements when o FHEWEMGEMART AWM
compared to the prior period valuation report; and BERENES : &

e Holds discussions with the independent valuer. o HFVMEMMAER® -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provision in the year in which such determination
is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management

considers to be probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

4. EREHETH R H

R Bt & B 75 SR I P IR A RO (5T B A
DERBELRLREMCER (BERERIE
ATRERAENTERAREN) E1TF
fl o NEBEEHRKEL GE RERE - B
BE gt RISZAEBERER -
3w AT BE & B T B B BF R R
BERABNEREEEEAERZENMGRT
KB °

(a) TS B RIEEBLH

AEBEEFBEABMAMER - BEF
GUHBRRERSE2ELEXRHE - £8
FEBBET  FEXHIMFAENK
RETHIHE - WMZREFFENKK
MB/ERARN R CEE - RIARA
ERRTEFLZSEENFENR
SRR IBRE A -

11 5 22 B R A R R B R ) B AT A AR
HEEREZRAVABRYT TEHA
B AlgHREETEREEZREH
ZELFBREERBABE - £E
BRE)RAERTEEB AR o
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. ERGEHEF R AIE (&)

AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) PRC land appreciation taxes (b) Bl L IBEH

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes in the PRC.
The Group has not finalised its PRC land appreciation
taxes calculations and payments with local tax authorities
in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the land appreciation and
the related land appreciation taxes. The Group recognised
the land appreciation taxes based on management’s best
estimates according to the interpretation of the tax rules. The
final tax outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the
taxation and tax provisions in the years in which such taxes
have been finalised with local tax authorities.

(c) Classification of subsidiaries, joint ventures

and associates

The classification of an investment as a subsidiary, a joint
venture or an associate is based on whether the Group
is determined to have control, joint control or significant
influence over the investee, which involves judgements
through the analysis of various factors, including the Group’s
representation on the chief decision making authorities
of an investee, such as board of directors’ meetings
and shareholders’ meetings, as well as other facts and
circumstances.

Subsidiaries are consolidated, which means each of their
assets, liabilities and transactions are included line-by-line in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, whereas the
interests in joint ventures and associates are equity accounted
for as investments on the consolidated balance sheet.

Accordingly, any inappropriate classification as a result of
recognition or derecognition of the investments could have a
material and pervasive impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

REBEPBEAHA L MIBER - K
SEMAREPREEHEEBEER
PELHIEERNEERINE
Ho At BE LHIGESRERIEH
THIRER SRS AEHERALE -
AEBERBEEBRERBEM N2
BAEL M K EMFT R LG ED -
BB B RAEEH BN &) &
- ARSERBTEREMHBEH
BEERANF R IA LR IARE -

BIREDBERMBAR A& bEN
BERARNKBERBEEAEEHEKR
EHSERRHEEE  BaEhle
RERTEN  WERBEINASR
BHEREHREIBERREE (WES
FERLBERAE) MIRKRKEERE
REAREMEE R ERMAEL A -

MEBARD&GEEAK  BIEEEE
E ABEERRSHMHALRKEEES M
BHE MRAZEEEBEQRDN
RS EGAEEABRTRESA
RIMEIRE -

At - AR SR IR R E ST

TNEEDBAREHEAVBRRES
EXHBERZOTE -
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4. E XE:H Lt RHE (&)

AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties including those completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction,
are carried at their fair value. The fair value of the investment
properties was determined by reference to valuations
conducted on these properties by an independent professional
property valuer using property valuation technigques which
involve certain assumptions of prevailing market conditions.

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Executive Directors have been identified as the CODM.
Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the Executive Directors, which are used
to allocate resources and assess performance. The Group is
organised into three business segments: property development
and construction, property investment, and other businesses.
Other businesses mainly include hotel operations. As the CODM of
the Group considers most of the revenue and results of the Group
are attributable to the market in the PRC, and only an immaterial
part (less than 10%) of the Group’s assets are located outside the
PRC, no geographical segment information is presented.

The directors of the Company assess the performance of the

operating segments based on a measure of segment results,
which is a measure of revenue and gross profit of each operating
segment.

(d) REME2AREE
BREMECDREERIREMERER
TREME  BREMEREAAE
B - RENMFEAABEDNSEE
VEEYELEMRBYEGET A
HZEMFETNEEEE  MBH
BEPRHBRITHRNE TERR

5. HRPE R

HITEFRERARIBLEREKE - B
EERELATEFTEHNRERTLE
DE - MARDEEREFERR - AF
o R=EXBEDE  MEFERER
MEREREMER - RMEFTZEE
BIEE c ARAEENTIBREREKE
RBRAEERZHPWARFREINFET
BELY  URTBERINESAEEEE
RARERHES (DR10%) - WEEZS)
ol 7 BPEHL o

ARAEFREDMREMNFETEHEE
DEBRIRIR - ﬁ%ﬁi%ﬁixw%%%
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. 7 &R (&)
(CONTINUED)
The segment information provided to the executive directors for MAITESRENE B2 WD HEE2020
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2020 is F12A31BEFENSFBERDOT
as follows:

Property
development
and Property Other
construction investment businesses Unallocated Total
NERBRER NERE Hiti ¥ RESE Hit
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR ARETTR ARETT ARETT
Revenue from contracts with customers & #A HELRYA 15,550,355 - 18,003 = 15,568,358
Revenue from other sources - Rental income E 1 URIMA —

EELON - 100,417 - - 100,417
Segment revenue 24 15,550,355 100,417 18,003 - 15,668,775
Inter-segment revenue 2 SFEULA - - - - -
Revenue from external customers ESMFE PERHIHA 15,550,355 100,417 18,003 - 15,668,775
Gross profit £ 3,811,752 79,825 10,681 - 3,902,258
Other income E 4 A 331,048
Other losses - net E i EEF (8,264)
Selling and marketing expenses #E & #H % (457,854)
Administrative expenses {THF X (746,665)
Fair value losses on investment properties & ¥ %1/ BERE - (26,666) - - (26,666)
Finance costs - net BARFE (481,285)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates FEAE P ER

BERAEE 592,888 - - - 592,888
Profit before income tax FT {58 A ¥ 3,105,460
Income tax expenses Fr5HE % (844,965)
Profit for the year FRFE 2,260,495
Depreciation and amortisation # & [ # s 20,776 - 6,909 - 21,685
Segment assets AP EE 90,808,155 4,219,263 600,633 975,250 96,603,301
Segment liabilities 7 & f& 50,073,185 2,441,150 312,422 27,165,740 79,992,497
Additions to non-current assets (other than financial

instruments and deferred income tax assets) ‘KB JERE A&

(ERIARBEMEHEERSD) 3,354,637 580,932 173,341 - 4,108,910
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5.

BBk

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

The segment information provided to the executive directors for
the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2019 is

as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers E2& P #] & 4]

Property
development
and

construction

RMB’000

5. 7 HER (F)

Property
investment
WERA
RMB’ 000
ARETL

Other
businesses
Hin %%
RMB’ 000
AREFT

Unallocated

MPTESRENEBEE2HR Y HFEZE2019
F12A31BILFEMHIERDT :

RMB’ 000
AREFIL

EERIRA 9,446,177 - 12,109 - 9,458,286
Revenue from other sources — Rental income E L3R

WA —HEEWA - 54,709 - - 54,709
Segment revenue 7 EBIKA 9,446,177 54,709 12,109 = 9,512,995
Inter-segment revenue % &5 KA = S S = =
Revenue from external customers B M PREFHIKA 9,446,177 54,709 12,109 - 9,512,995
Gross profit £ 3,003,997 49,055 6,271 - 3,059,323
Other income E U A 81,583
Other gains - net E Uizt F 58 88,992
Selling and marketing expenses 55 & & 55 (457,555)
Administrative expenses fTHFI X (720,650)
Fair value gains on investment properties & ME 2 4

EE%RE - 186,153 - - 186,153
Finance costs - net B &Rk A2 %8 (431,938)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 1

RECERBMEAREE 1,175,306 - - - 1,175,306
Profit before income tax /5% Al 71 2,981,214
Income tax expenses F 535X (724,587)
Profit for the year & RIFE 2,256,627
Depreciation and amortisation #7%& & # 12,716 = 6,914 = 19,630
Segment assets 2 EE 62,520,223 3,270,645 476,263 1,019,869 67,287,000
Segment liabilities 7 & & 38,093,491 1,806,484 351,213 16,301,084 56,552,272
Additions to non-current assets (other than financial

instruments and deferred income tax assets) /A E

nPEE (SRIARBEMEHEERIN 2,062,851 969,542 137,116 - 3,169,509
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. D RPE R (&
(CONTINUED)
Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets as EWMONEEREELENLRNOT -
follows:

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Segment assets 2 2 & &E 95,628,051 66,267,131
Unallocated: RES L
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Z AR BETE B HEH

FFABRHNEREE 202,925 271,469
Deferred income tax assets #EEFTETEE 772,325 748,400
Total assets per consolidated balance sheet &R EEBERFPHEEAE 96,603,301 67,287,000
Reportable segments’ liabilities are reconciled to total liabilities as ERH/LEaEHBBETENEHELNT -
follows:

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR%T T ARBTT
Segment liabilities 2 #F & & 52,826,757 40,251,188

Unallocated: REHE

Deferred income tax liabilities #EiEFTSF & & 208,528 210,650
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTS T & & 1,269,148 1,242,359
Borrowings and other liabilities &7 R H th & & 25,688,064 14,848,075
Total liabilities per consolidated balance sheet #& B EABRTH B S5 79,992,497 56,552,272
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6. REVENUE 6. LA

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR® TR AREET T
Revenue from property development and construction 5 i 2 5 3 I 2 28 Ua A 15,550,355 9,446,177
Hotel income B J&U% A 18,003 12,109
Rental income FA& A 100,417 54,709
15,668,775 9,512,995
Revenue mainly included sales of properties, which is recognised WAFEBFEYEEE - HIRBE R
at a point in time. BhIER o
(a) Details of contract acquisition costs: (a) BB R AT -
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR® TR AREBTIT
Costs for obtaining contracts ER{S & #) &9k A& 190,517 13,705
Management expects the incremental costs, primarily EEEBEENEGYEEESOMES
sales commission and stamp duty, incurred for obtaining SN AN (FEAHEERS LEE
the property sales contracts are recoverable. The Group i) eesalE - REBDENMbZEE
capitalised these incremental costs and amortised them when SERANEABWAEEREEHE
the related revenue is recognised. There was no impairment 3 o B E N A A RIRE B

loss in relation to the costs capitalised. 18 o
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. LA (#8)
(b) Details of contract liabilities: (b) EHEEHE :
As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®TR ARETT
Contract liabilities related to sales of properties B3 EMEBEANA KN BIE 32,309,337 27,628,013
The Group receives payments from customers based on NEBFIREEES L NETHNESE
billing schedules as established in the property sale contracts. BEREEmEEWEZE - ZEHNEB
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance BIE BT R RN E A 4 RTYRER o

under the contracts for property development and sales.

Revenue recognised related to carried-forward contract HZE2020FE 12831 HILEE © &
liabilities amounted to RMB13,538,615,000 for the year ended A B ERANKA S ARK
31 December 2020 (2019: RMB9,355,440,000). 13,538,615,0007T (20194 : AR

9,355,440,0007T) °

(c) Unsatisfied contracts related to sales of (c) BN EYEERNATREN
properties

As at 31 December
MW12831H

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBFIT

Sales of properties $&E %

Expected to be recognised TEEA#51A T 7I| HARE #ER
- within one year — —& A 20,731,690 15,969,488
- after one year — —%F{& 17,247,981 13,954,279

37,979,671 29,923,767
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7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. RMEEOHRAX

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019

20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T

Cost of properties sold — including construction cost, land cost,
capitalised interest expenses B EWERA (BIRREEMAR « LHIAA -

BRI EFRZ) 11,657,537 6,403,025
Cost of construction services and others &£ ARG A AN K2 E A 22,655 7,146
Other tax expenses H b F B = 109,191 76,238
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (Note 8) B TE A (B E =T )

(FfFE8) 534,248 422,700
Marketing and advertising costs & 5 & & & Ak A& 179,331 213,573
Consulting and project management fees % & T8 B & 12 £ 132,050 176,890
Property management fees ¥ % & HE & 58,797 44,367
Office lease payments ## AT E 3 24,040 23,849
Entertainment expenses 5z 35,826 28,133
Office and travelling expenses # A & 2 ik i sz 50,484 42,274
Depreciation (Note 14) #1 € (FzE14) 26,959 18,796
Amortisation of intangible assets %2 & = # § 726 834
Auditors’ remuneration 4% £ &l % Bl 6,900 6,550

- Audit services — &R 5,450 5,050

— Non-audit services — 3FE TR 1,450 1,500
Listing Expenses i H % - 16,906

8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING S.EIRAK —BiEEEMS

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

ARET T AREET T

Wages, salaries and bonuses and other benefits T& + #& MIEAL LA K E 12 R 568,010 445,791
Pension costs — statutory pension ERE KA — L FERAK S 52,900 59,369
Others EAth 15,296 16,504
Total employee benefits expenses & T 48 |51 > 4858 636,206 521,664

Less: capitalised in properties under development, investment properties
under construction and construction in progress ¥ : FZEH P E -

ERREYMEREREIRERNE (101,958) (98,964)
534,248 422 700
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. BEIRA — BIEESEME
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
Pensions scheme — defined contribution plans BAREE — TREHEGE
Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required AEETENBARNERAESELA ™
to participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme B M RSB R R R R SR IR 5t &
administrated and operated by the local municipal government. AEENTEMNBAFEERFENET
The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are Eb B A % vt 81 1 30 R 1B BRI AR R R £
calculated on certain percentage of the employee salary to the B
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees.
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The directors’ emoluments paid/payable by the Group are as AKRECHN EBNNEEMESOT
follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019

2020 £F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR® T AREFIT

Fees, salaries and bonuses and other benefits #& « #4 RIEALA KR

EEF 8,457 4,409
Pension costs B K4 Bk 24 191 267
8,648 4,676
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. EIRA - BIEEEME
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEE < ()
The emoluments received by individual directors are presented BEEMREBME 25T ¢
as below:
() For the year ended 31 December 2020 () EZE2020F 12531 HIFF/E

Salaries Contribution
and other | Discretionary | to retirement
Name of Directors Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total

ESf e |FeRAHERN MBRAL | BRE B @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARET T ARET T AR®TR AR®T R

Executive Directors ${T&%

Mr. Hu Yiping #i—F%4 - 500 - 62 562
Mr. Fei Zhongmin B85 £ - 936 4,569 62 5,567
Ms. Feng Xia (resigned in August 2020)

BELT (R2020F8 AEHE) - 538 900 39 1,477
Ms. Shan Bei (appointed in August 2020)

BTt (R2020F8 AEZT) - 301 314 28 643

Non-executive Directors FEHTEE
Mr. Hu Shihao #5524 = = - - -

Mr. Wang Yongquan TikiE%4 133 - - - 133
Mr. Chen Hengliu Chen Hengliu%t & 133 - - - 133
Mr. Ding Jiangang T &Ml % £ 133 - - - 133

Total £t 399 2,275 5,783 191 8,648
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. EINAX —BIREEEMS
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEEE (&)
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2019 () EZE2019F 12531 HIFF/E

Salaries Gontribution
and other Discretionary to retirement
Name of Directors Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total

ESH% e | HEREE RIS | RRSHBIKK a5t
RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTRL | ARBTL| AREBTL| ARETR

Executive Directors #{T&%

Mr. Hu Yiping #—F %4 - 501 - 89 590
Mr. Fei Zhongmin & B854 - 1,008 950 89 2,047
Ms. Feng Xia HE &+ - 808 800 89 1,697

Non-executive Directors FEHTEE
Mr. Hu Shihao #5554 - - - - -

Mr. Wang Yongquan k% £ 114 - - - 114
Mr. Chen Hengliu Chen Hengliu%t & 114 - - - 114
Mr. Ding Jiangang T B RI% % 114 - = - 114
Total #&t 342 2,817 1,750 267 4,676
(i) Directors’ retirement benefits (i) EFRKEH
No retirement benefits were paid to the directors of REE2020F12 A1 B ILFE -
the Company by the Group in respect of the director’s AEETESREFEETRARIRE
services as a director of the Company and its subsidiaries I EENGIE =18 9 P /N ==t
or other services in connection with the management of MEATSESHKEEEENHEMRG
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries for the year AR FE S ETRREF
ended 31 December 2020 (2019: same). (20194 : #8RA) -
(i) Directors’ termination benefits (iii) EFREEET
None of the directors received any termination benefits for REZ2020F12A31BILFE -
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: none). HEEE W EERERET (2019
Fm) e
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8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group did not
pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2019: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors.

Save as disclosed in Note 38, as at 31 December 2020,
there were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
(2019: nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 38, no significant transactions,
arrangements, and contracts in relations to the Group’s
business to which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company has a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2020.

8. ETHAX - BREEEME

(%)

(a) EEM< (&)

(iv) BtIeREFEREMAE=T X149

v)

(vi)

RE

REE2020F12 A1 B ILEE -
ANEE I E IR S R M M
AIE = A HERARE (20194 -
/) o

HEE  ZEFREHEEEREE
FHENERBImAER B
UEAREME A1 EH

BrPTFES8FTHLER & SN - EE 2020
F12A31H MEUEE - XEF
EEHEERREERENER
AZEANER - BUBRREAMD
R 5L HE (20194 « 4) »

BEFERRG B EEHIAREX
#a

BRETFESSFTIRBEE SN - A AT
E2EMAEEEREREARAA
EENETEESEBEESERNE
=R F RSB ZE2020F 12 A 31
ALEFENEABETENEAR
2 BHEREH -



2020F E$kE ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

8. STAFF COSTS - INCLUDING 8. BEIRA — BIEESEME

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EERESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in HZE2020F12A31HILFE - XEH
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 included WAEEAERT A LR EIE1HR (2019
1 (2019: 1) director whose emoluments are reflected in the F1R)ESZ (ZEEFHEERLX
analysis presented above. The emoluments payable to the ZIHDTAINR) - BLE20205F12
remaining 4 (2019: 4) individuals during the year ended 31 AB1HIEFEREMNTH T4% (2019
December 2020 are as follows: F:4%) ATHBEIT -

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEEE

2020 2019

2020 £ 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T

Wages and salaries and bonuses and other benefits T& + &% RIE4L

A B2 B A 48 R 11,075 9,675
Pension costs — statutory pensioniE k&4 — SEERIKE 185 266
11,260 9,941

The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group AEBEHTATHOMESSHELDT -

fell within the following bands:

Year ended 31 December
EZ12A31HILLEE

2020 2019

2020 20194
Number of Number of
individual alel\Vile[VE]

A A

Annual emolument band FE B & & E
RMB1,683,280 to RMB2,104,100 (equivalent to HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,500,000)

AR#¥1,683,280tE AR2,104,1007T (F8E 72,000,000 7L = 2,500,000/ 7T.) 1 2
RMB2,524,920 to RMB2,945,740 (equivalent to HKD3,000,000 to HKD3,500,000)

AR#2,524,9207t 2 AR#2,945,7407T (A€ 73,000,000/ 7L £ 3,500,000/ 7T ) 2 1
RMB2,945,740 to RMB3,366,560 (equivalent to HKD3,500,000 to HKD4,000,000)

AR2,045 740t E AR¥3,366,5607T (18 73,500,000/ 7L £ 4,000,000/ 7T.) - 1
RMB3,787,380 to RMB4,208,200 (equivalent to HKD4,500,000 to HKD5,000,000)

AR3,787,380 T2 AR# 4,208,200t (18E 74,500,000/ 7L £ 5,000,000 7T.) 1 =
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9. OTHER INCOME 9. Hzg A

Year ended 31 December

HZE12831ALEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR%F ARBTIT
Management and consulting service income (Note a) &2 K & RS WA (Hf:Ea) 205,349 67,178
Interests income from related parties and third parties J&Us 88 7 K 55 =75 Fl &
WA 97,745 -
Others EAth 27,954 14,405
331,048 81,583
(a) The amount mainly represents the management and () ZFBETEEMMEMRZIBEE MM
consulting services provided to the Group’s joint ventures and FTAREESELERBENTNER
associates in relation to the property development projects. KRR -
10.0THER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET 10. 51t (&518) W= R 5
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR%T ARBTIT
Disposal gains of subsidiaries (Note 40) H &b E A A #y Uz (FFsE40) 24,451 5,067
Gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AR BEE
BEEEHFABENTREEMS RS 17,948 34,343
Exchange (losses)/gains X, (E18),/ Uz (56,380) 25,490
Others Hfth 5,717 24,092

(8,264) 88,992




2020F E$kE ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

11.FINANCE COSTS - NET M. AE R FEE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T

Finance costs @& Ak A
— Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions

— BIRITREME BN E R 1,630,676 1,059,795

— Amounts due to non-controlling interests, related parties and third parties

— T IEIE AR eSS -~ BB REE =5 RUE 265,344 227,617

— Interest for lease liabilities — A& & & & 32,080 10,588

— Net exchange gains on financing activities

— BB EEATGE H W FEE (206,223) =

— Less: capitalised interest — Ji : EAR{LF]E (1,171,090) (770,680)
550,787 527,320

Finance income B& WA
Interest income from F| 2 U A

- Bank deposits — fR1T1F K (69,502) (44,724)

— Others — &1t - (50,658)

(69,502) (95,382)

Finance costs — net Bl& AKX 4N F 58 481,285 431,938
12.INCOME TAX EXPENSES 12.E8HEX

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARET T

Current income tax: BNHAFT15%5 :

- PRC corporate income tax — R B> 215 702,987 627,033

- PRC land appreciation tax — F B £ i 3E{E 5 180,654 372,836
883,641 999,869

Deferred income tax (Note 17): dEZEFTEF (FizFE17) :

- PRC corporate income tax — R B> 2EFT15H (38,676) (210,435)

- PRC land appreciation tax — F B £ i 3E{E 5 - (64,847)
(38,676) (275,282)
844,965 724,587
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12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 12,188 (8)

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theoretical AEBBAFENORIBEENRNEREGEE
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate BB, BEMERNINREIREMS
applicable to profit/loss of the consolidated entities as follows: ﬁﬁ’\]ﬁarﬁ S BROT
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Profit before income tax FT{S%: A1 7 3,105,460 2,981,214
Adjust for share of results of joint ventures and associates reported net of tax
MZ2HOEEERERB S QR EEIERE (NBRBIIE) (592,888) (1,175,306)
2,512,572 1,805,908
Tax calculated at applicable corporate income tax rate ¥ A1 5 AT 155
MEEFERBIR 628,143 451,477
Effect of expenses not deductible for income tax purpose “~A] H1FT{S 1
EEE0EZ 83,117 35,570
Over provision in respect of prior years @ & £ AR B 15 (25,785) -
Effect of tax losses not recognised as deferred income tax assets KR A
BIEPMSHEENRBEBRNTE 24,000 48,724
Deductible tax loss not recognised as deferred income tax assets in prior years
RARFERERAELEFSHEEN A IRTIBER - (42,176)
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for income tax purpose A] H1FT15FiHY
IR E (45,164) (76,997)
Corporate income tax 1% FT{SHi 664,311 416,598
PRC land appreciation tax /B 1t 32 E 180,654 307,989
844,965 724,587
PRC corporate income tax hE D EMEH
The income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations REEPP B EBCETROMSHEE
in PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the DIREBEIRABHEELE 2EREMEFA
estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the existing FfEEHERR R A IR E AR R HE -

legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to the group entities RIE2008F1 A1 BREAMN(PFEARK
located in mainland China is 25% according to the Corporate MEBECEFRBRE) ([EMESHE]D 4
Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “CIT Law”) RPBEANEEEEMERNDEMS

effective on 1 January 2008. HREH25% -
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12.INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on LAT effective 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on LAT effective on 27 January 1995, all income from the sale
or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their
attached facilities in the PRC is subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value, with
an exemption provided for sales of ordinary residential properties
if their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the
total deductible items.

The Group has made provision of LAT for sales of properties
according to the aforementioned progressive rate.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and, is exempted from Cayman Islands
income tax. The Company’s direct subsidiary in the BVI was
incorporated under the BVI Business Companies Act of the British
Virgin Islands and is exempted from British Virgin Islands income
tax. The Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong are subject to profits
tax at the rate of 16.5%.

PRC dividend withholding income tax

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, dividends distributed from the profits generated
by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their foreign
investors shall be subject to this withholding income tax of 10%, a
lower 5% withholding tax rate may be applied when the immediate
holding companies of the PRC subsidiaries are incorporated
in Hong Kong and fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty
arrangements between the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group has
not accrued any withholding income tax for these undistributed
earnings of its PRC subsidiaries as the Group does not have a
plan to distribute these earnings out of the PRC.

e SRR A

12.F &R (&)

R £ i R E R ([ 3B Ew )

BIEB19945F1 A1 BREBN(FEAR
FANE - I EHGITIROD BRE - AR
B19956 1 A27 BRRAEMM(PFEARKL
ME T IR EREITIRGI BB - HE
REEFEB AT HERE  EFRNB
FEEIFTERABZN FIEEI0% E60%
B RET RGN LIS ER - W —ARE
EMENHEERETBRBAINHERS
EEM20% + BIA] FEAR ©

AEERE DR REHRERMRFEIR
TS E R -

BINREH

ARARRASHERERNERS RARDATE
MR AERRBR AR - LEE RN
FERBMEN o AR A E BB
ENEENBARDNRERBERARES
LEBEBRESEERRIAEMAL -
WERRBARBEBRBEEMEHR - &
SEREENMBARAZ16.5%NH X
BAFEH -

hERERHMAES

RIER2007F12 A6 BB EMB
BOEEMIEA) - 20081 A1H% +
REAREEANFEREEGINEEE DK
BIIR B EIR10% B R MTEFIFR ST -
WP ERBARMEEERARTCE ST
MRS R 75 & B B R 8 P RT S ) B 75
BHRHEHRTE - BIERS%HREENH
T o HRNAEEIWEET ST B AN [E
DIERREFBEMBERARNZERAN - A
SEI AR F M B A B RERDIREFE
FHER BSOS -
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13.DIVIDEND 13.RE

At the board of directors meeting held on 25 March 2021, the
directors of the Company proposed a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 of RMBO.11 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB297,148,000 out of share
premium account of the Company. These proposed dividends
have not been reflected as dividends payable in this consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, but
will be reflected as dividends distribution in 2021.

At the board of directors meeting held on 19 March 2020, the
directors of the Company proposed a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2019 of RMBO0.08 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB216,107,000 out of share
premium account of the Company (Note 41(a)). The final dividends
were paid in September 2020.

At the board of directors meeting held on 28 August 2019, the
directors of the Company proposed an interim dividend for the
six months ended 30 June 2019 of RMBO0.10 per ordinary share
amounting to approximately RMB270,134,000 (Note 41(a)) out of
share premium account of the Company. The interim dividends
were paid in November 2019.

R2021F3A25HBHAMESREYF + AR
RIZEFIRABIKEHE2020F12A31 81k
FEMNAHARE  BRETBEBRAREO.11
7T HEF AR 297,148,000 T AR
AIAR D B AR A OB o b T8 #ER AR B A A%
REZ2020F 1231 B IEFEZHEAY
BMERFIIEEMARS - TR 2021 F 51
EDA o

R2020F3 A10HBHEMESREHF » AR
RIZEFRBKEHE2019F12A31 81
FEMNRARE  BRETBARARK0.08
70 HEFHARE216,107,000 T AR
AR5 i BRI (Ki3E41(a)) o REARR
BER2020F9 AR -

M2019F8 A28 HBRMESEH + AR
BEERBREEE2019F6 A308 IEX
BAMFHRKRE  EREBRARKO0.10
oC o HEFHAREE270,134,0007T (M5
41(a)) AR ARG EERP IR - PH
B EER2019%F 11 AR »
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.4%  BER®E

Buildings and
leasehold Office Motor | Construction Right-of-use

improvements equipment vehicles in progress assets Total

BTPREE
VES HARME it ERIE ERREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB' 000 GUL RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBT

Year ended 31 December 2020 EZ2020%F

1283 ALEE

Opening net book amount E341ER T F4%8 134,728 2,916 8,497 96,096 136,584 378,821
Additions A E 33,819 754 4,387 107,787 26,594 173,341
Disposals & (632) 273) (1,441) - - (2,346)
Transfer to buildings E#ZEF 203,883 - - (203,883) - -
Depreciation & (21,372) (1,342) (3,389) - (12,344) (38,447)
Closing net book amount & Bk ¥ 28 350,426 2,055 8,054 - 150,834 511,369
At 31 December 2020 7420205128310

Cost A& 428,590 10,321 18,040 - 171,597 628,548
Accumulated depreciation Z3HH1E (78,164) (8,266) (9,986) - (20,763) (117,179)
Net book amount SR /F % 350,426 2,055 8,054 - 150,834 511,369

Buildings and
leasehold Office Motor Construction Right-of-use
improvements equipment vehicles in progress assets Total

NFERE HARE 8 EEIR ik H)
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB' 000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFTL AREFT ARBTT

Year ended 31 December 2019 220195

1283 ALEE
Opening net book amount as at 1 January 2019

20191 A1 BENGEFE 91,723 2,352 6,779 52,295 121,670 274,819
Additions /R E 64,401 4,554 5,902 43,801 18,458 137,116
Disposals i 6) (51) (1,291) - - (1,348)
Depreciation 7€ (21,390) (3,939) (2,899) = (3,544) (31,766)
Closing net book amount B Bk ¥ 28 134,728 2,916 8,497 96,096 136,584 378,821
At 31 December 2019 }42019%12831H
Cost FKA 193,791 12,592 16,610 96,096 145,003 464,092
Accumulated depreciation ZH#1E (59,063) (9,676) (8,113) - (8,419) (85,271)
Net book amount fRE 54 134,728 2,916 8,497 96,096 136,584 378,821
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14.Y%  BERZE (&)
(CONTINUED)

Depreciation has been charged to the consolidated income TEREEW=RIERNT -

statements as follows:
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HILLEE

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT T ARBTF T
Cost of sales $H%E AN 18,277 8,939
Selling and marketing expenses $#5& & % #5515 231 329
Administrative expenses 77 i % 8,451 9,528
Properties under development B2 H ¥ 2 11,488 12,970
38,447 31,766
All buildings were located in the PRC. FrAEFHRTRE -
The information of the Group’s pledged assets is disclosed in the ANEBDIKPEENE BB BENHTEIS -
Note 36.
15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. 15 5 %

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31BLLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR%ET T ARETIT

Opening net book amount 8%/ BR % 58 2,924,115 1,768,420

Addition AR E 580,932 969,542

Fair value changes A {BEEEZE) (26,666) 186,153

Closing net book amount HiZk BRI F 58 3,478,381 2,924,115

Rental income & WA 100,417 54,709
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties & ME Q7 (BE

(B18),/ W= (26,666) 186,153

73,751 240,862
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no contractual
obligations for repairs, maintenance or enhancements.

As at 31 December 2020, investment properties of
RMB454,340,530 (2019: RMB137,555,135) was resulted from

operating of sub lease.

The information of the Group’s pledged assets is disclosed in the
Note 36.

16.LEASES
(a) Amounts recognised in the balance sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts
relating to leases:

e SRR A

5.1 &YX (1)
MR2020F 201912 A31H - ARERI
EIEE - HEIEENEONET -
R2020512 A31H + AR 454,340,530
70 (20194 « AR#¥137,555,1357T) My#%

BYE - HHKEDEMRE -

AEE D BB ER(E S WENHIES6 -

16.78 &
(a) REEEBRAERNERE

FABEEABRBRETIHIEERER
17

31 December | 31 December
2020 2019
2020F 20194

12A31H 12H31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBT ARETT

Property, plant and equipment - right-of-use assets #/% - § =

R -EREEE

Land-use rights = 3{# F 4 132,862 136,584

Properties ¥ 17,972 =
150,834 136,584

Lease liabilities HE& &

Current /&) 7,391 1,394

Non-current JE7i &) 471,566 156,063
478,957 157,457
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16.LEASES (CONTINUED) 16.48 8 (&)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) REEE W BRRABRNRE

income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following REREHREER N HERBR
amounts relating to leases:

Year ended Year ended
31 December | 31 December
2020 2019
BZ2020F EHZ=2019%F

12H31H 12H31H

IR I
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®FR |  ARETE

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets f§ i # & & R E {1

Land use rights = {5 F 3,722 3,544
Properties #1% 8,622 =

12,344 3,544
Interest expense (included in finance cost) | B8 (Bt AREE K A) 32,080 10,588

Expense relating to short-term leases and low value assets
(included in cost of goods sold and administrative expenses) 52 HiF & &

REEEERX (Bt AR EARKARITHAX) 24,040 23,849
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain THE T ERENER FHE > TEES
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease BRI RIEY - BEB AR
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the HEBECBREDIN  HEWEYT
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the EHEAERIFEF) -

lessor.
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17.DEFERRED INCOME TAX 17 ERLEFT 5
(a) Deferred income tax assets (a) EEEFIBEHREE

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019

2020 £F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 4588 1%
AT BB ATt EE

Tax losses TiIEE 15 463,821 456,896
Impairment of assets & & & & 14,410 19,170
Deductible temporary differences of investments in subsidiaries 7 Hf /&
NAINREN AR E R E R 242,893 242,893
Others Efth 68,728 Sipsile
Total deferred income tax assets {EIEFTS T &= EE 789,852 770,472
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities & $5iEEFTSH & & (17,527) (22,072)
Net deferred income tax assets IEILFTE T EEFE 772,325 748,400
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses IEIE PS5 A B 1R ] fE iR B R SR FE AR
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related HAEERBEARKASRERRIES
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 BEEEmR - R2020F12A31 8 -
December 2020, the Group did not recognise deferred income AEEBITEFARKE421,312,000
tax assets of RMB105,328,000 (2019: RMB89,040,000) in 7T (20194 - AR¥ 356,160,000
respect of tax losses amounting to RMB421,312,000 (2019: TL) WA SRR ER B A S BT
RMB356,160,000), that can be carried forward against EHEERRAELEMEHREEARK
future taxable income. These tax losses will expire up to and 105,328,0007C (20194F : AR
including year 2025. 89,040,0007T) - ZEHIABEKRN

2025 F F KA fE M ©
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17.DEFERRED INCOME TAX
(CONTINUED)

(a) Deferred income tax assets (continued)
Movements of deferred income tax assets without taking into

consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction is as follows:

Impairment of

Tax losses

REBR
RMB’000
ARBTT

Movements

,/\ JL

17IEEFT S ()

(a) EEFTEHEE (&)

BEEMBREENES (TZEEHA
RIS BLEE R AR AER) T

Deductible
temporary
differences of
investments in
subsidiaries
NGl
WREMN
THAEE
HER
RMB'’000
ARETT

Others

assets

BERE
RMB’000

S
RMB’000

At
RMB’ 000

9,499

At 1 January 2019 }42019%181R 240,364 222,861 54,126 526,850
Credit/(charged) to profit or loss BT A/ (48) 186,492 9,671 20,032 (2,613) 213,582
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yt% — B A 7 30,040 - = = 30,040
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31H 456,896 19,170 242,893 51,513 770,472
Credit/(charged) to profit or loss IMEZET A/ (11%) 19,554 (4,760) - 17,215 32,009
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B2 7 24,536 - - - 24,536
Disposal of subsidiaries &M BA A (37,165) - - = (37,165)
At 31 December 2020 42020512831 R 463,821 14,410 242,893 68,728 789,852
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities (b) EEEFFEHERE

As at 31 December
MW12A31H

2020

2019

20205
RMB’ 000
ARBT T

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 45 &8 1%

AT & BB AR A

20194
RMB’ 000
ARBFIT

Revaluation gains of investment properties & ¥ % H) & B Uk 25 226,055 232,722
Total deferred income tax liabilities ¥EEFT{5 5 & (& 4258 226,055 232,722
Set-off of deferred income tax assets K5 iE L FT{S 5 & & (17,527) (22,072)
Net deferred income tax liabilities ¥EIEFT5T & (& 558 208,528 210,650
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17.DEFERRED INCOME TAX

(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred income tax liabilities (continued)
Movements of deferred income tax liabilities without taking

into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same
tax jurisdiction is as follows:

e SRR A

17IEEFT SR (&)

(b) EEEFTEHEE (B)

ELEFMEHAENES (TEEEHEME
RIS BLAE R AR EER) T

Revaluation

gains of
investment
properties

BftWa
RMB’ 000
25 ARBT R

Movements

Recognition of | Deferred land

contract appreciation
revenue tax Total

EEL
REH @t
RMB’000

ARMTR

BHBA
RMB’ 000
ARBT R

At 1 January 2019 4201941518 186,184 43,391 64,847 294,422
Charge/(credit) to profit or loss KiEZ% / (Gt A) 46,538 (43,391) (64,847) (61,700)
At 31 December 2019 7420195128318 232,722 = S 232,722
Credit to profit or loss & AtB# (6,667) - - (6,667)
At 31 December 2020 742020512 A31H 226,055 - - 226,055

(c) Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB396,575,000 (2019:
RMB278,007,000) have not been recognised for the
withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries. Unremitted
earnings totalled RMB3,965,750,000 as at 31 December 2020
(2019: RMB2,780,072,000), as the Group does not have a
plan to distribute these earnings out of the PRC.

(c) AEEMUARBE THBRARIMNKREL
BAMEMENHRE MR IBEER
BEMEHAGBARE396,575,000
gL (20194F : AR®278,007,000
TT) o M20205F 12 A31H » ARA
B EET BT BE AN E DK
ZEREF  MABRBHAMBAARE
3,965,750,0007T (20194 : AR
2,780,072,0007C) °
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18.SUBSIDIARIES 18.F¢ B 2 =]
(a) Material non-controlling interests (a) ERFEZERER

Set out below is the summarised financial information for a TXEINHEEHAEEMEBEARN
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material IR EEN—ENBARMNTEE
to the Group. The amounts disclosed for the subsidiary is BEE - BRZMBARMBEENSRE
before inter-company eliminations. EEN NG SFE R
Deqing Dening Real Estate Co., Ltd. EEREEERE R
Summarised balance sheet EEAGEREE

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019

20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARETIT

Current R &h

— Assets — B & 2,019,277 2,594,010

— Liabilities — & & (943,585) (1,927,363)
Total net current assets 4B & EFE 1,075,692 666,647
Non-current 3E7E &N

— Assets — BE 1,969 6,381
Total net non-current assets #Z IR BN EE FE 1,969 6,381
Net assets & &= /FE 1,077,661 673,028

Proportionate share of the net assets attributable to
non-controlling interests &t 515 FEIZ AR E = FE (R ) & EE)F A 729,343 455,494
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18.SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18./t B~ 7 (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) ERFZERAER (])
Deqing Dening Real Estate Co., Ltd. (continued) EEEEERERA A (B)
Summarised income statement and statement of WEERRE2ERBERBE

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December
HBZE12A31HILLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T ARBTIT
Revenue U A 2,381,186 =
Profit/(loss) before income tax FT{SELAIFIE (EE) 597,225 (16,825)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FTEa% (%), # & (192,592) 4,027
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income for the year
FRFE,(BER) h2EREEE 404,633 (12,798)
Total comprehensive income for the year allocated to
non-controlling interests 2 it FIEEIE R A F A2 H RS 4258 273,849 (8,661)
Summarised statement of cash flows HERERBPE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HILEE
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AREET T
Net cash generated from operating activities 484 EEN A58 & F5E 1,738,349 419,450
Net cash used in investing activities & & /& B Fr IR &% 58 (684,440) (107,5083)
Net cash used in financing activities Bt & E B FT IR & /F 58 (829,676) (302,158)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents IR 4 &8 & S B WL h H5E 224,233 9,789
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F¥3R & MR & EHEY 145,736 135,947
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FXIE & NIEEEEY 369,969 145,736

239



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED #EEFEZERAERL T

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR EE

18.SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18.Kf B2 5 (4&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) ERFEIZRER ()
Wenzhou Dexin Ourun Real Estate Co., Ltd. BN E B ER B R A
Summarised balance sheet EEREREE

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBEFIT

Current &)

- Assets — BE 425,525 1,655,023

- Liabilities — A f& (37,097) (1,621,113)
Total net current assets &N AEFE 388,428 33,910
Non-current 3E/R )

— Assets — BE 1,220 16,757
Total net non-current assets & IF R BN E & FE 1,220 16,757
Net assets & & FE 389,648 50,667
Proportionate share of the net assets attributable to

non-controlling interests ¥&LL Bl 53 (h JEEAR E R EIG B & B 3E 264,961 34,454
Summarised income statement and statement of KBEREEWERBE

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December

HBZEZ12A318LLEE

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR%ET T ARBTF T

Revenue YA 1,524,818 =

Profit/(loss) before income tax FiE &A1 FIE / (&18) 464,926 (4,533)

Income tax (expenses)/credit Fri5%i (B ), #H % (125,945) 1,074
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income for the year

FAFE,(BR) REEREEE 338,981 (3,459)

Total comprehensive income for the year allocated to
non-controlling interests 7 it TIEERERHNF N2 E N H B 5E 230,507 (2,352)
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18.SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18./t B~ 7 (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) EARFEIERREL (F)
Wenzhou Dexin Ourun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (continued) JBNE R EZE AR A (B8)
Summarised statement of cash flows REeERERBPE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12831HLFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Net cash used in operating activities & & BB FT IR & %5 (146,121) (150,550)
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities & &SNS,/ (FTA)
W& 7,009 (9,794)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities gt& &%) (FTH), Fiig
W (1,652) 2,919
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 184 N I8 & S E W ) F 58 (140,764) (157,425)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F¥3R & MRS EHEY 200,557 357,982
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FXIE & NS EEY 59,793 200,557
Deqing Jinhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. e ERAF R A]
Summarised balance sheet EEEBEREE

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019

20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARETTT

Current ji@h

— Assets — &E 748,951 1,919,713

_ Liabilities — & & (294,542)  (1,823,130)
Total net current assets 4B & &EFE 454,409 96,583
Non-current 3£ &)

— Assets — & E 2,140 22,200
Total net non-current liabilities #23E7 84 &= /FE 2,140 22,200
Net assets & = /FE 456,549 118,783

Proportionate share of the net assets attributable to
non-controlling interests & Lt 7l 7 (h IEIE AR Me 25 FE (R HY B SR 301,322 78,397
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18.SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 18.MffB AR (4&)
(a) Material non-controlling interests (continued) (a) EXRFEIERER ()
Deqing Jinhong Real Estate Co., Ltd. (continued) R EREER A ()
Summarised income statement and statement of WEEREARSEREE

comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HIEEE

2020 2019
2020 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARETTT
Revenue YA 1,739,505 =
Profit/(loss) before income tax AT ATFIE,(E18) 629,029 (60,285)
Income tax (expenses)/credit TS (FIsz), K% (291,263) 14,589
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income for the year
FAMEB (BB R2EREEHE 337,766 (45,696)
Total comprehensive income for the year allocated to non-controlling
interests DAL TIFIE R F A2 H KRB 222,925 (30,159)
Summarised statement of cash flows HERERTE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBTTT

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities & & E &) (FrH),~

FaE S % (141,529) 578,300
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities &% & EBFT1S

(FrA)BReF58 120,123 (66,125)
Net cash used in financing activities B4 & /& BT FAIR & /558 (775) (427,809)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 3R & M IR & 5B

CR),/ % (22,181) 84,366
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ¥R & MRS EEY 188,731 104,365

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRKIR & NIRSEHEY 166,550 188,731
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. 6 ARERZEIIRNIRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(a) Investments accounted for using the equity (a) FARERZEIIRNIRE
method
()  The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance () REEEEABRANERAIER
sheets as “Investments accounted for using the equity BRES|BREIRE | HFIEN T -

method” are as follows:

As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AREET T
Joint ventures & &% 1,993,058 1,053,876
Associates & A A 3,409,133 2,738,462
5,402,191 3,792,338
(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) NEFEWERABREIDEEE
statements as “Share of results of joint ventures and PERBME NG S | BRIEWN
associates” are as follows: T
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T AREET T
Joint ventures & &% 305,826 136,750
Associates & A A 287,062 1,038,556
592,888 1,175,306
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19.F AR ETIRMIRE

USING THE EQUITY METHOD (#&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Set out below are the principal joint ventures and associates (b) T3 &P AR E®MP20204F 20194612
of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The place ABTEMTEZAEERBENR -
of incorporation or registration is also their principal place of M kMt AR EFE
business. EHEME o
() Joint ventures: i BELE:

Place of business/

place of incorporation ' Measurement
Name of entity and business method Principal activities
EEhE /EMAT
EfRsR REXHH £ | HEEE TERE
BREREEERLA The PRC 44% - EquityMethod  Property development
Ningbo Houyuan Real Estate Co., Ltd HEl 44% - RaERE nERE
RNEERBEEERAR The PRC 40% - Equity Method  Property development
Wenzhou Dexin Donghu Real Estate Co. Ltd %l 40% - BuEhE NERE
MMNEEEXERAR The PRC 50% 25%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Deshun Real Estate Co. Ltd G 50% 26% ERRE NERE
mNEREZERAR 50% 25%
Hangzhou Detong Real Estate Co., Ltd The PRC 50% 25%  Equity Method ~ Property development
e 8 R EREARAT i 20% 0% TEEHE mER%E
Hangzhou Jinfeng Real Estate The PRC 20% 20%  Equity Method  Property development

Development Co. Ltd i ERRE nER
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19. R EVIERNIRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)
(i) Associates: (i) BENA] -

% of ownership interest

EHERERE AL
Place of business/ As at 31 December
. . M2A31A
place of incorporation Measurement
Name of entity and business method Principal activities
EEWY /FMAL
EfREE RE£HY | HERE TEEK
MNBREHEREBRAR The PRC 25% 25%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Lidong Real Estate Development ~ HE 25% 2% A MERE
Co. Ltd
ENEEEREEERAT The PRC 33% 33%  Equity Method  Property development
Changzhou Dexin Jtayuan Real Estate i 33% 38% A EE
Co., Ltd
MMEIBEHEREERELAT The PRC 14% 14%  Equity Method  Property development
Hangzhou Chuangshu Real Estate el 14% 4% ERNE EES
Development Co. Ltd
ANEBEXARAT The PRC 20% 20%  Equity Method  Property development
Wenzhou Wanxian Real Estate Co., Ltd i 20% 20% ®ERHE NERE
BREEREEEERAF The PRC 43% - Equity Method  Property development
Nanjing Dexin Dongshan Real Estate Co., Ltd 43% - BaAk NERE
BMEEIREEXERAR The PRC 30% 28%  Equity Method  Property development
Wenzhou Dexin Hongchen Real Estate e 30% 28% EmAE EES
Co., Ltd
SEREEXARD The PRC 25% 24%  Equity Method  Property development
Jinhua Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd i 25% 4% EmAE EES
ANMBEEZERAF The PRC 11% 11%  Equity Method  Property development
Wenzhou Hemeng Real Estate Co. Ltd i 11% 1% ®&5E nERE
RINEERREEARA The PRC 39% 39%  Equity Method  Property development
Wenzhou Dexin Longrui Real Estate Co., Ltd 39% 9% #RAE mERE
KBEENEEXBRAR The PRC 39% - Equity Method  Property development
Chengdu Dexin Hangxing Real Estate Co. Ltd  H 39% - BEAE EEES
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19.FAEREIRNIRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (#8)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Summarised financial information for (c) BE LRI REELENIKE
associates and joint ventures A=
(i) Set out below is the summarised financial information for () TXHEHINAKNEENSBERNDEE
Hangzhou Deshun Real Estate Co. Ltd, which is a material NENNEIEE 2B R A BN
associate to the Group. BRRE o
Summarised balance sheet EEAGEREE
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Non-current assets I REEE 14 160
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents & NI & EEY 2,439 5,900
Other current assets H At im B & & 255,814 1,698,707
258,253 1,704,607
Total assets & E4R5E 258,267 1,704,767
Current liabilities FE & &
Other current liabilities HAb i & & 197,951 1,683,103
Total liabilities B &E#& % 197,951 1,683,103
Net assets EE FE 60,316 21,664
The Group’s share in % A& B A& {514 50.0% 24.5%
The Group’s share of net assets 7<% B &5 & E /R E 30,158 5,308
Purchase price premium & B (B8 - 13,478

Carrying amount BREE 30,158 18,786
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR 19.FAEREVIRNIRE
USING THE EQUITY METHOD (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Summarised financial information for (c) BEATIREELENUEE
associates and joint ventures (continued) BBE (E)
() (continued) 0 (&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2HENERBEE
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Revenue W A 1,594,668 =
Interest income F 8 U A 3,424 25,001
Income tax expenses FriSHiBI% (206,872) (3,608)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year F AFIE K 2 S 4258 538,652 10,825
Dividends received from the joint venture #£4& & 1 % URER A AL B, 229,250 =
(i) Set out below is the reconciliation of the summarised (i) TXEFITE5FEEREEEA
financial information presented to the carrying amount of EBENMNEIEE 2GRN T E
the Group’s interest in Hangzhou Deshun Real Estate Co. HHBETEE Y B o
Ltd.
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥T T ARET T
Opening net assets ¥ & E FE 21,664 10,839
Profit for the year & AFH 538,652 10,825
Dividends & & (500,000) -
Closing net assets HiR& & FE 60,316 21,664
The Group’s share of net assets 7% B fE/5 & &R E 30,158 5,308
Purchase price premium & & B)& (B - 13,478
Interest in joint venture & &1 M 30,158 18,786
Carrying value fREE 30,158 18,786
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19.INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR
USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(CONTINUED)

(c) Summarised financial information for
associates and joint ventures (continued)

(i) Set out below are the summarised financial information
for joint ventures, which are individually immaterial to the
Group.

e

19.(E AR ED BRAVIRE

(%)

(C) Hﬁﬁ#& /'\
B E

REgELXNINKE
(E)

(i) T EFERI T E A A REL N E

R

BELENUBEMEE -

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31HILLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR%T T ARET T

Profit for the year 4 A8 310,862 443,295
Other comprehensive income EH fth 2 s - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 4 R 2 Y 35 42 58 310,862 443,295

(iv) Set out below are the summarised financial information for
associates, which are individually immaterial to the Group.

(v) T EFIERI S A A REL &
REEERBIMPEERBE

HZE12A31HIEEE

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB?’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARETTT

Profit for the year 4 RF;H 1,966,493 3,145,202
Other comprehensive income 2 E s - =
Total comprehensive income for the year & A2 W i 4258 1,966,493 3,145,202
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20.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 0. ZERETNEMI A

CATEGORY
As at 31 December

2020 2019

20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBFIT

Financial assets: $R&EE :
Assets at amortised cost 1Z#E K AT E N EE

— Trade and other receivables — & 5 K E & Ug 71 18 1,737,035 1,175,908

— Amounts due from non-controlling interests — B 3F1Z I iE 25 7118 8,695,353 4,951,599

— Amounts due from related parties — JE U BB 77 5178 5,033,402 2,918,668

- Restricted cash — R HIIR & 928,980 5,797

— Cash and cash equivalents — 34 MRS ZEY 14,719,240 9,564,316
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss #Z AR EETE2 B A& & A

EaMemEE 202,925 271,469

31,316,935 18,887,757

Financial liabilities: €@l & & :
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IZE# X ANt EN S B AE
— Trade and other payables, excluding accrual for staff costs and allowances
and other taxes payable — & 5 &k E b FRI8 (N IERERT B TR MR

DA R Bty E ST A TR 4,676,077 2,741,910

— Amounts due to non-controlling interests — J&1~ FE#% A% 4 25 FUIA 5,774,386 3,909,697

— Amounts due to related parties — &1~ a5 5 ;U8 7,082,019 3,985,010
- Borrowings from bank and other financial institutions — BT &K E & &l

BRI A 25,688,064 14,848,075

Lease liabilities A& & & 478,957 157,457

43,699,503 25,642,149

21.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE N.BAREBEFTEEEESFH

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS AERHNEREE
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
2020F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T
Wealth management products ¥ &/ & & 153,614 222768
Others HAth 49,311 48,701
202,925 271,469
Less: non-current portion & : JEENEREE D (93,157) (170,726)
Current portion BNEAEE 5 109,768 100,743
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21.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

Wealth management products were mainly investments in financial
instruments issued by banks or other financial institutions, which
had no guaranteed returns. They had initial terms ranging from 1
to 3 years. The fair values of these investments approximated their
carrying values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

22.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
AND COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD
FOR SALE

__‘-_

ANBZQARBEFEEHEBEG

ABEZENEREE (F)

BUEMETZEAHRITHIEMSREEAN
BrremIAMNKRE  WEERKS  H
IR HABR A1 E3F - 20204 k20194
12A31H  ZERENAABEEEERE
B85 ©

AP YERBFIEHENR

THE

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’ 000
ARETIT

RMB’ 000
AR®T T

Properties under development B2 H ¥ 2 49,429,752 36,657,831
Completed properties held for sale ¥ {EH &)k T2 1,524,348 591,370
50,954,100 37,249,201

Property under development comprise: Fi3 R #13E B4E :
— Construction costs — E &R 8,510,592 7,762,228
— Land use rights — =3 {s FA 4 38,878,191 27,359,485
— Interests capitalised — & (L7 & 2,040,969 1,536,118
49,429,752 36,657,831

Properties under development and completed properties held for
sale of the Group are all located in the PRC and expected to be
completed and available for sale within normal operating cycle.

The capitalisation rate of borrowings is 8.5% for the year ended
31 December 2020 (2019: 9.2%).

The information of the Group’s pledged assets is disclosed in the
Note 36.

AEENRERTDERFELENRTY
EOURHE - YTRBHNERSERY
AR TRAHHE -

HZE2020F 12 A31BILEE  (ERNE
LR 58.5% (20194 : 9.2%) °

AEBEDEAEER(E S WERHITES6 -
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23.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES WEFREMEWRREBEBLURTE
AND PREPAYMENTS FRIE

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019

2020 £F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T

Trade receivables (Note a) Z 5 FEUFIE (Kizta)

— Third party — =7 88,704 164,646
— Related party — BBt 27,693 34,019
Less: provision for impairment & : J&i{E % (2,644) (1,797)
113,753 196,868

Other receivables Efth fE ULz 1E
— Deposits for property development and construction projects — %7 % %

NMEEEBRS 988,872 567,737

— Deposits for borrowings — & Fi% & 23,004 26,818
— Cash advances with third parties (Note b) — FEURE = H &3k (HizEb) 479,459 320,264
— Interest receivables — JEURF 8 42,922 7,351
- Others — EAfth 149,585 109,075
Less: provision for impairment & : J8{E & 5 (60,560) (52,205)
1,623,282 979,040

Prepayments & {1 I8
- Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights (Note c) — Ui + i {5 FA #2

KB IR (MisEe) 1,787,568 1,629,462

— Prepaid value added tax and other taxes — JafH1E8{ERT & H i Fi18 547,859 725,432
- Prepayments for property development — %3 5 2 89 8 1< 5018 508,000 =
- Others — EAth 136,684 57,006
2,980,111 2,411,900

Total trade and other receivables and prepayments & 5 & H b fE Uk 5% 18

URENRBEERE 4,717,146 3,587,808
Less: non-current portion of total trade and other receivables and prepayments
B B RE M EIGRIE LA R TE N SRIE A 2 FERNERE o (79,301) (75,179)

Current portion of trade and other receivables and prepayments E 5 &k

HihEW R ERFBSRE ZBNHE 2 4,637,845 3,512,629
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B.EZ R EMBEVWKREURE
fF7R18E (5)

(a) 2020 F % 2019F 12 A1 HME 5 &
WRRIE R 3 R B B & 4 IR e0 AR iR
are as follows: ST -

As at 31 December
M12A31H

23.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 based on invoice dates or contractual terms

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARBEFIT

Within 90 days 90K 42,945 42,803
Over 90 days and within 365 days 90K =365k 14,743 9,176
Over 365 days and within 2 years 365K 224 24,896 12,424
Over 2 years 2F M + 33,813 134,262

116,397 198,665

Trade receivables are denominated in RMB and mainly arise
from sales of properties and construction services. Proceeds
from sales of properties and construction service are generally
received in accordance with the terms stipulated in the sale
and purchase agreements. There is generally no credit period
granted to the property purchasers.

Trade receivables with ageing over 365 days mainly included
receivables of management and consulting services fees from
joint ventures and associates, and receivables of construction
service fees for a resettlement community project.

BEHRKHBAARBTERLETER
BYMREENRBERY - WERHEER
BERBA/FIE-—REKRESHZ
WETEAM R M ALE - — R T ERY
XEZRLEED -

ARECBB3s RN E SR HETRE
EREAZCENBERRERRE
ARBER -—EZE/EEBOEK
BRERBE -
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23.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES VBESRHEMEBEWRIEURTE

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) TR (8])

(b) As at 31 December 2020, the amounts included certain (b) m2020F12A31H * & THEK
cash advances from third parties of approximately E-THBROARKE123,016,754
RMB123,016,754 (31 December 2019 : RMB184,700,000) 7L (201912 A381H : AR
which bear interest rates of 10% per annum (31 December 184,700,0007T) * H#Z10% (20194
2019: 4.35% to 8% per annum) and were repayable according 12H31H : 4.35%E8%) MF F =&
to respective agreements. B WEREEGRERE -

(c) Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights will be (c) U iE it AAEMTEN KB B ERS
reclassified to properties under development when land THBERERHDBERBRYE o

certificates were obtained.

24.RESTRICTED CASH 24.ZREBRE

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019

20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARET T

Guarantee deposits for bank borrowings and bank acceptance notes

IRITERMLIRITA S EIEMIERTR 923,273 =
Others EAth 5,707 5,797
928,980 5,797

Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 923,273 =
Denominated in RMB LA A REEEHE 5,707 5,797
928,980 5,797
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25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B.EERBEEEY

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AR T ARET T

Denominated in LA N3l & #E:HE

-RMB — AR 13,751,906 9,028,178

-USD — %7t 939,293 528,845

-HKD — &7 28,041 7,293

14,719,240 9,564,316

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign 15 AAREGTEMNEHREIRBINE A K

currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies out of ZE N IE R B BB ST R B U FT AR A
the PRC are subject to relevant rules and regulation of foreign O FE B SN B R AR Bl KK AR ©

exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

26.SHARE CAPITAL 26. Ig 2

Equivalent
nominal value

Number of | Nominal value of of ordinary

ordinary shares | ordinary shares shares
EERHA EEREE EBEREERE

(VET RMB’000

Epv AR®T T

Authorised: & # :
As at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020
720201 A1HK2020F 12 A31H 5,000,000,000 2,500,000

Issued: T 21T :
As at 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020
7202041 A1 8 &20206F12 H31H 2,701,341,000 1,350,671 9,200
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27.0THER RESERVES 27. Efu & 1

Share
premium

I 43 iR 8
RMB’000
ARBT T

Other
reserves
H it 5
RMB’000
ARBTT

Total

o

RMB’ 000
ARBT T

Balance at 1 January 2019 201951 81 B K &6k 67,662 530,878 598,540
Issue of shares in connection with the Company’s listing

BARE LTEITRG 1,426,936 - 1,426,936
Share issuance costs f& {721 TA A (46,481) = (46,481)
Issue of shares in connection with the capitalisation issue

MERCEITEITRND (335) - (335)
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries (Note 37)

YeBE B R Rl ERSME 2 (P EE37) - (152,526) (152,526)
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without

change of control (Note 37) £ 7 3 A 3% #ll L B V150 T

HEME QR (H5E37) - 23,693 23,693
Interim dividends for 2019 (Note 13) 20194 A Eif% 2 (MI5¥13) (270,134) - (270,134)
Balance at 31 December 2019 742019412 A 31 H {45 &k 1,177,648 402,045 1,579,693
Balance at 1 January 2020 4202051 B 1 B &5k 1,177,648 402,045 1,579,693
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries (Note 37)

WHEM B A al ey RE Mz (FHFEST) - (146,775) (146,775)
Disposal of interests in subsidiaries without

change of control (Note 37) fE AR AR HIERERIB R T

HEMB QR (EE37) - 2,177 2,177
Final dividends for 2019 (Note 13) 2019 R HIAZ & (Fi7513) (216,107) - (216,107)
Balance at 31 December 2020 72020512 A 31 H 4582 961,541 257,447 1,218,988

Other reserves mainly represented the share premium from the
Company’s listing and the accumulated capital contribution from
the then shareholders of the group companies in excess of the
consideration given in relation to the reorganisation.

28.STATUTORY RESERVES

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
when declaring dividend, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to appropriate not less than 10% of their profit after
taxation calculated under PRC accounting rules and regulations
to the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of the
fund reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective
companies. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses brought forward
from prior years or to increase the paid up capital of respective
companies.

HiEEEEARR EHEENRD &
EREEARERRRIEARIER
HATHRERD -

28. ;% FE &

RETEBEBRAEER  EERRKRE
B AEBNTENEQRARSRERS
SRR SOER A EHBIEFEN10%K
NEBREZATHES  BEELAERHES
MR ERRERZ AR EMEARANE0% R
Ik e B EFBE R RIS ERA
REHEEFEEENERIENE QT
MEREA o
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29.EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (RMB’ 000) A2 &l B A FEAE T

29.8RER

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LLEE

2020 2019
2020 F 20194

(AR¥EFTT) 1,192,502 1,556,514
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in thousand) 2 %17

B INRE T8 (PATET) 2,701,341 2,605,091
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) & EARZEF (A RETH) 0.44 0.60

The Company had no dilutive potential shares in issue, thus the
diluted earnings per share equals the basic earnings per share.

30.BORROWINGS 30.1f6 &

Borrowings included in non-current liabilities: 5T AFREBEBHERK -
Bank borrowings 777 &%

2020

20204
RMB’ 000
AR® T

RRAREMLEMEBRITHEEHEERD -
It BEREERNENERERRRF

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2019
20194
RMB’ 000
ARBFIT

- Secured — B 15,267,060 7,632,580
Other borrowings H 1 &

- Secured — HE#H 3,820,321 4,442,162
Senior notes B L ZE 4,353,886 2,162,333
Less: current portion of non-current borrowings J& : EBIHA{E &9 BN EA R (6,491,657) (4,929,160)

16,949,610 9,307,915
Borrowings included in current liabilities: 5t AREI & EMNER :
Bank borrowings 777 &%

- Secured — B 566,463 =
Other borrowings E i {& X

- Secured — HE#H 1,645,334 611,000

— Unsecured — K 35,000 =
Current portion of non-current borrowings 3FENER (& 5k #) BN HA &L 7> 6,491,657 4,929,160

8,738,454 5,540,160
Total borrowings & K42 %8 25,688,064 14,848,075
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30.BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

On 23 January 2020, the Group issued medium-term notes with
principal amount of USD200 million at 97.90% discount to face
value, at an interest rate of 11.875% per annum and with maturity
in 2022.

On 3 December 2020, the Group issued medium-term notes with
principal amount of USD200 million at 96.872% discount to face
value, at an interest rate of 9.950% per annum and with maturity
in 2022.

The Group’s bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2020 of RMB21,299,178,000 (2019: RMB12,685,742,000)
were secured by certain own-used properties, land use rights,
investment properties, properties under development and
completed properties held for sale of the Group with total carrying
values of RMB30,662,387,000 (2019: RMB21,237,093,000). The
Company’s equity interests in certain subsidiaries were pledged as
security for borrowing of the Group at 31 December 2020.

Certain group companies in the PRC have entered into fund
arrangements with trust companies and assets management
companies, respectively, pursuant to which these financial
institutions raised funds and injected them to the group
companies. Certain equity interests of the group companies were
held by the financial institutions as collateral of which the Group
is obligated to redeem at predetermined prices. The funds bear
fixed interest rates and have fixed repayment terms. Thus, the
Group did not derecognise its equity interests in the subject group
companies but treated the fund arrangements as other borrowings
in the consolidated financial statements.

(a) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates or maturity date
whichever is earlier are as follows:

e SRR A

30.f& =K (&)

R20204%1 A23H » REBIZRREMENE
97.90% TR S E A200B B X1 @ 7
R E11.875% B 2022 F R Himy P B 22
% o

R2020%F12 A3H » NEBIZKREMENE
96.872% (T AELREA200HEFE L F
IR 59.950% B R 2022 F B HA h B E
® o

ANEEP2020F 12 A31 BHRT R EAM
R AREE21,299,178,0007T (20194 -
ANE#12,685,742,0007T) » JhHERE
EAR30,662,387,0007T (20194 = A
R#21,237,093,00070) WAEEE T A
Bz - LHERAE - KEME - FETF
WERBERENBRTYWEEDER - R
2020F12A318  ARGEETFTHER
AR AR E EAS B E IR -

ETHEEERAREHERARREEE
BREDAFTUMERY  ZFSREE
BHBRESIAKERA - RE QAW
ETRERSRESSEERR  AKE
BUARREENERER - ZFESRE
BEMERZAMAME - LRETEHRER
At - NERBE W R IFFERERIFHEE
NEERHE - RS B F R R
BLHRREMER

(a) 7~ & B & 78 8 5 R = 80 /9 EL K A
MAKWEHTEAPRINMAE (UKL
ERE)WAT

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

AR® T AREET T

6 months or less 61 A sk AT 9,534,484 3,988,760
6-12 months 6 & 121# A 10,006,416 2,125,800
1-2 years 1224 5,710,164 6,697,915
2-5 years 2 &5 330,000 1,748,270
Over 5 years 5% A + 107,000 287,330
Total 485t 25,688,064 14,848,075
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=+ —
30.BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 30.fE X (#8)
(b) The repayment terms of the borrowings are as follows: (b) EREERMBRLT -
As at 31 December
M12A31H
2020 2019
20205 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARBTIT
Within 1 year 1 AR 8,738,454 5,540,160
1-2 years 1224 8,882,905 5,391,815
2-5 years 2 254 6,967,972 3,392,270
Over 5 years 5F M+ 1,098,733 523,830
Total #85t 25,688,064 14,848,075
(c) The weighted average effective interest rates as at 31 (c) H2020F K% 20194 12 A31 B MN#E
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: FHERMELT

As at 31 December
MW12H31H

2020 2019
20204 20194

Weighted average effective interest rates NI4E F 19 B X &R 8.99% 8.52%
(d) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in (d) EREOEREEN TS EBHE -

the following currencies.

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB A R#& 21,266,706 12,685,742
UsD %7t 4,421,358 2,162,333
Total 45t 25,688,064 14,848,075
(e) The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximated their (e) RN ERMBIBFET K FIER
fair values as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the impact R2020F K& 2019412 A31 BWERE

of discounting of borrowings was not significant. BEAEQAEERS -
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31.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES NEFZRHEMENRKE
As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019

2020F 20194

RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARET T ARBFIT

Trade payables (Note a) & 5 FE{J 518 (KizEa) 2,186,111 1,594,530

Notes payables FE{TE % 572,500 6,030

Other payables: HfthfE{F7HE :

Other taxes payable E i & {7 18 2,337,244 1,687,326

Interests payable &2 216,898 105,892

Construction fees received on behalf of constructors & i T A B WEIHE R E R 114,931 154,023

Deposits from contractors and suppliers B 78 & K (& i W B 7 & 276,831 190,173

Payroll payable JEff T& 168,737 141,775

Deposits received for sales of properties Bt & ¥ % WE B IR & 262,217 84,090

Advances from third parties (Note b) B 5 = 77 WK 23 (M 5Eb) 878,554 437,498

Others EAfth 168,035 169,674

Total trade and other payables ¥ 5 & H i fE {5 B4 4 7,182,058 4,571,011
Less: non-current portion of trade and other payables & : & 5 & E b FE {5178

Z FEBNEREL 5 - (247,498)

Current portion of trade and other payables & 5 & H fth & {4 28 = BN Z8 5 7,182,058 4,323,513

(a) The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice dates or () BZENFEZZEZAHIENERDOE

contractual terms is as follows: oA -

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019

2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARETx ARETIT

Within 90 days 90K 1,306,681 939,377
Over 90 days and within 365 days 90K A _EZE 365K 809,537 584,524
Over 365 days 365KA E 69,893 70,629

2,186,111 1,594,530

T

Advances from third parties

As at 31 December 2020, the amounts included certain cash
advances from third parties of approximately RMB544,245,000 (31
December 2019 : RMB437,498,000) which bear interest rates ranging
from 3.025% to 13% per annum (31 December 2019: 4.35% to 8%
per annum) and were repayable according to respective agreements.

B % =77 WY B R

M2020F12A31H - 88 FAEE=FKE
IR & B AREES44,245,0007T (2019
F12A318 : ARM437,498,0007T) ¥%
NF3.025%EF13% (2019412 A31 1 -
4.35%E8%) MEF KL - WHEIKHEE
B EE -
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32.CASH GENERATED FROM REEFMBRE
OPERATIONS
(a) Reconciliation of profit for the year to net (a) FAFBREEMSREFHE
cash generated from operations HY ¥ AR
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T
Profit before income tax for the year 4 A BT 15 %4 B K18 3,105,460 2,981,214
Adjustments for: Bt T %55 B {EH %
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment — ¥ - E & REFTE 26,959 18,796
— Interest expenses — #8255 550,787 527,320
— Interest income — | E WA (167,247) (95,382)
- Gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss — 27
BEEEAEZHTABENERNEEMGFWE (17,948) (34,343)
— Share of results of joint ventures and associates — JE{E A &M% R
PN RIS (592,888) (1,175,306)
— Fair value losses/(gains) on investment properties — L& MEH A A
BEEE (W) 26,666 (186,153)
- Gains on disposal of subsidiaries — &M B A &AW (24,451) (5,067)
— Exchange losses/(gains) — [E 5 &8/ (Uz5) 56,380 (25,490)
- Others-net — Efth /¥ 58 4,175 33,857

Cash generated from operations before changes in working capital &8
ﬁA*=@nﬁlJH’JA¢ Pﬁ?%fﬁ% 2,967,893 2,039,446

— Properties under development and completed properties held for sale

— AP ERFELERNE T (9,627,787) (8,635,974)
- Contract liabilities — & #IA & 7,713,384 6,706,710
— Trade and other receivables and prepayments — & 5 K H {th fE e A

AR FEAN /IR 248,187 497,962
— Trade and other payables — & 5 [ H fth f& < FUA 1,501,441 1,395,187
— Contract acquisition costs — & & UREE AKX A (176,812) 847

Cash generated from operations & &F{5H & 2,626,306 2,004,178




2020F E$kE ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR M

32.CASH GENERATED FROM NEFFMBEE (E)
OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) REFEBFFELERENHER

financing activities

Borrowings from Amounts
bank and due to joint | Amounts dueto | Amounts due to
other financial ventures |  non-controlling other related Advance from Lease
institutions | and associates interests parties third parties Liabilities

BRORAM | ENRELRR EfFER Efifif
SRABHER BELTHE RitHE LLYE ¢ EEyE L BEAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRT R ARRTR ARRTR ARRTR ARRT R ABRT R

Balance as at 31 December 2018 4201812

B3 BHER 9,778,600 4,013,533 4,098,180 14,044 56,001 -
Non-cash changes B £ %

- Acquisition of a subsidiary — K~

HERA - - 309,628 - - =
- Addition of lease liabiliies — & & BRE = - - - - 177,203
- Finance expense recognised — B
HERX 119,610 - - - - 10,588
- Foreign exchange adjustments — JME % (25,490) - - - - -
Cash Flows B& 772
- Increase — 11 12,193,035 1,478,697 3,707,184 60,694 437,498 -
- Decrease — b (7,217,680) (1,579,060) (4,205,295) (2,758) (66,001) (30,334)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 201912
B3 RMER 14,848,075 3,913,070 3,909,697 71,040 437,498 157,457
Non-cash changes 8 £ %
- Acquisition of subsidiaries — YERM B2 7 4,099,000 (1,084,582) 622,301 - - -
- Disposal of subsidiaries — £ EHBL (382,500) 431,000 (68,752) - - -
- Addition of lease liabilties — EE & ERE - - - = = 327,399
- Finance expense recognised — & 37
HEARY 464,004 - - - - 32,080
- Foreign exchange adjustments — JME % (206,223) - - - - -
Cash Flows &2
- Interest paid — EAFI& (353,092) - - - - -
- Increase — 1211 24,766,443 4,372,872 4,495,560 2,497 878,554 -
- Decrease — §4 (17,547,643) (641,427) (3,184,510) (3,351) (437,498) (37,979)

Balance as at 31 December 2020 14202012
B3 B ke 25,688,004 6,990,933 5,774,386 91,086 878,554 478,957
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33.AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(a) Amounts due from non-controlling interests

As at 31 December 2020, amounts due from non-controlling
interests included amounts of RMB541,200,000 (31 December
2019: RMB95,000,000), which carried interest rate of 7.3%
per annum (31 December 2019: 4.75% per annum) and were
repayable according to respective agreements.

e

33.JEW e IR A 2R K

15
(a) FEWIEIZ IR REZS TRIE

M2020%F12 A31 8 - EUSGEERERS
A A AR 541,200,0007T (20194
12A31H : AR¥95,000,0007T) °
ZEFRIERT. 3%(2019&12)%315

4.75%) KFEFIEFT B - WEKIEER

22 fridh ymm
mEE -

(b) Amounts due to non-controlling interests (b) FEAS FEIZ AR RE SR FRIE
As at 31 December
MW12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Non-current portion (i) FEENEAEE 5 (1) 26,318 228,598
Current portion (i) BIEREE 2 (i) 5,748,068 3,681,099
5,774,386 3,909,697
() As at 31 December 2020, the amounts included certain cash () 7M2020F12A31R  2ETEIFER
advances from non-controlling interests, which bear interest rates T WA ZA R - H428% (2019412

of 8% per annum and were repayable according to respective
agreements (31 December 2019: 8% to 8.5% per annum).

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the amounts included certain cash
advances from non-controlling interests of approximately
RMB1,621,586,000 (31 December 2019 : RMB699,629,000)
which bear interest rates ranging from 5% to 13.2% per annum
(31 December 2019: 4.35% to 8% per annum) and were
repayable according to respective agreements.

BS1B : 8%Z8.5%) MEFIEE -
WA REE -

(i) M2020F12A31H x5 FAHI*
TREZHRBRNB2ROABAARE
1,621,586,0007T (2019412 A 31
A : AR#699,629,0007T) @ &ZEHK
EIENF5%ZE13.2% (2019412 A 31
H:4.35%%E8%) MEFERFTE - I
JBIZABPE R R o
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34.FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 34. I IR

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019
20194
RMB’ 000

ARBETTT

20204
RMB’ 000
ARET T

Guarantee in respect of mortgage facilities for certain purchasers (note a)

HETERNRBREERHENOER (Hita) 14,605,341 12,603,058
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of joint ventures and associates
(note b and note 38) Ft& &1 % M & A2 Al fE R A R (BT5Eb & FT5ES8) 3,181,893 2,469,100
Guarantee provided for the borrowings of third parties (note b) EE =74
BRI AR (M5ED) - 193,300
17,787,234 15,265,458

(@)

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of the
Group’s property units and provided guarantees to secure obligations
of such purchasers for repayments. Such guarantees terminate upon
the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership certificate
which will generally be available within an average period of two to
three years upon the completion of guarantee registration; or (ii) the
satisfaction of mortgaged loan by the purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible to repay the
outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued interest and
penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group
is entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of
grant of the mortgages. The directors consider that the likelihood
of default in payments by purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantee measured at fair value as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 is immaterial.

Amounts represented the maximum exposure of the guarantees
provided for the borrowings of the related parties and independent
third parties at the respective balance sheet dates. The directors
consider that the likelihood of default in payments by the related
parties and independent third parties is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantee measured at fair value as at 31 December 2020
and 2019 is immaterial.

AEEERAKEMEEUNETERR
PRRTTRE - WORHERMERZFE
RETEREENER - ZRFEFRBEET
FIRBHHEALL - (VBEFMEMAERE -
—REERBLTKEFHRERE=
FRMEERENZBER -

ooy

BEBEERER  WERERIZBHAR - &
EEAETEEREENEBEREIR MU
MEHBERRBITHOETFEMER - B
REBEBREEEHBMENE EXERELE
B - AEENERBERLRBERZ
Bt - EERE  ERERFIAHTEE
MR/ B R 20204 #2019 12 A 31
BEAREBETENVBERETEK -

ZECHEASEAERBERASMER H X
BYF=FaXMREEOBERAAGN R
mER - -EERAE BBEAIRBUYE=H
HERFRIBR A B R/ - B IR 2020F K
201912 A1 BIZR AR BEEEN M IEE
RITEK ©
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35.COMMITMENTS 35. 71§

Commitments contracted for but not provided for are as follows: ERTAVEREBH 2 ARZIOT ¢

As at 31 December
MW12A31H

— Property development activities — ¥ 3£ B 2 E &

— Property, plant and equipment — % - = K& E

— Investments in joint ventures and associates — RA & D ¥ N E N FIMIIRE
— Investment properties — IR &E ¥ %

2020
20204
RMB’ 000
AR¥T T

12,320,814
11,029
1,313,398
198,992

2019
20194
RMB’ 000
ARETIT
10,690,499
12,630
370,239
345,320

13,844,233 11,418,688

36.ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY B.ERERERMZERE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2020 2019
202045 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARETTT
ASSETS B &
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - B&E &% & 141,235 56,983
Right-of-use assets — land use rights £ L E — b {F FE 3,014 3,218
Investment properties & ¥ 1,270,800 1,382,200
Total non-current assets pledged as security Eif{EAR T RHIERE L ELTE 1,415,049 1,442,401

Current assets B EE
Properties under development and completed properties held for sale 2

MERFELENRIYE 29,247,338 19,794,692
Total assets pledged as security EH{EAEF RN EELSE 30,662,387 21,237,093
The Company’s equity interests in certain subsidiaries were R2020F 128318 - ARAIRE TH B
pledged as security for borrowing of the Group at 31 December NEMREDEAR AT EEEROERR -

2020.
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37.TRANSACTION WITH NON- ST.EFIEREZNIRS

CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(a) WaiB kB 2 R AV FESME SR

(a) Acquisition of additional interest in
subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group B ZE2020F12 A1 HIEFE » A5E

acquired additional equity interest of certain subsidiaries, the
Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests and
a decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The differences between the carrying amounts of non-
controlling interest acquired and consideration paid are set
out below:

WHEE TH B AR R RESMNHE - X
RIFEB D M AR BHEE AE
TERRFEIR A o P UK RE FE IR A 25 1O BR
EEEDNREZRNEZRHINNAT

Year ended 31 December
HBZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019

20204 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

Total carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired P&

ARBTR ARETT

SERE R R AARRE(E 182,069 206,427
Less: total consideration paid and payable to non-controlling interests

B BN REMIEERERRERAR (328,844) (358,953)
Total difference recognised within equity Rz ARER R 42 =58 (146,775) (162,526)

(b) Disposal of ownership interest in subsidiaries
without change of control

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
disposed of certain equity interest in subsidiaries without
change of control. The Group recognised an increase in non-
controlling interests and a decrease in equity attributable to
owners of the Company as set out below.

(b) EARBAEZHERXBENFERT

HENE AT AEE

HZE2020F12A31BILFE - KER
FERBEELFIERENBER T HEN
BRAEIME TRIE AEECHERIE
IR AE SR N AN D B A A E(GAE
R FEEIET -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019

2020 £F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARETIT

Consideration received from non-controlling interests B FE#EAX#E %5

WEREY (B 40,247 270,289
Less: carrying amounts of the equity interest disposed of Ji : & &

IRERREE (38,070) (246,596)
Total difference recognised within equity Az N FER 42 =58 2,177 23,693

265



DEXIN CHINA HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED EEFEERERAT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR AR EE

37.TRANSACTION WITH NON- STEEFERERNRS (&)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(CONTINUED)
(c) The aggregate effect of the above transactions with non- (c) Ll BRFEIT BRI R 5 ¥ AR Al
controlling interests on the equity attributable to owners of the EAEGEEHERZENAT :

Company are as follows:

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T

Changes in equity attributable to owners of the Company arising from:
RRAREAANEERREN T REME ErE
— Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiaries — UXBEHIE A & &Y

EHIMER (146,775) (152,526)
— Disposal of ownership interest in subsidiaries without loss of control
— ERKEZHENBER T HEHBRRNMEEER 2,177 23,693
(144,598) (128,833)
38.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS . RS
(a) The ultimate holding company of the Company is Tak Shin (@) AR RAMBRKRIER AR AEREERA
International Limited (BVI), and the ultimate controlling RAR (RBHEBRRES)  A2AH
shareholder of the Company is Mr. Hu. SRR R AR AE o
(b) Key management compensation (b) =EEEE E H M
Key management compensation for the year ended 31 HZE2020F M2019F 12 A31 HILF
December 2020 and 2019 are set out below: ENTEZERESHFMEINNT

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILLEE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T

Key management compensation ¥ E & % & £
— Salaries and other employee benefits — ¥4 & H g 8 &R 16,830 10,066
— Pension costs — BR& Ak A 375 533

17,205 10,699
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38.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.ABLERS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related parties (c) EERAEE B &L 6k
As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had the R2020F K& 2019412 H31H * A%
following material balances with related parties: E AR A A T E R

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2020 2019

2020 F 20194
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR®T T ARET T

Trade receivables from related parties: XE BB AN E 5 EUWFIE :

Joint ventures & &> % 5,708 1,047
Associates & A A 19,140 31,870
Entities controlled by Mr. Hu #85t A 12 HIlH) F 52 2,845 1,102

27,693 34,019

Prepayment to related parties # F B 5 WA B
Associates Hi & A A 20,580 =

Amounts due from related parties: FEUXEIEE T 7118 :

Joint ventures & &b 3 2,609,177 914,601
Associates Hif & X &) 2,424,225 1,997,968
Entities controlled by Mr. Hu #A5E A I B F 52 - 6,099
5,033,402 2,918,668
Amounts due to related parties: FE{tEIE 5 FIE :
Joint ventures & &% 3,071,371 821,489
Associates B & A A 3,919,562 3,091,581
Entities controlled by Mr. Hu BA%E A1 HI M B 828 91,086 71,940
7,082,019 3,985,010
Less: non-current portion of amounts due to related parties J& : FE{< B5#

SRIARFERNERER - (500,000)
Current portion of amounts due to related parties JE{~EAES: 5 ZUIARIBNEAEE 7> 7,082,019 3,485,010
Trade payables to related parties: FE{tBIEE S E 5 FUE
Entities controlled by Mr. Hu #8712 HIH F 52 69,347 59,825
Close family members of Mr. Hu #R%c AR 6,496 =

75,843 59,825

Lease liabilities: HE& & :
Joint ventures & &% 131,806 =
Entities controlled by Mr. Hu #A5 A1 HH) B S 12,010 -
143,816 -
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38.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3B.FAH XS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Balances with related parties (continued) (c) E2EBEE 5 Ry A eR (48)

As at 31 December 2020, amounts due to joint ventures R2020%F12A310 - BNARZRER
and associates of RMB233,400,000 (31 December 2019: Bt 2 X BIROFRIA 8 A R ¥ 233,400,000
RMB731,950,000) bear interest rates ranging from 4.35% to TT(2019F12H31H + AR
9% (31 December 2019: 4.35% per annum) per annum and 731,950,0007T) * N F4.35%E9%
were repayable based on the contractual agreements (31 (2019F 12 A31H : 4.35%) RYFF| =&
December 2019: same). TR BARBENIBHEMEE (2019

F£12A318 : HRA) -

R2020F12A831H - BRAED
¥RBMEATMRBEEAARE

As at 31 December 2020, amounts due from joint ventures
and associates totalling RMB66,000,000 (31 December
2019 : RMB332,293,000) bear interest rates of 7% per 66,000,0007TC (2019412 A31H : A
annum (31 December 2019: 7% to 12% per annum) and were K% 332,293,0007T) * 7% (2019
repayable on demand or based on contractual agreements (31 F12A318 : 7T%E12%) HFF K5t
December 2019: same). B BARERIRRENBRER
(2019412 A318 : #R) °

The rest of amounts due from/to related parties mainly
represented the cash advances which were unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

Hih W N RIBEETERE
Tﬁﬁ REREREREENRER
e
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38.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.EBHAERXZ (&)

(CONTINUED)
(d) SRR O 5

(d) Transactions with related parties

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group had the following significant transactions with related
parties.

(i) Entities controlled by Mr. Hu (i) &%t 4 5 4l 6 & 52

HZE2020F &2019F12 A31 B IEF
B ASEEBEBAEBEATEAR

% o

Year ended 31 December
HBZE12A31HILLEE

2020

2020 F
RMB’ 000
AR®T T

2019
20194
RMB’ 000
AR¥ET T

Receiving of property management services 15 %)% & 12 R 1% 89,279 59,779
Purchase of goods and services of smart community solutions

BESEMEMRAT RN G RRS 6,029 =
Receiving of construction and decoration services 152 5t % 2 4 iR 75 189,118 171,552
Sales of properties ¥ 45 11,013 11,366
Rental income 4 WA 1,216 =
Purchase of equity interests of an associate B & — 15 & A 7] f i 182,443 =
Interest expenses for lease liabilities 8 & & &7 2 5 2 1,347 =
Payment of lease liabilities & & &3 8,535 =
Receiving of other services 15 E b iR 7% 11,018 =
(i) Joint ventures (i) A&t
Rendering of management and consulting services et & I & i+ R 23,511 1,862
Interest income FEUg A 11,043 19,143
Interest expenses F| 8.5 32,662 4,995
Purchase of carparks & B (B 7 31,563 =
Interest expenses for lease liabilities HE & & F| 8 XX 11,548 =
Payment of lease liabilities & & &7 13,217 =
(ili) Associates (jii) B A &)
Rendering of management and consulting services et & 12 & i i8R TS 141,299 50,000
Interest income F| 8 WA 28,709 6,078
Interest expenses #8253 7,723 62,477
(iv) An entity jointly controlled by Mr. Hu (iv) #8%5E 4 HR14% 6 6 =52
Purchase of equity interests of a subsidiary & & [ B 2 7] i # - 353,550
(v) Close family members of Mr. Hu (v) #A5t 4 B3T3
Sales of properties ¥ HE 13,869 1,483

The prices for the above transactions were determined in
accordance with the terms agreed by the relevant contracting

parties.

ER R BB IR RARRIET 4077 P

1% T AV IGRR M EERE
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38.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS B.EAKAIRS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Guarantee with related parties (e) BERAEE T OIER

As at 31 December
M12H31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB?’ 000 RMB’ 000
AR¥ T ARBFIT

Provision of guarantee for borrowings of related parties R85 f& 5
REER
- Joint ventures — & &b 1,183,350 1,271,250
— Associates — Hf& A A 1,998,543 1,197,850
3,181,893 2,469,100
i I\ =] =
39.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30./f B~ RIFF1R
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 K%F2020$&2019$12H31 HrE
December 2020 and 2019 are set out as below. B ARFBHINWAT o

Proportion of
ownership interest

FERRLETLH

Date of Place of
incorporation/ Type of legal operation/ Principal Registered/ Paid up
Name of companies establishment status establishment | activities Issued capital capital 31 December
BE/HY i/ B
ARER ALY/ R AH | R R itid IEEH U HREx 12A31H

RMB 2020 | 2019
AE® | 2020 | 20195

Dexin Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. 1 September 1995 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development  3,390,000,000  3,390,000,000 ~ 100% 100%

BEMESEARLA 199589818 BREEAF # nERE 3,390,000,000 3,390,000,000 ~ 100%  100%

Wenzhou Dexin Binhai Real Estate 23 October 2017 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 200,000,000 200,000,000 50% 50%
Co. Ltd

RNEEEIEXARDA 17108288 BEREEATF # nEHRE 200,000,000 200,000,000 = 50% 50%

Deqing Dening Real Estate 16 May 2017 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 700,000,000 700,000,000 32% 32%
Co., Ltd. (Note a)

EEREEXERAD (Ma) 17858168 ERELATF # ESE 700,000,000 700,000,000 = 32% 32%

Wenzhou Dexin Ourun Estate 21 February 2017 Limited liability company ~ The PRC Property development 100,000,000 100,000,000 32% 32%
Co., Ltd. (Note a)

ANEEREERAR () M7F28218  ARELAA TE mERE 100,000,000 100,000,000 32% 32%




2020F E$kE ANNUAL REPORT 2020

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Name of companies

AR

Deging Jinhong Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(Note a)
REHREXERAR (i)
Hangzhou Dekai Real Estate Co., Ltd
INEAEXERAT
Wenzhou Dexin Ecological Park
Property Co., Ltd.
AN RREFARAT
Hangzhou Runnan Real Estate
Co., Ltd (Note a)
MERERERAR (W)
Dexin Real Estate (Zhoushan)
Co., Ltd.
BIEHE (RL) BRAA
Cixi Hexiang Real Estate Co., Ltd.
(Note a)
EEAMERARAR (W)
Taizhou Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd.
ANEEERARAR
Xuzhou Deyuan Real Estate Co.,Ltd.
BHEREEERAE
Zhejiang Dechen Real Estate
Co., Ltd.
HIERESARAA
Wenzhou Shidai Real Estate
Co., Ltd (Note a)
EMEREXARAR (Hita)

Date of
incorporation/
establishment

AMRY/ HIAE

9 October 2017

2017%10F98
15 April 2019
2019544158
4 July 2013

2013%7 A4
6 March 2019

2019F376H
20 December 2016

2016127208
30 October 2017

2017510A30R
16 June 2017
2017567168
17 July 2017
01757A178
16 October 2017

20171074168
23 January 2017

2017%1 A23H

Type of legal
status

AR

Limited liability company

EREAAR
Limited liability company
EREAAT
Limited liability company

EREAAT
Limited liability company

EREAAT
Limited liability company

EREAAT
Limited liability company

EREAAT
Limited liability company
EREMAT
Limited liability company
ERELRA
Limited liability company

EREERA
Limited liability company

Place of
operation/
establishment
gE/RI

fies

The PRC

R
The PRC
E
The PRC

E
The PRC

E
The PRC

E
The PRC

i
The PRC
o
The PRC
hE
The PRC.

T
The PRC

hE

e SRR A

39.Fff B 1 A & 15 (&)

Principal
activities

TEXE

Property development

VIELE
Property development
VELES
Property development

VELES
Property development

VELES
Property development

VELE
Property development

VELES
Property development
VEES
Property development
VELES

Property development

VEGES

Property development

VEES

Proportion of
ownership interest

B

Registered/ Paid up ikt

Issued capital capital 31 December

ift/ e&f
U HRExR 12A31H

RMB RMB 2020 2019
AEH AR¥ | 2020%F | 2019%F
200,000,000 200,000,000 34% 34%
200,000,000 200,000,000 34% 34%
600,000,000 600,000,000 ~100% 95%
600,000,000 600,000,000 ~ 100% 95%
100,000,000 100,000,000 ~ 100% 100%
100,000,000 100,000,000 ~ 100% 100%
1,100,000,000  1,100,000,000 3% 32%
1,100,000,000  1,100,000,000 3% 32%
50,000,000 50,000,000 90% 90%
50,000,000 50,000,000 90% 90%
200,000,000 200,000,000 33% 31%
200,000,000 200,000,000 33% 31%
10,000,000 10,000,000~ 100% 100%
10,000,000 10,000,000~ 100% 100%
100,000,000 100,000,000 64% 64%
100,000,000 100,000,000 64% 64%
510,000,000 510,000,000 65% 65%
510,000,000 510,000,000 65% 65%
50,000,000 50,000,000 31% 31%
50,000,000 50,000,000 31% 31%
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39.PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39.Fff B8 A BRI (8&)

(CONTINUED)

a) The Group indirectly hold the equity interest in these companies a) AEEFEAEREBEEEEFEZER
through layers of holding structures and the Group has control over A ARHE - BEARSKE I G E QR
the board of directors of these companies who can make majority EEg  EMEMEHZEIRENATZ
votes to decide the key financial and operating decisions of these ZRAHRVBREEARAEK - LXEED
companies. The proportion of equity interests as disclosed above R Bl ie H BN A S E R ERARE -

represent the effective equity interests attributable to the Group.

40.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. 5 E /i B 2 7]
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed HE2020F12A31HILFE » AEEMA
of interests in a number of subsidiaries to certain third parties. BETE=ZFEEETHB AT NER - &
Details of the disposals are as follows: EFBOT
As at
31 December
2020
12020
12A381H
RMB’ 000
AR®T T
Cash received 23 & 158,000
Fair value of investments in joint ventures and associates upon transfer from subsidiaries
BMBAREERNEEEERBERARNRENAAEE 70,770
228,770
Non-controlling interest disposed of H & JEiZ & 25 517,142
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries & KB A mlHY K 24,451
Cash proceeds from disposal, net of cash disposed of HE Z 53R 4 - 1K HERS
— From third parties — kKB E =7 158,000
Cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiaries disposal of HEMB A RIAIE S KIREEEY 536,152

Net cash outflow on disposal & & FIR & i 378,152
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41.BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE HEANREEEBERR#HES
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY &)
31 December | 31 December
2020 2019
2020F 20194
12A31H 12 A31H
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARET T ARET T
ASSETS ¥ &
Non-current assets FHREEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries &I E A 7 FIE 3,562,317 2,851,096
Investments in subsidiaries Rt E A FIHIEE 1,738,541 1,738,541
5,300,858 4,589,637
Current assets "B EE
Restricted Cash X [R#38 & 923,273 =
Cash and cash equivalents 3¢ MIR& ZEY 238,561 373,488
Amounts due from shareholder f&U A% 5z 18 322 322
Amounts due from an associate [ — < 2 7 ZIE 73,640 =
Other receivables and prepayments £ b & I 5018 & 1815 A 1,145 17,538
1,236,941 391,348
Total assets EEHAKE 6,537,799 4,980,985
EQUITY #%
Equity attributable to owners of the Company ANQ FI#E G A B2
Share capital B 9,200 9,200
Reserves f# & a 2,048,401 2,748,255
2,057,601 2,757,455
LIABILITIES &1&
Current liabilities R EI & &
Borrowings &3k 1,824,994 =
Trade and other payables & 5 K E fib & < Z 18 350 2,993
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{ M B A & FIE 58,490 58,204
1,883,834 61,197
Non-current liabilities JERE & &
Borrowings f& X 2,596,364 2,162,333
Total liabilities & &4 % 4,480,198 2,223,530
Total equity and liabilities ## & & &4 % 6,537,799 4,980,985
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of ARREEBEBERN2021F3 250 ES
Directors on 25 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf. EmedE WRAEEZEeEE.
Hu Yiping Shan Bei
tH—F BE
Director Director
EZE BEE
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G i
41.BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE NAEAQRREEEBRRBESE
MOVEMENTS OF THE COMPANY ) (4E|)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Reserve movements of the Company (a) A QTR EESH

Share Other | Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total

Bt Hitffe Rt act
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARBT R ARBTR ARBTR

At 31 December 2018 742018128318 = 1,727,906 (27,160) 1,700,746
Issuance of ordinary shares upon initial public offering
RERARBERBETLER 1,426,936 - - 1,426,936
Share issuance costs & 3% 1T~ (46,481) - = (46,481)
Capitalisation of share premium from global offering
PREERDEBERL (335) - - (335)
Interim dividends for 2019 20194 A% & (270,134) - - (270,134)
Loss for the year FRWE R - - (62,477) (62,477)
At 31 December 2019 420195125318 1,109,986 1,727,906 (89,637) 2,748,255
At 31 December 2019 420195125318 1,109,986 1,727,906 (89,637 2,748,255
Final dividends for 2019 2019F R Hf & (216,107) - - (216,107)
Loss for the year FRJEE - - (483,747) (483,747)
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12 A31H 893,879 1,727,906 (573,384) 2,048,401
/
42.SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 42 HA R 18
The Company has issued US$150 million senior notes bearing an RK2021%F1813H » ARBIEKRETE
interest rate of 9.95% per annum due in December 2022 at an #100.827% & 17150,000,000% JT
issue price of 100.827% on 13 January 2021. The senior notes 2022F 12 AR EBLERE - FAER
were listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 14 January 9 95% ° B EENR2021F1 148 ESR

2021. BE AT £ o
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Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31HILEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

20164 20174 20184 20194 20204
RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR| ARBTR| AR®TR| AR®TR

Revenue YA 6,979,701 6,553,989 8,212,074 9,512,995 15,668,775
Profit before income tax FT1S & A # 798,392 1,218,061 2,866,649 2,981,214 3,105,460
Income tax expenses TS % % (284,981) (378,692)  (1,025,602) (724,587) (844,965)
Profit for the year & A F|E 513,411 839,369 1,841,047 2,256,627 2,260,495
Other comprehensive income

HEh2mas - - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year
FREEKEBEE 513,411 839,369 1,841,047 2,256,627 2,260,495

Attributable to:

AR & 77 B -
Owners of the Company
PA/NEIE/ZEN 330,809 737,543 1,453,456 1,556,514 1,192,502
Non-controlling interests
FEEIR 182,602 101,826 387,591 700,113 1,067,993

513,411 839,369 1,841,047 2,256,627 2,260,495
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December
M12A31H

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

20165 20174 20184 20195 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBTR | ARBTR| AR®TR| AR®TR| AR®TR

Total assets & E42RE 21,178,677 35,417,221 49,609,447 67,287,000 96,603,301
Total liabilities B & 42%8 (19,639,275)  (33,233,472) (42,740,810) (56,552,272) (79,992,497)
Net assets & &R E 1,539,402 2,183,749 6,868,637 10,734,728 = 16,610,804
Owners of the Company A&RQ&HEA A 1,084,436 1,514,799 2,473,466 5,013,485 5,845,282
Non-controlling interests FE#ZE R HE RS 454,966 668,950 4,395,171 5,721,243 10,765,522

Total equity #4258 1,539,402 2,183,749 6,868,637 10,734,728 16,610,804
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